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This Review sets out our performance over the year and our
contribution to the BBC, reports progress on our three strategic
priorities: brands, content and digital, looks at how we support the
UK'’s creative sector and sets out the transformation that our company
is undergoing to remain effective in the future.

Highlights
HEADLINE SALES* HEADLINE PROFIT*
£1,001.8m £138.6m
(2013/14 £1,0423m) -3 9% (2013714 £157 4m) -11 9%
RETURNS TO THE BBC PROFIT BEFORE TAX EXCLUDING GAINS AND

£226.5m LOSSES ON DISPOSALS
(2013/14 £173 8m) +30 3% £107.9m

(2013/14 £122 1m) -11 6%

What we do

We are the main commerctal arm and a wholly owned subsidiary of the BBC We exist to build the BBC brand around the
world, support the BBC public service mission and maximise returns on its behalf while ensuring all activities are
conducted 1n a way that 13 consistent with BBC standards and values

BBC Worldwide 1s a company with content at its heart We invest in, commercialise, market and showcase content from
the BBC and the wider UK telewiston industry around the world

Where we operate

Our business is structured across four geographical regions the UK, North America, Australia and New Zealand, and the
rest of the world, known collectively as Global Markets We have 18 offices around the world, plus BBC Advertising sales
representatives in a further three locations

*Thraughoul this Review, headline sales refers to gross revenue including the Group 8 share of revenues from joint ventures Headline profit refars to operating profit befora
specific teme and including the Group’s share of oparating profits from joint venturas and associatas Specific tema are set out on page 13 A reconciliation betwesn headling
profit and profit before tax 13 prasented in tha Chief Financial Officers’ review on page 12

Qur geographicsl reportable segments reflect management reporting ines The Group s headiine sales and profit remain consistent with the pnor year's Annual Review The
2013/14 segment comparatives for headline profit have been recalculated to reflect the revised methodology by which the cost of content 1s atiocated across regions for
managemsnt raporting to the Worldwide Executive Commitiee (WEx) from 2014/15 onwards
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Chairman’s statement

| am pleased to report on a year of positive progress at BBC Woridwide Over the 12 months, and agalnst & backdrop of market transformation that
presented some challenges, the company took significant strides both to bring its strategy to hfe and to re-shape its business for the fulure These
moves — investing in premium content, amplifying the BBC brand overseas, and transforming digitally ~ will underpin profit and shareholder retums in
the years ahead, and come at a ime when the BBC is more determined than ever io ensure we extract the maximum sustanable future contribution
from all our commercial subsidiartes

BBC Worldwide delivered a very respectable financial perfformance As set out elsewhere in this Annual Review, reported numbers are complicated by a
number of factors, pnnapally the part-disposal of BBC AMERICA — a partnership with AMC Networks {(AMCN), which will be wisible on UK screens
through co-developed programmes, as well as securing the future of our independent channe! m the world's largest media market Overall, results were
In line with the Board’s expectations and represent a good outcome

Most importantly, 2014/15 saw a step-change in financial flows to BBC Worldwide’s parent BBC Worldwide invested £94 4m in BBC commissions
(2013/14 £88 9m) from both BBC Praduction and from UK independents And at £226 5m (2013/14 £173 8m), sharehoider retums were up by atmost
one-third, equivalent to 12 6% of total BBC Television content spend, up from 10 1% the previous year

Vitaily, as a resuft of this financial contribution, audiences In the UK were able to enjoy investment in programmes at a higher level than the licence fee
alone can provide Among thase enhanced shows was Doctor Who, seen in the UK by an average consolidated audience of 7 4m, ainng in over 7G
other countnes, and achieving record ratings on BBC AMERICA and Space channe! in Canada Meanwhile Life Story, from the BBC Natural History Urit
- which was over 70% funded through commercial investment via BBC Worldwide — was seen by a domestic consolidated audience of 6 5m, with rights
to broadcast the senes acquired by intemational broadcasters for 151 territories

However, BBC Worldwide is nol just significant for the financlal contnbution It makes to the Corperation In "bringing the UK to the world' — one of our
public purposes - it provides a route to market for UK programme makers through its sales force, on BBC branded channels internationally, and via the
successful UKTV channels in the UK, part-owned by BBC Worldwide In total, ts indie payments, covenng all commisslons, rights acquisitions and
royaities, remained strong at £113 1m (2013/14 £116 4m) BBC Worldwida champions the cause of UK content and culture both in the UK and outside
And research demonstrates that business leaders who consume the BBC have increased propensity to trade with UK firms, suggesting economic
dividends, beyond telewisicn, far the UK as a whaole

We beileve BBC Worldwide is the most successful commercial subsidiary of any Public Service Broadcaster in the world Although commercial returng
are a small part of the BBC's funding mix, we are nonetheless determined to maximise therr impact Therefore, looking ahead to the next phase of the
BBC's development, and a new Charter pericd, It is the Board's aim to sustain annual financlal returns at around this new level, even without the one-off
benefit of BBC AMERICA proceeds This will not be easy, but it is importani that we utilise all the BBC's financal levers to their very maximum, and
BBC Worldwide has ambihous busmess plans to support this We are therefore looking to BBC Worldwide to generate around £16n in returns for the
Corparation in the five years starting from 2014/15 — an increase of almost one quarter on the previous half-decade

In support of that amm, the year ahead will see further momentum from BBC Worldwide's strategy A continued focus on premium content wall include
War and Peace, natural history landmark The Hunt, and the retum of Sherlock onthe slate Global BBC brands will remain at the heart of BBC
Worldwide, with resulls coming through from the three new internaticnal channel feeds launched m 2014/15, a further four since year end, and others to
follow As well as continued exploitation of world-class programme brands from Dancing with the Stars to Doctor Who And digital developments will
take the form of BBC Store, enabling UK customers to buy and keep the 8BC programmes they love, as well as plans for further digital BBC services in
selected markets outside the UK

Finally, | would like to acknowledge BBC Worldwade's staff, in the UK and cutside, its many partners and clients around the world and all those who
have played a role in helping BBC Worldwde to support the BBC in the year

Tony Haft
Chairman, BBC Worldwide
and Director-General, BBC
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Chief Executive's review

Highiights

=  Overall, we have had a good year, balancing the delivery of solid financial results wih investment to transform the business for a more competitive
global marketplace

o Our commilment to a high level of content investment, coupled with a =oli¢ operating performance and the proceeds of our equity partnership with
AMCN, allowed us to mcrease our returns fo the BBC by 30 3% to £226 5m

+  We made significant progress in our core areas of strategic focus high qualty content, delvering stronger brands and increased digital capablities

« Investing in premium content continued to be the comerstone of the business, and we were proud to deliver and represent a rich mx of beld and
Inspmng titles

2014/15 has been a significant year of investment and transformation for BBC Worldwide We began to deliver our strategy, first set out in October
2013, of building our supply of high quahty content for clients and our own senvices alike, developng stronger global brands and accelerating digttal
innovation All this puts us In a belter position to deliver sustainable financial returns to the BBC and generata even better value for UK licence

fee payers, both this year and in the future

Overall, we have had a good year, balancing the delivery of solid financial results — including significant growth n retuns to the BBC, our primary
financial priority — with investment to transform the business for a more competitive global marketplace Notably, our new venture with AMCN has
significantty enhanced future prospects for our BBC AMERICA channel while also enabling us to boost shareholder retums for the year

Beyond the AMCN deal we continued to take steps to drive innovation and underpin the sustainability of our operations This is essential work in the
context of a global media market undergoing structural and systemic changes, some of which constran our trading and otdlook In certain areas This
has led fo iniatives such as growing investment with the independent sectar, both in programming and in selective equity investments to support our
long-term content supply We launched our new strengthened BBC genre channel brands into lead markets dunng the year, and delivered significant
innovation, such as the BBC Earth platform on B8C com and BBC co uk We also accelerated partnership deals on core brands such as CBeebies, with
a successful launch of CBeebies Land at Alton Towers as well as our planned roll-out of CBeebres English tanguage leaming centres in China

Within the company, we have focused hard on the cufure of our business, encouraging new ways of working These are delvering world-class
processes with propnetary programmes such as Adding Value across our sales function, which maximises cortent revenues across all windows and
channels, Brand Labs, our merketing and brands best practice hub, and new procurement prachices We have also priontised the attraction and
development of the best giobal talent In our industry

Finally, acrass every element of our business, we have continued to focus on nurtunng the UK creative industnes through initiatives like BBC Worldwide
Labs, our start-up programme, showcasing UK creativity overseas and supporting the independent production sector

Raturns to licence fee payers

Our commitment to a high level of content investment, coupled with a solid operating performance and the proceeds of our equity partnershup with AMCN,
aliowed us to merease our retums to the BBC by 30 3% o a record £226 5m As detaled by Tony Hall on page 2, this funding also reflects BBC Worldwide's
increased contnbubion ta BBC commissioning spend both from in-house production teams and Brtish indies, which enhances the hours and creative ambition
from key titles that UK audiences can enjoy This year alone we have supported the BBC in-house production team as well as over 250 independent producers
n delivenng a number of notable titles such as The Honourable Woman, Wolf Hsll, Life Story and Human Universe

The year's results

While headline sales and profil both declined due to the AMCN transaction and to curmency movements, adjusted for these effects, our operating performance
was broadly flat year on year

Headkne sales of £1,001 8m were down 3 8% (2013/14 £1,042 3m), reflecling the absence of BBC AMERICA revenue for most of the second half of the year
However, our reverue performance on ongoing operations was up 0 4% to £848 1m (2013/14 £944 5m), helped in particular by continuing growth from digstal
sales, channel advertising revenue and UKTV In North America, digital sales exceeded linear TV sales for the first time, while strategic parinerships brought a
sales upliftin Australla and New Zealand Digital fvestment in the UK supported successes forour ecommerce offering, BBC Shop, whie
careful management of our DVD slate, coupled with targeted markefing support, somewhat offset ongoing pressure from the iIndustry-wide deciine in the
category Meanwhile, difficult trading conditians In Russia, coupled with economic sanctions, impacted our performance In that market Curmency movements
reduced sales by £19 5m in aggregate

Headline profit of £138 6m (2013/14 £157 4m) was 11 5% down on the prewous year, again including the Impact of the AMCN venture Excluding this effect,
headine profit on ongoing operations recorded growth of 4 1%, at £127 2Zm (2013114 £122 2m), Including the benefit of just over five months of BBC
AMERICA's contribution as an associate Foreign exchange movements hit headline profit by £3 2m in the year

Strateglc focus

We made significant progress in our core areas of stralegic focus high quality content, delivering stronger brands and increased digital capabilties
Investing in the highest quality content

investing in premium content contmued to be the comerstone of the business, and we were proud to defiver and represent a nch mix of bold and inspinng tites
from across drema ~ accounting for almost half our total Investment — as well as natural history, factual enfertainment, comedy, music and children's Our top-
selling shows of the year included Doctor Who, Top Gear, Orphan Black, Life Story, The Musketeers, Atlantis, Call the Midwife, Ripper Street, Sherfock and
The Honourable Woman — a range dof tittes thal speaks (o the breadth of appetite for British content from global audiences Doctor Who S8 was licensed to
189 temtones in the year
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Chief Executive’s review (continued)

Content investment of £180 Sm (2013/14 £200 6m) declined due to our venture with AMCN, which means we no longer report BBC AMERICA's content
spend — a matenal element in our overall investment — as well as some [nevitable vanabdity in the hming of commusstoning decisions for new content
We stll delivered an mcrease in investment in BBC-commissioned content to £84 4m, up 6 2% (2013/14 £88 9m) This contnbuted to production of the much
anticipated dramas Wer and Peace, Dickensian and SS-GB, all of which wall air in 2016

Partnerships such as that with AMCN for EBC AMERICA are imperative for ensuring we can sustain long-term investment in premium content, and grow both
the future reach and profile of BBC AMERICA, the BBC and the titles we represent The partnership also enables us jontly ta increase the volume of inteligent
drama, loved by fans both of AMCN (which alrs the US record rating drama series, The Walking Dead) and of the BBC, through a shared agreement {o co-
develop future tittes, which wall complement those we have aiready co-produced, including Golden Giobe winning series Top of the Lake and The Honourable
Woman

in the coming year we intend to build on these successes, keep investing in the highest quaity Brtish programmes, deepen our relationships with the UK
creative sector and look forward to distributing a weaith of exceptional programmes, such as the final instalment of Walflander, as well as forthcoming natural
history landmark The Munt, and the much anticpated Sherfock speclal and subsequent fourth senes, to audiences across the worlg

Beyond programmes, this year we made some strategic investments into developing independent businesses such as Lookout Point and Curve Media This
signals our desire to pariner with those producing and making the highest qualty UK content Overseas, we are focused on building our formats business and
growing our production capabilibes in core markets so that we can exploit oulstanding UK creative work The strength of our French production am, for

exampte, 1 set out on page 11
Strengthening our global brands

In 2013/14 we overhauled our channel brands and began investing in pilot markets to support the launch of new channel brands such as BBC First, BBC Bnt
and BBC Earth These brands are concentrated on genres where we have global strength, and the potential to build strong consumer franchises in a more
competitive marketplace

We have been encouraged by the itiat audience reaction to both the linear TV launches of BBC Earth and BBC Bnt n Poiand and the debut of BBC First on
the Foxtel subscription platformn in Australia

In the year ahead we wall continue to roll-out the BBC genre brands acrgss multiple platforms Linear offerings of BBC Bnt and BBC Earth launched post year
end in the Nordics in Apni and BBC Firsts knear debut outside Australia came in the Netherlands in May Beyond linear, we will continue to build our suite of
immersive experiences for audiences of alt ages, which this year included a Top Gear Track Expenence at the show's comc track at Dunsfold

Digital innovation

Withun the year BBC com celebrated reaching 100 8m unigue browsers for the first ime in January and generated 1 3bn page views across all platforms for
the month of March Our feature sections played a key role in this, dmving audtences to 8 3m, up 76 6% (2013/14 4 7m) BBC Earth's launches on BBC com
and BBC co uk in September and QOctober respectively made it the first of our genre brands to debut online It offers fans of the natural world a nch mo< of short
-form content and editonal insight and complements the near transmission of titles such as Life Story [t also offers fans an opportunity to share inspinng
content of the natural world through the EarthCapture app, launched in March in partnership with Seert, one of this year's BBC Worldwide Labs start-up
companies Within Its first few weeks, app users had submitted over 1,200 pleces of content a mix of video and imagery Qur finance and science
and technology sections, BBC Capital and BBC Future, actueved record numbers of unique browsers at year end, at 2 5m and 3 9m respectively up on the
previous year (2013/14 Capital 1 6m, Future 2 Sm) Cur YouTube network has continued to engage fans of our contant, with total views Increasing i the year
by 53 5% to 809m (2013/14 527m}

In 201415 we commenced ow journey into the {ransactiona! landscape, with the dewelopment and wuftal testing of BBC Store as well as early
stage development of our intemnational plans for direct-to-consumer services BBC Store will be the first of these ambitions to be realised, in autumn 2015 The
service will be avallable to UK audiences, and will offer the option to buy and keep a wealth of tiles, including a number of weli-loved classics that to date have
not been avallable commercially

Looking forwand. our international digital plans are focused an the roll-out of TV Everywhere services in collaboration with our partners as well as evaluating
over the top pilats in one or two lead markets

Bullding a world-class media company

Last year we also tasked ourselves with building on our strong company culture, ensuring all cur empioyeas have access to the bes! training and opportunities
to develop their careers Ve have accomplshed a great deal in this area, as you ¢an read on page 7 This work has led to strong staff engagement scores,
which place us at the upper end of benchmarks, although we hope to keep setting standards In this area

Looking to the future

As we look to the year ahead, we remain very focused on effective execution of our stralegy while remaining agile enough to exploit opportunities as they
anse in the rapidly changmng market, this will require us to balance the need (o Invest and innovate with our desire to achieve consistent financial retums This
wiill be challenging, as traditional markets face upheaval, but our outstanding contert, the quality of our brands and the strength of our team puts us in a good
place to deliver success and build a world-leading creative medha business

Tim Davie
Chief Executive, BBC Werldwice
and Director, Global
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Strategic progression

Highlights
s We successfully launched BBC First in Australia on the Foxtel subscripiion TV platform and BBC Brt and BBC Earth as near channels in Potand
. Our commitment to deliver ambitious premium cantent reached naw helghts, white formats also delivered an impressive state

s  Video views across BBC com averaged 36 6m per month across all platforms, up 48 7% year on year

New genre brands

In 2013/14 we set out an ambilious plan to launch three genre brands, BBC First, BBC Earth and BBC Bnt offering audiences premiurm first runs outside the
UK of the very best in drama, premium factual and factual enterlainment Within the year we successfully launched BBC First in Australia on the Foxiel
subscaption TV platform and BEBC Bnt and BBC Earth as Imear channels m Poland That was marked with & unique promotional stunt involving a giant statue
of Top Gear's The Stig crossing Europe to Warsaw BBC Earth launched on BBC com and BBC co uk. The sie has reached an average of 3 1m unique
browsers per month since launching in September

Stand-out achievements for our core brands included Doclsr Who The World Tour Buikding on the success of the 50th anniversary we embarked on a 12-day
global promotional tour for senes eight We visiled South Korea, Austraha, USA, Mexico and Brazil intraducing the Twelfth Doctor, Peter Capaldi, and
companion Clara, Jenna Coleman, to international fans This was a first for a British TV senes and featured a creative social media programme with actwvity on
Facebook generating 130m post impressions and more than 2m wdec views across Facebaok and YouTube

As part of the launch actwity for Top Gear 522, we produced an exclusive wideo with LEGO® that has to date been viewed § 4m tmes on YouTube and
Facebook and held the exctusive ‘An Evening With' Top Gearin London with atl three presenters The event was watched by 1 4m fans on BBC Player

Premium content

Content remained at the heart of our sirategy this year and the commitment to defiver ambibous premium contert from both BBC In-house and indies reached
new heights Tilles included the Golden Globe-winning drama The Honourable Woman with Maggie Gyllenhaal, Woif Hall with Damian Lewis and Mark
Rylance the crtically acclamed Happy Vaflsy with Sarah Lancashure, writer Jimmy McGovern s Bamshed, natural history landmark Life Story, comedy sequel
The Wiong Mans 52, new children's titles Hey Duggae and Nalfy & Nora, and the ground-breaking music tile Sonic Highways from The Foo Fighters We afso
welcaomed back Doctor Who S8, Orphan Black 52 and Top Gear S22 We aiso announced new co-development, firstJock and distnbubion partnerships with a
vanety of ndependent productron companies across a range of genres including Curve Media for faciual entertainment, King Bert for comedy and Red Planet,
Cuba Pictures and Lookout Point for drama

Our formats business also delivered an impressive slate with new BBC Worldwide commissions launching wathin the year Including Mud, Sweat and Gears and
You're Back it the Room

Digital innovation

We contmued to embrace the opporturuties of an increasingly digital landscape Growth of thurd party streaming senvices continued to increase demand for our
programming, as compelling and exclusive content became the key to winning consumers’ attention This year we continued to supply content to leading
intemational services inchuding Amazon Prime Instant Video and Netfix We also formed partnerships with start-up services, such as Stan in Australia

In the UK work commenced on our own digital ownership service, BBC Store, which will launch in autumn 2015, expanding BBC Worldwide's portfolio of
direct-to-consumer digial services and complementing BBC Shop, our ecommerce platform in the UK, USA and Australia We are also developing new
opportunitres to launch BBC branded digital video services that complement our global brands

BBC com celebrated another year of growth, reaching a meonthly average of 85 5m urique browsers, up 8 3% year on year and peaking in January at 100 8m
Video wews across afl platforms averaged 36 6m, up 48 7% year on year, with a peak of 48 7m in January There was also strong growth from mobile and
tablet browsers, up 39 5% and 34 9% respectively wthin the year The feature sections also flourished, attracting an average of 8 3m unique browsers up
76 6% year on year (2013114 4 7m)
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Supporting creativity
Highlights
» Inthe UK, we buoyed the indie sector, working with over 250 independent producers, selling their shows intemationally and retumning £113 1m fo the
sector

+  Intemabonally, we acted as a spearhead for the UK's creative mdusines around the world, offering a platform for the best of British creativity
This year, we had an increasingly important role to play at the heart of the UK's thnving creative and digital eco-system, both at home and overseas

The crealive industries are a major success story for the UK, generating £76 9bn Gross Value Added, the measure of direct contribution to the econcmy,
£17 3bn service exports and 1 71m jobs and growing faster than the rest of the UK economy Alangside the public service BBC, we supported, partnered with
and showcased the best of Brittsh creativity

In the UK, we buoyed the Indie sector, warking with over 250 independent producers, sefling therr shows intemationally and returming £113 1m to the sector, as
set out on page 2 The minority equity posiions taken in Lookout Point and Curve Medla, referred to on page 4, enable us to further enrich our content supply
through first-tock nghts and offer development and distribution opportunities to programme makers

BBC Worldwide Labs, our digilal media start-up programme, supported a further six innovative UK entrepreneurtal teams locking to grow this year All
benefitted from offico space, mentoring and access to experts and, to date, ten partnership deals have been signed with BBC Worldwide Labs companies to
work on our own brands and projects

We facilitated in bringing the UK’s creative industnes together to speak wath one, more impactful voice, with Tim Dawe co-chairing UK Trade & Investment's
Sector Adwsory Group and leading the Creative Industres Counci's Intemational work This year we also became a founder supporter of the Creative
Industries Federation

Internationally, we acted as a spearhead for the UK's creative industries around the world, offenng a platform for the best of Bntish creativity as the UK’s tap
distnbutor, operator of over 40 channel feeds in over 120 temtones, thraugh our own BBC channels infemationally, our UK joint venture UKTV vath Scnpps
Nelbworks Interactive, Inc, BBC AMERICA with AMCN, BBC Kids with Knowledge Network Corporation and BBC Canada with Shaw Communications Inc In
lotal, our intemational channels have 152 1m {(excluding the BBC World News channe!) subscnbers across the word As well as this, we have a global
presence across digilal and socal media platforms

Exports were increasingly important to the UK's television industry, with TV trade body PACT reporting total sales of UK telewision to ntemational markets up
5% to £1,284m in 2013/14 We generated exports for the BBC and the wider TV industry, with over 700 intemational delegates attending BBC Worldwide
Showcase 2015 in Liverpool and an increase of 3 2% to £345 3mn TV and digital headline sales this year A survey of Intemational business leaders showed
that over half agreed that the BBC plays a direct role in influencing their business decisions in favour of the UK

We supported a number of creative industrles export initiatives this year, including the GREAT Festival of Creativity in Shanghal and the Technology
Innovaters Forum in China and Los Angeles £150m of business deals, plus further UK-China parinerships such as the opening of our CBeebies English
language iearming centre In Shanghai, were announced as part of the GREAT Festival

Over the year, we have used our presence to act a3 a trailblazer for the wider UK creative industnes in new markets, with the BBC brand and lts association
wath premium content shining a ight on the talent and creataaty coming from the UK
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Business transformation

Highlights
+  Deloitte estimates that in an average month, over 360bn hours of long-form video will be watched globally
«  We pride ourselves on delivering the best of British content and BBC branded services to audlences across the world

+  ltis well known that world-class organisations strive for a high performance culture by setting a clear direction, providing development opportunities and
a creative working environment BBC Worldwide 1s no exception

Market context

We operale in a fast-paced and ever-changing media landscape While the tefevision industry remains very sigruficant globally — Deloitte estimates that In an
average month, over 360bn hours of long-form wideo will be watched globally — short-form content should account for a futher 10bn hours In aggregate of
monthiy play-out In 2015, with estimates of US households accessing subscription VOD (SVOD) range frem 40-57%

The past year has witnessed a nse in hybrid content serace launches, further consolldation of media organisations, wath aggregate vatue of European media
deals in 2013 and 2014 worth three times more than in the three preceding years combined, continued appette for drama globally, and increasing competition
in gales and distnbution

We pride ourselves on delivering the best of Bntsh content anc BBC branded senvices to audiences across the world, as the number one content distributor in
Europe and the horne of premium content and innovative BBC branded services To maintain our position we need to evolve i ine wath the market, and we
took active steps in the year to re-shape our business to that end

Strateglc positioning

While BEC AMERICA's ratings and critical acctarm had continued to climb in recent years, we concluded that joming forces with a company which places a
high valua on premium, inteligent and distinctrve content, would better secure the channel's future growth in an increasingly challenging environment for
independent channe! operators The partnership gives BBC AMERICA opporturities to grow reach further, as part of a compeliing and unique channel porttolio
and a more potent force in the US market Closer to home, we took an equity stake m independent production company Lookout Paint, and 1n two more UK
independents since year and, intended to support their growth and secure our independent plpeline in a consolldating market

We also started the transformation of our direct-to-consumer portfolio, develeplng and launching the new genre brands descrnibed on page 5, roling out three
new channels by the year end, and a further four by start of June, with more to follow In 2015/16 Brand-building in the knear TV world will gwe us an emportant
foothold in audiences’ hearts and minds as the transition to duptal continues

Culture

It is well known that world-class organmsations stnve for a tegh-performance culture by setting a clear drection, providing development opporturubes and a
creatve working environment to engage therr people BBC Worldwide is no exceplion and n the year we engaged the vast maonty of our employees
in a series of workshops around the world to identify those areas we could put more focus on to achieve our aim of high performance

A number of areas were {dentified, including leadership behaviours, recognibion and development As a result, we have already started work on thes,
developing a teadership commitment made up of six high-performance behaviours which all our employees can expect of our leaders We have put in place a
number of new development programmes — for semor leaders, and emerging leaders — all aimed at buflding leadership and management capabllity

For the whole company, we also introduced a new development intranet site and tools to enhance virtual and face-to-face leaming along with a complete
cumiculum of new courses In the area of recognition, we have taunched a new global awards scheme to highlight and recogrise excellence The coming year
wili see further progress in afl these areas

Finally we wanted to enhance the creativity of our work space and the year saw a number of office movas, including the merging of our two London sites into
the refurbished conic Television Centre, as well as new offices In Warsaw, Johannesburg and Singapore By removing assigned desks and putling teams
into more efficient, open-plan and creative work spaces we am to encourage a more flexible way of working, both in situ and remotely, and interaction
between different teams
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UK
PERFORMING WELL

Highlights
+  Significant investment made in BBC Store, which launches in the UK in autumn 2015
«  New licensing deals included Doctor Who partnership with LEGO®

« Todate there have been 7 9m downloads of our Top Gear mobile games

Our UK actvities compiement British audiences’ enjoyment of wellHoved BBC content, primarlly through our [oint-ownershup of UXTV and our TV sales,
consumer products and Iive evenis businesses This year we announced a number of significant new partnerships and events and developed our digital
offenng through increased investment in digital irstlatives, most significantly BBC Store

Overall the UK performed well We reduced our dependency on physical and focused on key Ules and brands Headline sales were stable at £361 8m (201314
£362 2m), while headiine profit was £52 7m (2013/14 £56 2m), with eight out of the ten business areas recording profit growth

We secured a number of second window deals for BBC content, beginning a new partnershup with Amazon Pnme and contrueng our relatonship wath Netfllx
UKTV, the award-winning media company. of which BBC Worldwide owns 50% along wath Scnpps Networks Interactive, Inc, celebraled its 22 year with
another excellent performance, growing its share of the commercial TV markei to an all-time high, up from 8 2% to 9 0% in 2014, achieving cntical acclaim and
ratings success for original commussions and launching new digital service UKTV Play

BBC Stare, a new digital service which will allow consumers in the UK to buy and keep BBC programmes, will launch autumn 2015 with up to 10,000 hours of
content including new programmes, titles from our catalogue and previously unavailable gems from the BBC's archive Revenue from our established
ecommerce business BEC Shop was up 15 4% to £4 6m

tn DVD from January 2014 to December 2014, we finished ahead of all other UK TV studios, with 11 titles in the top 50 best-selling TV titles of the year Top
Gear — The Perfect Rosd Trip 2 took the top spot, a second year running for the brand, achieving more than double the sales of the nearest competitor,
meanwhile Muanda Hart's My, What | Call, Live Show, was the second highest selling stand-up comedy llitle of the year

We progressed two new (ive event ventures CBeebles Land, a partnershup with Merlin Entertainments, opened at Alton Towers in May in August we
launched the Top Gear Track Experience i partnership with Brandscape Group, based at the Top Gear track in Dunsfold We also signed an agreemnent with
Londen Paramount Entertainment Resort, working towards the inclusion of a range of BBC brands in & major new entertainment park in Kent

We secured some exciting new licensing deals for core BBC brands including a Doclor Who partnership with LEGO® Master foy licensee Golden Bear
produced our new Hey Duggee range for pre-school children and there have been 7 Sm downloads of our Top Gear mabile games The Games business
retumed a £1 4m increase i profit, despite a reduction in headline sales

As BBC Good Food celebrated s 25" anniversary, bbcgoodfood com increased its uruque reach by 37 0% to 16 0m (2013/14 11 7m) unique browsers
TopGear com reached 6 8m unique browsers per month, an increase of 59 5% on last year

Our Radio & Music business had a good year, with the BBC Radio 1 Live Lounge album going platinum and BBC Radio 2 Sounds of the 80s and Dave Arch
and the Strctly Come Dancmg Band releases both going siver Demon Music Group also had success with the box set release for Donna Summer BBC
Worldwide Leaming, which licenses BBC content for educational purposes outsida the UK, completed deals with the Ministnes of Education m Singapore
and France and continued to work with educational publishers from across the globe BBC Motion Gatlery successfully established our partnership with Getty
Images, growing online sales by 13 7% to £1 2m




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2015

North America
CHAMPIONING CHANGE

Highlights
+  Digital content sales reported another successful year, surpassing linear TV sales for the first ime m the region
=  Senes two of Orphan Black, the onginal award-winring BBC AMERICA programme, doubled its serles one ratings

. BBC AMERICA successfully achueved its 10th consecutrve year of ratings growth in 2014 whilst over half of US cable networks expenenced year-on-
year declines

BBC Worldwide North America is our largest business cutsida tha UK It includes content sales and co-productions, consumer products, BBC com, and BBC

Worldwde Produchons
2014/15 was a significant year, pnmarily due to our entering Into a long-term strategic agreement with AMC Networks (AMCN), which invested US$200 Om for

a 48 9% stake in BBC AMERICA In a market that has witnessed increased consoldation, this verture was an important next step for the cable channe!
and positioned it for future growth as one of a slate of successful channels operated by AMCN

Headline sales for the region decfined by 12 5% from £342 5m to £299 9m and headhine profit saw a year-on-year decline from £44 1m to £32 9m, aimost solely
due to the reduced ownership stake in BBC AMERICA under the venture in the last half of the year At constant cumency these declines were 10 7% and 16 8%
respectvely

On BBC AMERICA, Doctor Who conlinued to grow wath the debut of the Twelfth Doctor, Peter Capald), and launch of senes eight delivenng the show's highest

ratings to date — up 19 7% versus prior senes, with an average of 2 2m viewers each week - while hcensing sales on the title retumed year-on-year growth
of 26 1% Orphan Blsck, the original award-winning BBC AMERICA series became the first drama on US ad-supported telewsion to double its series

one audience In key advertising demographics (Adults 18-49, Adulls 25-54) when it retumed for a second senes - establishung iself as a core franchise for
North Amenca

BBC AMERICA successfully achieved its 10" consecutive year of ratings growth in 2014/15 - viewership grew 3 0% in the key pnmetime viewing slot while
over half of US cable networks experienced year-on-year declinas

Cur focus on extending fan engagement wath premium titles such as Doctor Whe, Orphan Black and Top Gear reached new heights BBCAmenca com Jisiors
increased by 8 8% and Facebeok followers doubled to 2 4m Doctor Who remains the number one TV brand on Tumbir and ranks among Twatter's top five mast-

tweeted about onginal dramas

Building on our suite of successful co-productions, ths year we secured a significant deal between the BBC and PBS to create upwards of ten faclual
programmes per year

Cigltai content sales reported another successful year, seeing gains of 54 1% and surpassing linear TV sales for the first tme in the region, which highlights the
growing demand on digial platforms and audiences’ appetite for greater choice in how they consume our content Core revenue drivers included exclusive SVOD
deals for Sherfock and Happy Valiey, deiivery of over 3,000 episodes licensed to Hulu sinee 2010, and a significant mult-year Netflix catalogue deal spanning
mutiple genres including BBC Earth titles

While the DVD market In the tertitory has seen severe declines in revenue across the board, our consummer producls division has seen only a marginal dechne
and the success of digital content sales has helped to balance this out

The feature sections of BBC com contmued to draw new users — an increase of 86 3% in the USA and Canada — reaching over 5 4m ureque browsers each month
Thus growth is supported by the introduction of more wideo nch content and the launch of a BBC Earth section that averaged 1 1m unique browsers per month
across the USA and Canada since launching in Septembar

Revenue from the productron business in Los Angeles declinad slightly, dnven by a shift in scheduting of the hit show De Vinci's Demons on Slarz However,
the appetite for popular UK show formats remained strong seeing commission renewals for the much-loved programme Dancing with the Stars for ABC, which
celebrates its 10" year and 20" senes in 2015 as well as a fourth senes of the US version of Top Gear Onginal unseripted commussicn renewals Included Life
Below Zero and Ladies of London
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Australia and New Zealand
STRONG GROWTH
Highlights
«  Anexcellent performance, with headhne sales up 11 8% and headiine profit up 13 2% in tocal cwrency, and up 7 8% and 22 8% after trans!ation
into steriing

«  Strategrc partnerships delivering well across sales, channels and TV formats
=  Very strong global debut for BBC First on the Foxtel subscription platform in Australla and further benefits from resulting re-tiering of BBC UKTV

In BBC Worldwide Australia and New Zealand, we wholly own and operate six BBC branced channels, distribute content to alf the loca! platform providers and
focus on growth across all our core business areas VWe work with partners to bring DVDs, live events, entertainment formats and consumer products to the
market as well as offering advertising opportursties on BBC com

Our Australia and New Zealand business delivered excellent growth in both revenue and profit in local cumency, up 11 8% and 13 2% respectively, as the
benefits of new strategic pnorities and partnershups fed into our financial results Translated nto sterfing, headline sales of £81 8m (201314 £76 Om) were up
7 8% and headiine profit of £16 3m (2013/14 £13 3m) increased 22 6% This was largely attnbutable to our channels and digital TV sales businesses, with
both bines showing double-digit growth, well ahead of the Australian media market

The pnncipal dnvers of growth were a number of key partnerships formed in 2013 and 2014 Our parinership with Foxtel saw the debut of BBC First in August
become the platform's most successful non-gport channel launch since 2006 Stand-cut ratings successes include launch tiles The Musketeers and Peaky
Biinders, along with seres four of the long-running BBC senes Calfl the Midwife and crincally acclamed The Missing, which was supported by a publicity visit

from lead actor James Neshitt

Meanwhile, BBC First's maden co-commission, Jmmy McGovemn's Barished, with BBC Two, was partly fimed in Sydney BBC First advertising sales were
strong dunng the year as a result of premium partnerships, and the renewed key sponsorship deal with Audi

The launch of BBC First saw general entertalnment channel BEC UKTV move onto Foxtel's entry tevel Entertainment tier, resutting in an uphft to s audience,
while thls year BBC Knowledge broadcast senes 22 of Top Gear Just minutes after the UK In New Zealand, UKTV achieved Sky TV's rumnber two
enterfainment channel ranking during the year In February our portfolio of Australian channels launched on high-growth IPTV platform Feich TV We
anticipate future success from further growth in BBC First, and are evaluating opportunities for additional channel launches In the region

The retum of Doctor Who S8 on the ABC In August with more opportunities to view on knear and digitai, delivered an increased audience, and Sydney was
one of five miernational stops on the World Tour A Doctor Who Symphonic Spectecular tour wisited Perth, Adelarde, Auckland and Sydney in February Other
stand-out BBC tties on the ABC included Call the Midwife, Sient Witness and Death in Paradise, while our natural history programming conlinued to do well
with Life rating highly on Channel Nine five years after its original broadcast

TV formal sales this year encompassed a range of wefl-Hoved Bntish factual and entertainment tiles appearing on a wide variety of channels This included a
second senes of Coast Austraifa on The History Channei, and also available to UK audiences on BBC Two, a 14" serles of Dancing with the Stars on Seven,
and Living with the Enemy on SBS New format commissions, generated since we entered nte a general entertainment production partnership with
FremantleMedia Australla, sncluded The Great Australan Bake Off on Ufestyle FOOD and Rachel Khoo's Kitchen Notebook Melbourne on SBS in Australia In
New Zealand we sokd Coast New Zealand to TV ONE and Dancing with the Stars to TV3

We achieved a record result across digital TV saies, up fourfold in the year Our digital reach was also extended in the year with new deals Incluaing OTT
platforms Stan , Netflix and Lightbox, mearning that our content 1 now available on over 15 digital platforms In the region The strength of our catalogue should
underpin future sales activity, both in firushed programmes and formats
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Global Markets

REACHING NEW AUDIENCES

Highlights
. Sohd underiying performance, despite headwinds of adverse currency movements and economic downturn in Russia, including mpact of sanctions
+  Good growth In international versions of Brtish formats, wilh 8 stand-out five UK formats commussioned from BBC Worldwide Productions in France

*  Year of nvesiment in channels - BBC Brit and BBC Earth debuted in Poland m February with encouraging early performance — and in strengthening
our local presence by upgrading and cpening new offices

Compnsed predominantly of the non-English speaking world, our Global Markets business encompasses Western Europe, Central and Eastem Europe,
Middle East and Africa (CEMA), Asia and Latin Amenca Business actmbes range from TV sales and channel operation to production and intellectual property
exploltation

In a difficult year dunng which our business was affected by adverse cumrency movements and excepbonal condilions in some markets, sales were stil
broadly fat at £276 3m (201314 £279 1m). a decine of 10% Profit, however, was down 27 0% at £32 2m (2013/14 £44 1m), reflecting both external
headwinds and significant investment in content and marketing for new channel brands Re-stating at constant currency, revenue was up 1 5% while headine
profit decreased by 5 0% The year saw real progress made in Asia and Latin Amenca, key channel renewals in important lemiories and an increased reach
through wider distribution, the roll-cut of new brands and higher TV sales

Wostern Europe

Westem Europe delivered sales of £160 1m (2013/14 £156 2m) and headline profit of £27 Om (201314 £34 3m) due to euro weakness and planned
channels Investment Restating at constant cumrency, revenue was up 6 3% with headline profit down 2 8%

Westem Europe 18 a key sales market, with local and intemationsi SVOD customers becoming increasingly important Stand-out tiles included The
Musketeers, Orphan Black Top Gear and Misfits We renewed a long-standing factual content partnerstup with France Téléwsions and extended a BBC Earth
branded block — ane of 13 BBC blocks globally — with Pro7Masoc in Gemany

Qur French production busmess increased revenue by over 50%, with local versions of five much-loved BBC programmes ~ BBC production Dancing with the
Stars Antques Roadshow, The Weakest Link and Love Production's Sewing Bee and Bake Off — on screen in the same month These generated a total
primetime average audience of 18 4m Top Gear France also erjoyed good ratings and our German joint venture, Tower Productions, received a first
commission for onginal format One in 8 Thousand from ZDF

Rost of World

Challenges in the Russian markat which impacied the wider broadcast mdustry, alongside channels investrment and foreign exchange, affected CEMA This
was offset by good revenue and headiine profil performance 1n Asia and Latin America As & result of the factors in CEMA, total Row revenue was down at
£416 2m (2013/14 £122 9m) and headline profit down at £5 2m (2013/14 £8 8m)

CEMA

Poland became the debut market for our new genre brands wath BBC Brit and BBC Earh launching as linear channels m February Both outperformed
established nvalg, bresking into the top three in thelr competitive sets Advertising revenues on our African and Polish channels continued to grow

Format sales included Grest Bake Off to Israef and Turkey and Dancing with the Stars to Sloverva and Romamia The latest senes of Dancing with the Stars in
Poland aclhieved a 24 1% audience share, up from 23 8% on 2013/14

TV sales markets showing a strong uplift mcluded israel, taking The Honourable Woman, Happy Valiey, The Musketeers and Sherock; Turkey, buying Intruders
Doctor Who and Frozen Planet; and Africa, with Orphan Biack S1.and 52 and Atlants 51

We also entered our first VOD deals in Afnca and Poland and secured a number of digital deals across the Middle East and Central & Eastern Europe

Asta
The year saw success across finished programmes and formats, BBC branded channels and blocks as well as local production Sherfock S3 passed 90m

views on Chinese digital platform Youku

Srgnificant deals included programme sales and VOD deals across muttiple platforms to Taman, white Japan's NHK signed a co-productton agreement for the
Natura! History Unit's Wi/d Japan Through a parinershup with Singapore-based Popular Education we entered the Chinese Engtish language learreng market
Audiences enjoyed local versions of formats, with India adding a third version of Dancing with the Stars produced by BBC Worldwide Productions in Kamataka
for ETV Kannada, and local versions of Top Gear and Dancing with the Stars retumed to China

Latin Amenica

BBC Entertainment was named by milenio newspaper as the Best Pay TV Channel in Mexico for a third successive year Digital sales growth continued,
including new deals with Enter Play Brazil and Veo Mexico Format sales remained strong, eaming free-to-arr pnme-time scheduling for What Not to Wear in
Brazil and for Dancing with the Stars n Panama and Costa Rica Docfor Who and Sherfock were sald to Brazifs TV Cullura, while deals with major parn-
regtonal TV networks including TNT, HBO, Fox Histery and A+E, helped BBC content reach new audiences across the region Natural history tifies receved
theatrical release as well as a programmung block on Ecuador's Ecuavisa
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Financial performance

BBC Wordwide's overall operating performance for 2014/15 was positive
and our shareholder retum set a new record

Headline results

The agreement reached in October with AMCN for its purchase of 49 9%
of BBC AMERICA has had a signficant effect onour yearon-year
performance In order to demonstrate the impact of this transaction on our
results and o pronde a more meaningful year-on-year companson, we
have analysed the income statement and the related notes between
BBC AMERICA and the ongoing operations The sirategic rationale for this
transaction i5 sel oul on page 7

Headline sales of £1,001 8m were down by 3 9% (2013/14 £1,042 3m), and
headline profit of £138 6m was down by 119% (201314 £1574m) as
defaled in fables 1 and 2 Adjusting for the effecl of the AMCN venture,
ongoing headline sales were broadly flat at £848 1m (2013/14 £844 5m) wath
ongoing  headine profitof £1272m (201314  £1222m), showing
a4 1% increase These results were in spite of movements i foreign
exchange, which adversely impacted headline sales by £19 5m and headine
profit by £3 2m, primanly dnven by significart fuctuations in our three main
trading currencies, the euro, US dallar and Australian dollar exchange rates, to
which we are matenally exposed

Regional segmental resutts are reporied on pages 8-11 n the Sirategic
Report and reflect the geographical way in which we manage our business
To ensure that management has the fullest information, we also track our
giobal performance in the major business areas where we operate In the
year, we increased tolal TV and digrial headline sales by 3 2% to £345 3m
{2013/14 £334 8m), reflecimg our contmuing high levels of mvestment m
premium cortent along with an ever-increasing focus on global sales activity
and experirse Headlne sales across our total channeis business decreased
by £42 4m fo £356 Sm (2013/14 £399 3m) Of this decrease, £44 1m relates
to BBC AMERICA, refiecting undertying good performance at UKTV and our
channels activities elsewhere in the world Cur total production business
grew 3 7% to £161 6m (2013/14 £155 9m), with exceilent growth in France
more than offsetting the deferral of 8 thid senes of Da Vincr's Demans Into
the next financial period in our US produchon businass

Our headline profit margin for the ongoing business increased to 134% in
the year (201314 12 9%) despite organle revenue investment on BBC Store
and 1he first year of roling out new channel brands, whuch requires additional
investmant in both content and marketing

Statutory results

We include our share of revenues from joint ventures, pancipally those of
UKTV, in headline sales and the pre-tax and pre-interest results of our joint
ventures and assoclates in headine profit because we view these operations
as a fundamenital part of cur ongoing activihes

Headline results are used by management to measure financial
perfonmance, and are reported to the Board The segmental analysis of
results for 2013/14 has been restated to refiact the revised methodology by
which the cost of content s allocated across the regions Statutory revenua
of £851 3Im (2013/14 £892 Om) excludes our share of joint venture revenue,
and operating profit includes our head!ine profit as well as specific items,
discussed below A reconcliiation of headline profit to profit before tax is
shown opposite

Specific ltems

Specific tems are not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable to
similady utled measures used by other compamies Specific ltems are
material ltems which are highlighted by virtue of their size or Importance in
order to enable a ful understanding of our performance These items are
detailed in table 3 on page 13, and Inciude our share of the interest and tax
of joint ventures and associates, and additional deficit reduction payments to
the BBC pension scheme, of £9 4m and £8 1m respectively (2013714 £37m

Year ended 31 March 2015
1. Headline sales

Region 14/18 1314

£m £m
Unlited Kingdom 3618 3622
North America 2999 3425
Australia and New Zealand 819 760
Western Eurgpe 160 1 156 2
Rest of World 116 2 1229
Eliminations (18 1) {17 5)
Total 1,001 8 1,042 3

2 Headline profit

Region 14118 1314

£m £m
United Kingdom 527 56 2
North America 329 44 1
Austrahia and New Zealand 163 133
Western Europe 270 343
Rest of World 52 8
Eliminations 45 (03)
Total 1386 187 4
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and £23m) Otherspecific tems include £2 6m of rearganisalion costs,
pnmarily assocated with the relocation of cur head office, as well as £2 Om
relating to Impalments of mvestments in associates The presentation of
these items is consistent with prevous years

Carporate activity

On 23 October 2014, we s0ld 3 49 9% contraliing stake in BBC AMERICA to
the US entertainment group, AMC Networks We ratained a 50 1% non-
controling Interest in BBC AMERICA and received proceeds of US$200 0m
(£123 Om), recognising a disposal gain of £115 Sm, following the agreed
settlement of certain disposai-reiated habiites and transactien costs The
proceeds included US$1600m of cash received dunng the year, snd
US$40 Om of deferred consideration, recefved in Aprl 2015

Employees

Average headcount in the year was 1,829, up by five on 2013/14 Ths
movement represents the transfer of New York-based employees working on
BBC AMERICA to AMCN in October 2014, offset by hires to principalty
support our new dgial inhatlves Employee costs are outlined in table 4 on
page 13
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Tax 3. Specific items
14115 13114
Our tetal tax charge was £38 3m (2013/14 £28 1m), including £28 6m £m £m
(2013414 £13 8m) In respect of BBC AMERICA. The effect of the BBC
AMERICA disposal, mcluding the impact of non-taxable goodwill, offset  Share of interest and tax of joint ventures P 0
the increase in overall profits from the USA, a higher tax rate jurisdiction and associates (©4) @n
than the UK This, together with high-end telewision tax relief of £7 8m P ension deficit reduction payment ®n @3
(2013/14 €5 1m), contnbuted to & reduction i the total effective tax rate  Other
to 17 1% (2013/14 22 3%) as noted in table 5 Reorganisation costs 26 {7 0}
The total tax charge for the year includes £19 1m (2013/14 £24 Om) curent  Amounts written off interests in jont ventures
tax and net tax paid m the year amounted to £26 5m (201314 £37 6m),  &nd associates (20) 22)
due to timing differences between tax accounting and settlement Transaction fees 02 (0 6)
(4 8) (98)
Cash and net debt Total {22 3) (21 8)
Operating cash flow of £181 0m (2013/14 E£150 5m) reflects a reduction in
tax paid of £11 1m to £26 5m (2013/14 £37 6m) and an increased focus on 4 Employee costs
workmg capital management
QOur move lo new London headguarters n TVC dunng the fourth quarter 14115 13114
resulted in a one-off increase in cash expenditure on property of £9 5m in the £m Em
yc::r Tlhe Inf:reased c:pllal and operaim: hn';festmem |.n BBC Store and Salanes and wages {120 0) 21 4)
nnels, referred to above, also impacted the company's cash flow in the Socal secunty costs {107) (10 6)
year Other pension costs (18 2) (12 5)
| 148 9 4
The most significant movement n cash dunng the year was an inflow of Tota { J {1445
£64 5m net proceeds in relation to AMCN's purchase of its interest in BBC
AMERICA Together with our underlying performance, this has allowed us to co -
retum a total of £226 5m to our parent In the year, an increase of 30 3%, of 5. R nciliation of tax rate
which £111 3m was paid by way of dividends 1415 13114
Average naet debt throughout th ar was £32 4m (201314 £41 8m), and UK corporete tax rato 210% 230%
e e ye . Disaflowsbl ndit 15% 10%
we ended the year with net debt of £69 2m (201314 £543m) Ourdebt oo owable expenditure
Non-taxable ncome (5 1%) -
facility with BBC Commercial Holdings Limied provides us with a maximum High-end telsvision tax relief (3 5%) 40%)
facility of £202 2m, of which the final £30 Om 1s conditional on an equivalent 9 elsvision 9 (
hotding in cash Tax-exempt disposals - {10%)
Higher overseas tax rates 7 2% 33%
Balance shoet Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures
and associates (2 7%) (1 7%)
The net assel increase from £314 7m to £4056m is for the most pant  Reduction in UK tax rate - 03%
explained by the BBC AMERICA transaction, with the recogniian of an  Adjustments in respect of prior years (1 3%,) 05%
Total 17T 1% 22.3%

associate (mibally at £119 9m) less the BBC AMERICA assets soid (pnmarily
£54 8m of programme nghts and other inventories)

In addibon, we have furthered our Investment in premium content, with key
acquistions on tlles such as Doctor Who, Omhan Black and
The Musketears, condributing to an increase in distribution nghts of £32 7m

Going concern

The company ended the year, following a creditable operating performance
and the AMCN transaction wath a robust batance sheet, and able to declare
a record retumn {o our shareholder Looking ahead, with the focus on delivery
of our stated strategy, coupled with financial discipline and careful
management of our cost base, we expecl to dnve continued vatue for our
shareholder The Directors of BBC Wordwide remain confident in our ability
to operate wath our exsting financial resources, and we therefore continue
to adopt the going concem basis In preparing the accounts

Andrew Bott
Chief Financial Officer
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BBC Worldwide Executive Committee

Nameg

Background

Marcus Arthur
President, UK & ANZ

Marcus moved into his current rofe in 2013 He s responsible for BBC Worldwide's businesses in the UK and ANZ Marcus
jomned BBC Worldwide n 1991 and has held roles ncluding MD of Brands Consumers and New Vertures, Digrta! Delivery
and before that Managing Dinector, BBC Magazines

Andrew Bott
Chie! Financial Officer

Andrew was appointed fo hug current role in 2014 Prior to this from 2007 to 2013 he was CFQ of BBC Worldwide North
Amenca He joned in 1888 and n 2000 moved to New York Prevaously, Andrew held positions
at PncewaterhouseCoopers and Pearson

Tim Davie
Chief Executive, BBC

Worldwide and Director, Global

Tim took up hs current rofe in 2013 He 1s also Chawman of Comic Relef and Vice-Chair of the RTS Dunng his ten years
at the BBC, Tim has held the posibons of Acting Director-General, Director of Audio & Music and Drrector of Marketing,
Communications & Audiences

Paul Dempsey
Presldent, Global Markets

Paul took up his current rote in 2013 He Is responsibie for bullding BBC Worldwide's portfolio across predominantly non-
Enghsh speaking temtones, known collectively as Globa! Markets Paul joined BBC Worldwide In 1998 His prewious roles
include Intenm CEO and MD Consurmer Products

Charlotte Elston
Director of Communications

Chariotte joined BBC Worldwide as Director of Communications in 2010 She oversees all aneas of communications
globally including extemal and intemal communications, corperate affars and events Charlotte has previously worked at
Aegis Group plc, Pearson, Brunswick and Edelman PR

Martyn Freeman

General Counsel &
Company Secretary

Martyn was appointed to his current role in 2011 He has responsibility for all legal, business affairs, policy and regulatory
matters, and from January 2015 became Company Secretary Previously, Martyn heid a variety of roles across the BBC,
including Head of Business Affairs, Radio & Music, Factual & Leammg and News

Kirstin Furber
People Director

Kirstin s respoensible for Human Resources across BBC Worldwide She was appointed to this position in 2013, having
previously been SVP HR Pnor to joining BBC Waorldwde, Kirstin held roles at Twentieth Century Fox, Discovery Channel,
Diff Dawis, Wamer Bros and Granada Media Group

Davld Gibbons
Director of Global Operations

Dawid oversees Consumer Digial Technology, Global Technology, eCRM and Analytics, Property, Procurement and the
Global Content Supply Chain He joined BBC Worldwide in 2013 Pnor to this he held leadership pesitions in SEEK, GE
Capital, Gap and Nike

Amanda Hill
Chief Brands Officer

Amanda is responsible for developing the overarching brand strategy for BBC Workdwide Amanda manages the current
brand portfolio as well as davelopment and building of new brands She aiso oversees audience insight, trade and content

marketing

Halen Jackson
Chief Content Officer

Helen became Chief Content Officer in 2013 She oversees the creative ard commercial wision for BBC Worldwide's
Content strategy covenng commissioning, development and acquisifion actiwty, channels curation and editonal standards
Helen previously established BBC Worldwide's Indie Unit

David Moody
Director of Sirategy

David Is responsible for afi aspects of the company’s direction and strategy Dawd joined BBC Worddwide in 2004 He
previously held roles in BBC Ventures, The LEK Partnership, Singapore Telecom intemational and United News & Media

and co-founded Dataroam

Harb Scannsll
President,

BBC Wortdwide North Arnenca

Herb 1s responsible for BBC Worldwide in the USA and Canada Prior to jairung BBC Wortdwide in 2010, he was CEQ of
Next New Networks, a digital media company he co-founded in 2006 Hert was formerly Vice Chaiman of MTV Networks
and President of Nicketodean Networks
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Risk management

We are committed to supporting effective and efficient risk management practices to safeguard our people, reputation, assets and commercial performance
Risk management protects the reputation of the BBC brand as we showcase it intemationally, and ensures stabilty of commercial retums to our parent, the
BBC Our risk management approach is afigned to the BBC, to its public purpose and values and iis editorial standards This appreach is used throughout our
businesses, projects and in the formation and management of jomt venture (JV) retabonships

Tim Dawis, Chief Executive, BBC Worldwide and Directer, Global, along with the Worldwade Executive (VWEX), sponsor nsk management Divisional and
intemational boards take ownership of local nsk management processes, supported by senior managers who have clearly defined nsk accountabllities

A Risk Management and Intemal Controls Committee compnsed of WEx members and senicr managers reviews and challenges the corporate nsk register as
part of the formal quarterly nsk management process

Mitigation

Risk Themes Strategic Impacts

Reputation and standards

Risk that audiences lose confidence in
the integrnty of our business or our
content Risk we fail to represent the
character of the BBC to glkobal
audences

Harm to our reputation,
our relationship with
audtences and to the
credibility of the BBC
brand

Leadership and management behaviours that promote the BBC values
as g platform for the company's culture Emphasis on honest and open
communicatrons Policy framework, company communications and HR
processes requinng and demonstrating the appropnate behawviours

JV & associate relationships

Risk we don't maximise the potential
from our JV and associate refationships,
the pnncipal ones being UKTV, EBC
AMERICA and immediate Med:a

Under-delivenng against
audience expeactations
and our ambstions for
the JV and associate
relatonships

JV formation is always backed by a detatled definibon of the JV
benefits, purpcse, machanics and governance, with appropnate
safeguards over editorial controt Approvals framework, encompassing
BBC Public Service and akgnment, ensure that potential deals which
benefit the UK licence fee payer are explored

Content supply pipeline

Risk that ongoing acquisiion and
consolidation across the independent
sector restrcts the addressable market

Reduced drama and
factual entertainment
content, impact the
brand and channel

Dedicated Content dwrsion with expertise in content acquisition and
relationship management Qutput deals with a limited number of key
independent producers and minonty Investment stakes to increase the
pipeline of creatve output We are committed to maximising indie

for nghts in key genres Potantial strategies returns notwithstanding the BBC Store and channels strategy
changes to BBC Production
Execution of company strategy Reduce our ability to International channel team who iead negotiations and manage channe!

Risk that in-region we dc not get the
maost from our affiliate relationships, or
the right brand visibility or the nght

showcase BBC content

More vulnerable to

faunches Regions have extensive knowledge of the affilate landscape
and the expertise to get the right channel mix, platforms and
relationships Leadership experience and insight into markets to ensure

premium vs free-to-air channel mix Risk disruptive digrtat we secure the nght partners, build the nght relatronships and evolve the
that we do not achieve sufficient scale in services nght propositions in the context of a global ambitien and strategy
some regional markets Risk from -
launching new direct-to-consumer Risk operating with sub-
sefvice such as BBC Store scale regional
businesses
Information security Disclosed assets have New content path defined for ligh-value content, including dedicated \

Risk that our information assets are
compromised Risk that content assets
are disclosed or used maliciously Risk
of content piracy

reduced editonal or
commercial value
Disruption to business
operations

infrastructure and content handiing team New centralised global
solution for regional post-production achivities (e g localisation and
dubbing) Enhanced information secunty roles and responsibilites,
additional resources, and global network convergence

Trading performance and growth
Business performance 1s sensibive to
UK and infernational economic
conditions, especially the USA and
Australia, and exchange rate
movements

Adverse impact on cash
flows and reported
financial results

Business is diversified across both regions and revenue streams Risk-
averse approach to foreign currency management Central
management of budgets and pesformance, cash-flow forecasting,
careful debtor management and hedging policy

Regulatory and comphance
Potentiat for non-compliance with UK,
and international laws, especially
regulatory changes and legislation with
oextra-terntonal reach,

Cwmal or criminal
challenge Financial
penalties

Reputatonal damage

Comprehensive and enforcad policy framework including Executive
sponsorship, mandatory training programme, gutdelines, reguiar
reporing, specialist committees and steenng groups, Oversight by
Board, Executive and Risk Management Committee Central Business
and Legal Affairs resources to support

Business continuity and safety
Major incident with nsk of disruption to
operations, infrastructure and loss

of revenue

Potental for injury or
death Disruption to
hustness operations

Reputational damage

Safety management arrangements supported by policy framework,
communications, forums and guides and speciahst safety adwice
Extensive continuity plans encompassing all offices and business
operatons Training on tnternational travel safety

15




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2015

Corporate responsibility |

Highlights |
»  Team Worldwide, our employee engagement programme, is centred around the three pillars of Community, Sustainability and Challenge
+  In 2014 we joined the Ethical Trading Irntiative and will be working with them to report on our ethical sourcing actmities

»  We are working on ensuring that a sustainable way of operating becomes ‘business as usual’ at BBC Worldwide

We belleve in being a responsible corporata citizen by embedding best practices in the way we work and continuously working on improving them over tme

Ethical sourcing programme

Ethical sourcing is a core element of our consumer products business Ve encourage long-term relationshups with supplier factones in order to build trust and
a commitment to contnueus improvement All aur suppliers and licensees are required to submit ther manufacturers for approval through our ethical scurcing
pregramme in advance of production We review detalled, independent audits for factones in higher risk countries and work with our suppliers and licensing
partners to comect any I1ssues that may be highlighted Factories that do not meet our mmimum standards are not approved for manufacture urtl these

standards have been met
In 2014 we joined the Ethica! Trading tnitlative and will be working with them aver the coming year to report on our ethical sourcing activities
Environmental Issues

We are working on ensuring that a sustainable way of operating becomes ‘business as usual” at BBC Worldwide We collect data from our offices around the
world to enable us to moniter cur energy and water consumption and our waste management

In March, our London headquarters moved into TVC in West London Reducing our environmental impact was an important consideration in both the move
process and In seting up our new office We reused most of our existing IT equipment, workstations, chalrs and storage fumiture, and environmental
credentlals ware a key consideraion when we purchased new fittings, furnishings and equipment

Looking ahead, we intend to Impiement robust monitoring at TVC and our offices globally to build on the understanding of our environmental impacts and put in
place processes to reduce them further

Team Worldwide

Team Worldwde, cur employee engagement programme, was launched In February 2014 Centred around the three pliiars of Commurity, Sustainability and
Challenge, it has enabled our employees to make contnbutions to increase our postive impact on soclety and reduce our negative impact on the environment,
while helping employees collaborate, expand their honzons and have fun Through the year, our global offices underiock activibies tailored to therr local areas
Thesea ranged from physical challenges such as sporting and endurance events, to contnbuting to the local cemmunty by denating time and goods in Cologne,
Hong Kong, Londen, Miami, Mumbai, New York, Singapore and Sydney As well as providing time and goods through Team Worldwide, staff raised over
£20,000 for Comic Relief and BBC Children in Need in the UK and partner charnties in our global offices

Tim Davie
Chief Executive, BBC Worldwide
and Director, Global
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Corporate govarnance report !

Highlights

e  The BBC Executive Board and s board committees have responsibility for the overall assurance and supenvision of BBC Wondwide However, during |
the coming months it is proposed that the authonty to consider and apprave the operational maiters of the company will be delegated to the BEC
Warldwide Board

*  We take our legal and regulatory obligations serlously and we have developed clear policies, practices and traming and awareness programmes to
ensure the protaction of personal information

*»  The 4CC approvals framework embedded within our governance stnucture ensures 1hal key projects and investments are subject 10 ngorous
evaluation, ensuring compliance with each of the 4CC prior to launch

Corporate governance Is about the structure and relationships which determine the corporata direction and perfermance At BBC Worldwide
the board of directors 1s central to our governance as Is its relationghip to the other key participants, BEBC Public Service, BBC Worldwide
and staff

In the Annual Review of 2013/14 we reported that the number of directors of the statutory Board of BBC Worldwide Limited had been reduced in keeping with
the policy to streamline boards and committees across the BBC Group

However, in view of the size and significance of BBC Woridwide, the BBC Executive Board decrded that the compaosition of the BBC Worldwide Board should
be strengthened to Include two additional Non-executive Directors

The BBC Executive Board and lls board commitiees have responsibility for the overall assurance and supervsion of BBC Worldwide However, dunng the
coming months it is proposed that the authonty to consider and approve the operational matters of the company will be delegated 1o the BBC Worldwide
Board For further detail on the activities of the BBC Executive Board go to ywww.bbe co uldaboutthebbe

As of 31 March 2015, the Board was composed of Tony Hall (BBC Crrector-General} as Chalmman, Tim Davie (Chief Executive and Director, Global), Andrew
Bott (Chief Financial Officer), Anne Bulford (Managing Director Finance & Operations for the BBC) and from 16 February 2015, Dharmash Mstry
and Sir Howard Stnnger, both of whom are also Non-executive Direclors of the BBC Executive Board

Statutory matiers, such as the approval of the tompany's statutory accounts, the payment of a dividend and the appointment of a director are already reserved
to the Board of Owectors

The Worldwide Executive Committee (WEx) has principal responsibilty for the day-to-day management of the cempany WEx is chaired by Tim Davie WEx
meets weekly to discuss operational matters impacting the business

Dunng the year matters under review included plans to faunch the global genre brands BBC First in Australia and New Zealand on Foxtel and BBC Bt
and BBC Earth in Poland, and invesiments in The Musketeers S3 and Doctor Who S10 Additionally, during the year WEx reviewed people policies and
development opportursties across the comparty

WEx approves expenditure of up to £5m, beyond which the matter 18 reviewed by WEx and referred to the BBC Waorldwide Board or to the BBC Executive |
Board as appropriate for approval This ensures greater scrutiny of performance and highlights the neads of the reglonal businesses to be addressed These
Guarterty performance reviews also serve 1o strengthen connections between the regions and Content, Brands and other central functions

Content 1s central to our strategy and one of our most significant areas of expenditure The Content investment Group (CIG), chaired by the Controller of
Content Invesiment, 1s responsible for approving investments of distribution and cartain broadcast rights CIG &'so monitors the content pipeline in the context
of performance and strategic development in the business, and recommends changes in global content strategy and execution when necessary CIG
approves investments between £500,000 and £2m For investments greater than £2m, CiG reviews and recommends the investments to WEx for approval
WEx also delegates authonty to the Investment Rewiew Group, which considers and approves non-content financial Investments between £1m and £2m

Privacy and Information Security

Consumers, talent, partners and employees trust us with their persenal mformation and faflure 1o meet these expectations would fead to & senous loss of trust
In the BBC brand Qur global privacy and information securlty programmes govem how we collect, use and manage all forms of personal infermation across
our operating terntories, from collecting mformatien in a fair and transparent way to ensunng that thus information remains protected and secured at all times
This extends to information that does not directly identify an individual but which may impact on an individua!’s privacy and there has been a significant amount
of work in ths area in the tast 12 months across the organisation

We take our legal and regulatory obligations senously and we have developed clear policies, practices and training and awareness programmes to ensure the
protechon of personal information These are regularly reviewed 1o ensure that we are transparent to individuals and provide clear chaice on how we use their
data Our key focus over the next year will be preparing for the incoming EU General Data Protection Regulation which 1s due to be finalised in the next six
months As part of our compllance programme, our privacy and data protection function will be audited thes year

In terms of broader information security, we strive for continual improvement In the protection of cur busmess Information assets, especially in respect of
content Ensuring that these assets ara protected at all stages of their lifecycle Is wital to the success of our business, and that of our content partners, and to
maintalning our reputation as a trusted organisation with high standards of care This 18 especially imporiant where we share content with thind parties around
the world and we have developed robust processes for evaluating these nsks and ensunng that these partners have adequate security measures in place Our
progress in this area s routinely scrutimsed by the BBC's Internal Audit function to ensure we are managing nsk effectively.
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Corporate governance report {continued)
Four Commercial Criteria

The BBC's Royal Charter and Agreement requires all of the BBC's commerciat activibes to comply with the four Commercial Criteria (4CC) Our actmtres must:
= fit with the BBC's Public Purposes,

« not jeopardise the good reputation of the BBC or the value of the BBC brand,

+ exhibit commerclal efficiency, and

s comply wath the BBC Trust's Fair Trading Policy, the BBC's Fair Trading Guidelines and, in particular, avond distorting the market

The 4CC approvals framework embedded withm our govemance structure ensures that key projects and investments ane subject to rigorous evaluation,
ensunng compliance with each of the 4CC pnor to launch

The BBC's Far Trading arrangements (which include the 4CC approvals amangements) have been accredited with the SO 8001 2008 quality standard BBC's
fFair Trading arrangements are sublect to scrutiny by independent auditors commissloned by the BBC Details of this year's independent Fair Trading audit,
undertaken by Deloltte, together with the audit opimion, are available in the BBC Annual Report and Accounts for 2014/15

Edltorial Standards

We ara required to comply with the BBC Editorial Gukielines and the Advertising and Sponsorship Guidelines for BBC Commercial Services We have an
editorial framework which sets oul clear editonal accountability for each business area and a dedicated Editonal Standands team that offers support and advice
to our businesses During the year we continued to deliver both ontine and face-to-face training explaining the edrional, commercial and advertising standards
that we expect
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Directors’ report

The Directors present ther report and the audited consolidated financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited (the “"Company™} and ds subsidiary
undertakings (together the “Group”) and the Group's interest in associated undertakings and joint ventures for the year ended 31 March 2015

Principal activitios of the Group

The trading activities of the Group focus on the acquisition, development, exploltation, licensing and sale of intellectual property Rights are acquired
from BBC Public Service and from independent owners of intellectual property, and are exploited through a number of businesses, both wholly-owned
and partly-owned through associates and jont ventures, acress multiple formats The business 1s struclured across seven geographical regrons, these
regions are grouped into four areas UK North Amenca, Austraiia and New Zealand and the rest of the world, principally non-Enghish speaking markets,
known collectively as Global Markets The two global business areas, Content and Brands, set the strategic framework and parameters for actwities
within the regions and keep a close connection into BBC Worldwide's ultimate parent, the British Broadcasting Corporation

Strategic Report and Risk

A review of business performance, including likely future developments, i1s included in the Sirategic Report on pages 3 to11 The management of the
business and the execution of the Group's strategy are subject to a number of nsks The key business nsks and uncertainties affecting the Group are

discussed on page 15
Rasults and dividends

The consolidated profit for the year attnbutable to the equlty shareholder of the Company was £185 5m (2014 £98 1m)
Dividends of £111 3m (2014 £88 3m) wera paid dunng the year

The Directors do not propose any further dividend In respect of the year (2014 £nil), resulting in a total dividend of £111 3m (2014 £58 2m) in respact
of the current financial year and £nil (2014 £30 1m) in respect of the pror year

Acquisitions and disposals

Dunng the financial year the Group sold a 49 9% stake in its BBC Amenca channels busmess to AMC Networks Inc ("AMCN"} and, due lo the transfer
of control over the key decision-making activities to AMCN, the Group's remaining 50 1% Investrent in the BBC Amenca channels business was
reclassified as an assoclated undertaking Further detalls of this transaction are set out in Note 27 on page 63

Directors

The Directors who senved during the year and until the date of this directors’ report were
Tony Hall (Charman)

Tim Davie

Anne Bulford

Andrew Bott

Dharmash Mistry (appointed 16 February 2015)

Sir Howard Stringer (appointed 16 February 2015)

Jane Earl resigned from office as Company Secretary on 31 January 2015 Martyn Freeman and Anthony Corriette ware apponted as Company
Secretary and Deputy Company Secretary respectively with effect from 1 January 2015

Going concern

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the business has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future, and accordingly the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of the accounts Further information about
the going concern assumption 18 given In note 1(b) to the consohdated financial statements

Directors’ interosts and Indemnities

No Direclor had any interest in the share capital of the Group at 1 April 2014 or 31 March 2015 No rights to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other Group company were granted to any of the Directors or their Immediate families, or exercised by them, during (he financial year
Cwrectors’ and Officers’ Insurance cover was In place throughout the financial year as appropriate Additionally, an indemnity is in place for the Group’s
nominated Directors on the board of Austraitan entites and for BBC Worldwide Limited Directors and Officers In respect of Branch operations in
Australia The nominated Directors are held harmiless in relation to legal claims against them in their capacity as Directors and Officers, except in the
event of fraud, dishonesty or wilful default The indemnity covers all habihity :ncurred by nominated Directars and Officers to the fullest extent permitted
by Australian law and is intended to offer protection to the nominated Directors and Officers in addition to the cover under the Group's Direclors' &
Officers’ insurance policy

Disabled employees
The Group gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the candidate's particular aplitudes and abiities are
consistent with adequately meeling the requirements of the job Opportunriies are available to disabled emptoyees for traning, career development and

promotion Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Group's pohicy to provide continuing employment wherever practicable in the same or
an alternative position and to provide appropriate tramnmng to achieve this aim
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Directors’ report (continued)

Employee involvement

The Company operates a framework for employee information and consultation which complies with the requirements of the Information and
Consultation of Employees Regulations 2004 During the year, the policy of providing employees with information about the Group has been continued
through the BBC's intranet service, and employees have also been encouraged to present their suggestions and viaws on the Group's performance
through staff surveys Regular meetings are held between local management and employees to aflow a free fow of information and ideas Employees
participate directly in tha success of the business through simplified bonus arrangements

Statement as to disclosure of Informatlon to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ repart confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Group's auditor is unaware and each Director has taken ail the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make
themsetves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group s auditor 18 aware of that information

Auditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2008, the auditor wilf be deemed to be reappointed and Emst & Young LLP will therefore continue in
office

By order of the Board,

Martyn Freeman Reglstored office

Caompany Secretary Telewision Centre

9 June 2015 101 Wood Lane
London W12 7FA
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

BBC Worldwide 15 not funded by the licence fee, but we are keenty aware that, as part of a publicly-funded organisation, it rs not appropnate or desirable to
lead the market on pay, and that our remuneration policy must be bath moderate and justifiable

Over the last three years, we have been progressively simplifying our Reward offefing 2014/15 saw the final payments under the Profit Shara Plan and no
matching payment was due under the Deferred Bonus Plan Both plans are now closed and will not be replaced Directors, senior managers and all ather
emplayees now have very simply structured pay packages with a basic salary and a perfarmance-retated bonus that is at nsk «f the required results are
not acheved

Wherever possible, we use salary survey data to identify the pay range i the market for a particular role in a parficular location We continue to pay at or below
the market median in the UK and no more than 10% above the local markel median elsewhere

As part of the focus on identifying career paths across the whole BBC, we are working ta design a job grading structure that will help us ensure that payis
comectly positioned at all levels in BBC Worldwide This work, along with greater alignment between the BBC's commercial operations and public serce
broadcasting, forms a key part of our vision to create ‘one BBC'

The Sales Compensation Framework, developed with the aim of conaistently focusing our sales teams on delivenng the best possibla returm to the BBC, was
implemented in 2014/15, paying a bonus to sales staff in proportion to targets achieved We will continue 1o momtor the scheme refining it a3 necessary, to
ensure that it is delivering maximurn value for the BBC

Governance

There were no significant changes o remuneration govemance arrangements in 2014/15, with decisions affecting members of the WEX team and company-
wide reward being taken by the BBC Executive Remuneration Committee Salary decrsions affecting other staff eaming more than £125,000 (or local
equivalent) per year, and severance payments in excess of £75,000, continue to reguire approval by the BBC Senior Management Remuneration Committea
The BBC Worldwide Pay Forum, compnsing the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and People Director, continues to review other significant pay
decislons

No Indivmdual Is responsible for setting his or her own remuneration

Full details of all the above governance matters can be found in the BBC Annual Report and Accounts

Executive Directors

Thrs report summarises the remuneration of the CEQ and CFQ of BBC Werldwade, who are the sole Executive Directors of BEC Worldwide

Tim Davie was CEOQ for the full year Andrew Bott was Intenm CFQ and Executive Director of BBC Worldwade from the start of the year He was appointed o
the role permanently on 4 June 2014, moving from the LISA to the UK cn 1 September 2014

Base salary

Tim Davie's annual base salary remained unchanged throughout 2014/15 Andrew Bott's salary also remained unchanged dunng the year, though it was pard
in sterling rather than US dollars {converted at GBP1 = US$ 1 50) after hus transfer to the UK on 1 September

Annual Incentives

Annual incentives are provided through the BBC Worldwide Annuat Bonus Plan, In which all staff participate (other than those on sales schemes)

The Plan 13 a relatively simple design, with a ‘Minmum Growth Hurdle’ (a threshold level of performance), a Target Performance fevel (set to be stretchung but,
with substantial effort, achievable) at which Target Bonus Is payable, and a Maximum Bonus Pertormance leve! (above which no further bonus 1$ payablie),
set sigruficantly above Target.

Target Bonus for the CEO and the CFO 1s 50% of base pay earmings Bonus for both Executive Directors is wholly dependent on the performance of BBC
Worldwide as this is deemed to be the most appropriate indicator of their performance
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Components of reward

The following table summanses the cument key fixed and variable components of reward (excluding sates incentives) for Executives and employees

ELEMENT PURPOSE & LINK PERFORMANCE OPERATION
TO STRATEGY PERIOD

Base Salary Mantain a competitive package, at Not applcable Reviewed annually, taking into ancount the industry in
the agreed postion for the relevant which BBC Worldwide operates, location, individual
local market, racogrusing individual performance and responsibilites, and affordabiidy

contnbution and the scope of the role

REWARD FROM CURRENT INCENTIVE PLANS

Annual Incentrves Reward achievernent of short-term 1 year Bonus, calcutated as a pencentage of base pay earmings,
strategic goals and profit growth 18 payable for achieverent of profit targets' and, other

than for members of the WEx, an agreed level of personatl
performance The percentage vanes by grada (and, at
lower levels, by couniry, n some cases)
A reduced bonus 1s payable for achievernent below
Target, subject to reaching a threshold level of
performance below which ne bonus 1s payable, with
addibonal bonus avarable for achvevermnent above Target
For members of the Executive, bonus 15 between 20%
and 7T0% of base pay earmings, with the top of that range
payable at a level of profit considered to be achievable
only in exceptional arcumstances
The levels of profit performance atiracting threshold,
target and maxmum bonus are set by the BBC Executive

Remuneration Commitiee
REWARD FROM DISCONTINUED INCENTIVE PLANS
Profit Share Ptan Dnve profit performance and retumns 5 years The scheme 8 now closed Balancing payments (earmed
to BBC Worldwide's shareholder over dunng 2008-2013, but deferred for two years) will be
the long-term while promoting the mads n July 2015, after which no further payments will be
retention of key management made
The Ptan will not be replaced by any ather Long Term
ncentive Plan
BENEFITS?
Pensions Pensions are offered in line Ongoing Pensicns are offered in accondance with the &ll employee
with nommal market prachee pension arrangements.
Life assurance Life assurance 1s offered n line Ongaing 4x salary for those whao join the pension plan,
with narmal market practce 2x salary for those who don't
Pnvate healthcare Prvate healthcare 1s offered Ongong Farmuly cover for senior executives, singie cover for cthar
n line wath normal market practice at eligible employees.
middle management level and above
Car allowance With effect from 1 April 2014, BBC - Those who were already In receipt of a car allowance
Workdwide removed the car have retaned it Neither of the Executive Directors
allowance benefit for all new receves the allowance
Executive Directors and senior
managers, to align wth arangements
for all BBC employees.
1 Basad on headline profit

2 Andrew Bott wad employad on 8 US contrec! during the period 1 Aprll 1o 31 August 2014 dunng which iime he received standard US benefits ~ medical dental, hfe, acadental death and
dismemberman! dependent life and short-term diashifity insurances
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Long-term incentives

Profit Shara Plan

The Company's Profit Share Pian (PSP), which covered tha five-year period beginning in 2008/08, pravided participants with a share in profits above a set of
absolute profit (PAIT, profit after interest and tax) hurdies linked to the five-year strategic plan Annual payments commenced after three years of participation
in the plan, with balancing (| e deferred) payments made afler the end of the five-year penod For eligibte participants, the payments shown on page 22 will be
made after year end n July 2015 These are the second and final of two batancing payments due under the PSP Batancing payments are equal to 50% of the
final, full-year payments

The annual cash PSP pay-out was capped at 100% of base pay for each particapant
The PSP wili not ba replaced by any other Long Term Incentive Plan

Pension

Executive Directors who joined the BBC before 1 December 2010 are efigible to parhcipate m the BBC Pension Scheme (the Scheme), which prowdes for
pension benefits on a defined benefit basis Executive Directors wha joined the BEC on or after 1 December 2010 are eligible to join LifePian which is the
BBC’s defined contnbution amangement The BBC pays matching contributions to LifePlan for employee coninbutions between 4% and 5% Employee
contrbutions between 6% and 7% are matched plus an additionai 1% Employee contnbutions of 8% or mare receve the maximum employer contnbution of
10% There is no maximum pensionabie safary for contributions to LifePlan

Executive Dwectors who deade not to join LifePlan or are nct already an existing member ofthe Scheme are, subject to meeting the refevant critena,
automatically enrolled into the National Employment Savngs Trust (NEST) The BBC and employees curently pay 1% of qualifying eamings to NEST
Indwiduals can choose to opl out of this

Executive Directors’ pension amangements may be reviewed and amended in response to changes in legislation or similar developments
Features of the BBC's pension arrangements, including normal pension age, are prowided n the table on page 24

Details of the BBC Pension Scheme are available at www bbe co uk/mypension and details of LifePlan can be found at www frnendsiife co uk/microsite/bbe
Tun Davie became an active member of the CAB 2011 section as at 1 January 2012, and retains a deferred pension in the New Benefits section for senvice up
o that date The information (n the table on page 25 reflects his CAB 2011 benefits but ncludes the penod before he was appomnted as a director

Until 31 August 2014, Andrew Bott was employed on a US contract and partcipated m the BBC Worldwide Americas 401 (k) Retirement Plan, under the terms
of which employees may, immediately on joimng the organisation, contnbute up to 70% of pay. to a maximum of US$17,500 per annum BBC Worldwide
Americas provides matching contributions equal to 100% of the: first 5% of employee contributions Employee contributions are always 100% vested 20% of
matching contributions vest each year, becoming fully vested after five years Andrew joined LifePlan on his return to the UK on 1 September 2014 and retalng
a deferred pension in the New Benefits section for service before his transfer to the USA in 2006

CHANGES TO CEC REMUNERATION

£000s
1,334 B Baie pay BB short-torm incentives
4,130 W Long-term incentrves Benepes ) Pension
I I 508
&0 o440

Jahn Sk was CEQ *emn tha star, of this e year pence
AU Becerher 2017

P Bemosoy #s ~venm I C o 1 3ece—kor 7017
1o 1t Marth 2013

N has heen CHO 12C1
31 AMar 31 Mar 31Mar | 3iMar | 34 Mar m 3¢ has been (1O s e | Al 2013
2041 2012 2013 2014 2015 fipures o ot nelude w07 Eenst an fer loss o office
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BBC Worldwide Limited

Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Scheme ‘Old’ Benefits ‘New’ Benefits CAB 2006 Defined CAB 2011 Definad LifaPlan Defined Nationail
Defined Benefit Defined Benefit Benefit Benefit Contribution Employment
Savings Trust
{Auto Enroiment
Arrangement)
Defined
Contribution
Date Closed 30 September 31 October 2006 30 November 2010 1 January 2012 Open to all eigibie  Qpen to all eligible
1996 employees employees
Accrual 60" accrual 60™ accrual 1 67% accrual 1 687% accrual BBC will contribute  BBC will contribute
a maxonum of 1% of qualfying
Adjusted in line Adjusted in hne 10% of salary earnings
with inflation with CPI employee
contnbutes 8%
Salary Final pensionable  Finat pensionable  Careeraverage  Career average wnthk:ower sliding
revalued earmings  revalued eamings %@
Normai 60 60 65 65 N/A N/A
Pensionable Age
Earnings Cap Date of joining Capped at Capped at Capped at Uncapped Minimum Earnings
before 1 June £145,800 £145,800 £142,200 ES5668pa
1989 uncapped,
capped otherwise Maximum Earmings
£41450pa
Pensionable salary Limited at1% pa Lmitedati%pa Limiedati1%pa No restichion N/A N/A
growth before the
Earnings cap is
applied
Employee 7 5% 7 5% 4% 8% Minimum 1% of qualifying
contribution {% of employee eamngs
pensionable salary) coninbution 15 4%
Employment contracts

Employment contracts of Executive Directors recenily employed by BBC Woridwide in the UK have a maximum notice pencd of six months Contracts are
subject to earher termmation for cause [n the UK, if termination anses through redundancy, Executive Directors are entilled to one month's pay for each year
of continuing service, up to a maximum of 24 months' base pay (or 12 months’ base pay for Execubive Directors empioyed on or after 1 January 2013) This 1
now subject to a cap of £150,000 in total

Outslde interests

Where there 18 no potential for conflict of interest, and with the pnor agreement of the Charr of BBC Worldwide, Execttive Directors may hold one pad extemal
dieeclorship Remuneration which anses from directorships may be retained by the Executive This policy s to encourage the take-up of extemnal Non-
axecutive appolniments as part of the Executive Directors’ development as well as bringing broader business skilts to BBC Worldwide

During the year, no Executive Directors held pald extemal directorships
Non-gxecutive Directors

The Non executive Directors of BBC Workdwide dunng the year were Tony Hall, Anne Bulford, Dhamash Mistry (from 16 February 2015) and Sir Howard
Stringer (from the same date), none of whom received any remuneration in respect of thelr duties in thus capacity from BBC Worldwde
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Remuneration eamed in the year ended 31 March 2015

Fee/base Annusil PSP Taxable Pension- Total Total Total

pay bonus beanefits Related 201415 2013-14 2013-14

Single (including  (excluding

Figure Pension- Pension-

Relsted Related

Single Single

£000 Figure) Figure)
Executve Directors

Tim Dawvie’ 400 201 - 2 a7 840 670 633

Andrew Bott® 288 145 29 4 23 489 124 121

688 346 29 8 60 1,129 794 754

Non-Executive Drectors - - - - - - - -

Former Executive Directors - - - - - - 252 224

Total 688 345 29 6 80 1,129 1,046 978

1 The BBC introducaed a slary fice arrangement on 1 June 2008 for Old and New Benefits members wha joined Lhe Pension Scheme before 1 November 2006 and for all Career
Average Bsnefit members From that date ierms and conditions of employment wera changed for those employees opling for (he aslary sacrifice arrangemert and B3 a result employee
pension contributions made via Lhe satary sacrifice have been treated as employar contributions, wilh a comesponding reducton In salary Tim Davie s base salary has nol been adjusted to
reflect the mpact of the salery sacnfice His total salary sacdfice was £8 532 (2013714 £8,280)

2 Andrew Boll was an Executive Director of BEC Worldwnde throughoul the year but was ermployed on a US contracl until 31 August 2014 The figures in Ihe (able sbove include his
fermuneralion up 1o and incuding that date converted from US dallars at ihe rale prevailing at the timae of payment logeiher with his remunerstion from 1 September 20414 onwards, in
starting

Penslon gntitioments
Age as at Section Accrued Accrued Defined Pension-
31 March pension pension benafit related
2015 31 March 1 April contributions single
2015 2014  (via salary figure
£'000 secrifice)
Tim Davie 47 CAB 2011 8 5 9 37

Tim Davie became an aciive member of Ihe CAB 2011 section as &l 1 Janvary 2012 and ratains a deferred pension in the New Benaefits section for sarvice up Lo thal dale The pensions
shown relate to CAB 2011 only but Include the pericd before he was a director

Untll 31 August 2014 Andrew Bolt participated in the BBC Worldwde Americas 401(k) Retirement Plan Hs jelned LifePlan on his return to the UK on 1 September The employer
coniributiona to these two schemes were EB8k and £17k regpectively Ha retaing a deferred pension in the New Benefits sechion for sennce before his ransfer (o the USAn 2008
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicabte
law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have elected to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance wath international IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements n accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepled Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial stalements unless they are satisfled that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or loss for that period In prepanng each of the Group and parant Company financial
statements, the Directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policles and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as adopled by the EU,

+ for the parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclesed and explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless i 1s inappropriate to presume that the Group and the Company will continue
in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibillty for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website
Legistation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members of BBC Worldwide Limited

We have audited the financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited for the year ended 31 March 2015 which comprise the Consofidated income
statement, Consclidated statement of comprehensive income, Consolidated balance sheet, Consolidated cash flow statement and Consolidated
statemnent of changes in equily, the related notes 1 to 36, the Company balance sheel and the related notes afo p The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements 18 applicable law and Intemational Financial Reperting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the pasent company flnancial
statements 1s applhicable law and Uniled Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report is made solely to the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapler 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to staie to them mn an auditor's report and
for no ather purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsbility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audil work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respectiva responsibilities of Diractors and auditor

As explained more fully m the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 28 the directors are responsible for ihe preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr vew Our respenstbility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements In accordance with applicable iaw and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financlal statomants

An auydit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the financlal statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstaterent, whether caused by fraud or eror This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policles are appropriate to the group's and the parent company's clrcumstances and have been consistently applled and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconststent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course
of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstalements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Oplnion on financial statemants
in our apinion

+ the financlal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of tha Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group's
profit for the yaar then ended,

= the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopled by the European Union,

» the Company financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on othar matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2008

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year far which the financial statements are
prepared 18 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the fallowing matters where the Comparines Act 2008 requires us to report to you if, in our oplnion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
wigited by us, or

« the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums, or

* certain disclosures of Drrectors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

L.

Richard Wilson (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

9 June 201§
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2015
Ongaing Bac Ongolng aec
businessas AMERICA Tota) busimsesen ARERIZA Toted
2018 s o8 0 2094 2014
Note m En Em [m m £m
Headline sates including joint venturaes 2 948 1 537 10018 944 5 878 1,0423
[Less Share of revenue of joint ventures {150 5) - {150 5) (150 3} - {150 3)
Revenua 7978 53.7 8813 794 2 o978 (1734
Total operating coslts 3 (728 5) {423y (7708) (719 7} (62 6) (782 3)
Share of results of joint ventures and asgociates 358 - 358 259 - 259
Operating profit 1049 114 1183 100 4 352 1366
Analysed as
Headline profit 2 127 2 114 138 6 1222 352 157 4
Share of interest and tax of joint ventures and associates 4 94) - (9 4) 9.7) . @7}
Pension daficil reduction payment 4 @1) - (81 (23) - 23
Other specific items 4 {4 8) - {48 {88) - (98
104 9 14 11623 100 4 32 13586
Gains on disposals 27 - 1158 1589 41 - 41
Other gams and losses 8 (57 - (57 93 - 93)
Finance income ] 08 - 08 04 - 04
Finance expense 9 {35 - (35) 48 - (46)
Profit before tax 88 5 1273 2238 90 35.2 126.2
|Profit before tax excluding gains and losses on disposals 86 5 114 1079 869 352 1221 |
Tax charge for the year 10 (11 7) (26 8) {38 3) {14 3) {13 8) 28 1)
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholder of the parent
company 5 84 8 1007 1855 767 214 281
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year endad 31 March 2015
Orgoing [.1:14 angalrng BBC
businesass AMERICA* Tolah businssses AMERICA * Tarm
013 18 o 2014 2014 2014
m £m Em &m m tm
Profit for the year 84 8 1007 1855 787 214 98 1
Itams that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Recyciing of translation reserves on disposal of business - 61 61 - . .
Recognition and transfer of cash fiow hedges {10 9) - {10 9) 164 - 164
Tax on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive income 23 - 23 (A7) - 37
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations 18 4 28 19 2 {1 5) (5 6) (7 1)
Other comprahensive Income for the yoar 78 89 167 112 (58) [X]
Total comprehensive incoms for the year attributable to equity
shareholder of the parent company 828 1086 202.2 879 158 1037

* BBC AMERICA this compnses the rasults of New Video Channel Amernica LLC (NVCA} up 1o the date of disposal, together with the Group's gamn on
disposal (see note 27) Whiist the transaction does not meet the cnteria of a discontinued operation under IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sala and
Discontinued Operations, it 1s considered to be of sufficient Importance as to justfy the presentation of a separate column for BBC AMERICA in order to
provide a better understanding of the profit and other comprehensive iIncome for the current and the prior year
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Consolidated balance sheet

as at 31 March 2015

016

2014

Note m €m
Non-current assets
Goodwall 12 334 341
Oistribution rights 13 2028 1701
Other intangibie assets 14 279 210
Property, ptant and equipment 15 286 169
Interests In joint ventures and associates 16 148 8 128
Investments 17 131 85
Deferred tax assets 10 42 35
Dermvative financial assets 24 29 34
4617 2703
Current assets
Programme rights and other Inventories 18 673 1026
Trade and other receivables 19 367 2 3154
Current tax recevable 2086 127
Denvative financial assets 24 84 95
Cash and cash equivalents 666 451
Asseats classified as held for sale 21 30 -
5331 4853
Total assets 894 8 755 6
Current liabllities
Interest-bearing loans and berrowings 23 03 07
Trade and other payables 20 405 2 3278
Current tax liabiliies 48 26
Provisions 22 53 47
Derivative financial liabilities 24 102 11
4256 3367
Non-current liabitities
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 23 1355 a7
Trade and other payables 20 08 08
Prowisions 22 19 05
Derivative financial habilities 24 62 20
Deferred tax habilies 10 192 22
1838 104 2
Total liabilities 589 2 440 9
Not assots 405 & 3147
Equity
Share capital 25 02 02
Hedging reserve 26 (30) 56
Translation reserve 25 121 132)
Relaned earnings 28 398 3 3221
Total equity 4066 3147

These consohdated financial statements of BEC Wordwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Boeard of Directors on §
June 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

=

Andrew Bott
Chief Financial Qfficer
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2015
018 ma
Note tm tm
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated fram operations 28 2175 188 1
Tax paid (26 5) {37 6)
191 0 150 5
Cash flows from Investing activities
Interest received [+F] 04
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 16 265 182
Purchases of distribution rights 13 {1459) (1422
Purchases of other intangible assets 14 (117 77
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 15 {203) (19)
Proceeds on disposal of avalable-for-sale investments - 18
Disposal of operations net of cash disposed 27 845 257
Acquisition of interests in joint veniures and associates 18 {36) (0 4)
Acqulsition of Invastments (54) 28)
Amounts advanced to related parties 01 0 4)
Repayment by related parties 03 20
(949) (107 1)
Cash flows from financing activitios
Interest pard 33 {4 8)
Drawdown of loagns and borrowings 64 255
Equity dividends paid 11 (111 3) (88 3)
(78 2) (67 4)
Nat Increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 179 {24 0)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 451 747
Foreign exchange translation gains/{fosses) 36 {5 6)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 566 451

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised entirely of cash at banks and on hand
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2015

tham Hadging  Tramsistion Reialned Tetd
crpital erve reesrve agminge aquity

km L] m i Em

Balance at 1 April 2013 02 (7 1) (61) 3123 299 3
Profit for the year . - 981 96 1
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - 164 - - 164
Tax on itemns taken directly {0 equity - (37 . - (37
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations - - {71) ' 74
Total comprehensive income for the year - 127 i71) 98 1 1037
Dividends paid (Note 11) - - - (883) (883
Balance at 31 March 2014 02 56 (132) 3221 347
Profit for the year B . - 1855 1855
Recycling of translabon reserves on disposal - - 61 - 61
Retognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - (109} . . {(109)
Tax on items taken directly to equity - 23 - - 23
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - 19 2 * 19 2
Total comprehensive income for the year - {86) 253 18585 2022
Dvidends paid (Note 11) - - - (1113) (111 3)
Balance at 31 March 2015 02 (3 0) 121 396 3 405 8
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Principal accounting policies

BBC Worldwide Limiuted (the “Company”) i1s a company domiciled and Incorporated in the United Kingdom, and s registered address 1s Television
Centre, 101 Wood Lane, London W12 7FA The consolidated financiat statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 compnse the
Company and ils subsidiary undertakings (together the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in joint ventures and associated undertakings

These financial statements are presented in pounds stering because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group
operates Foreign operatlons are included in accordance with the policies set out below

{a} Basig of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared In accordance wath International Financial Reporbng Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union {the EU), the Compantes Act 2006 and Article 4 of the EU International Accounting Standards Regulations

The financial statements are principally prepared on the historical cost basis Areas where alternative bases of accounting are applied are idenbfied in
the accounting policies below

The BBC AMERICA column included in the Income staternent and the relevant notes comprises the results of NVCA up to the date of disposal,
{ogether with the Group's gain on disposal (see note 27) Whilst the transaction does not meet the criteria of a discontinued operation under IFRS 5
Non-Cument Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations , it is considered to be of sufficient importance as ta justify the presentation of a
separate column for BBC AMERICA in order to provide a better understanding of the profit and other comprehensive income for the current and the

prior year

{b) Going concern

The Board remains satisfied with the Group's funding and liquidity poslitiecn The disclosures on page 19 in the Directors’ Report in respect of going
concern form part of the audited accounts

As at 31 March 2015, the main source of debt funding was an unsecured credit facility with BBC Commercial Holdings Limited (BBCCH) expiring in
September 2016 Further information in respect of this facility is included in note 23

On the basis of its forecasts, both base case and adjusted, and having regard to available and anticipated financing faciities, the Board has con-
cluded that the going concem basis of preparation continues to be appropnate Further information in respect of liquidity nsk 1s included in note 33

{c) Basis of consofidation

i Subsidianes

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (and its
subsidiaries) made up to 31 March each year Control 13 achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policles of
an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from is aclivities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or drsposed of duning the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effectlve date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropnate VWhere necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financlal statemenis of subsichanes
to bring the accounting policles used into iine with those of the Group Al Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eiminated on
consaoligation

Non-coniroliing interests in subsidianies are identified separatety from the Group's equity therein The interests of non-controlling shareholders are
mitially measured at their proportionate share of the falr value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests is increased or decreased in proportion to the non-controlling interests’ share of any subsequent changes in equity

Changes in the Group's interests in subsichanes that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions The carrying amounts
of non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect any changes in therr, and the Group's, relative interasts in the subsicianes Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the far value of the consideration pald or received s recognised directly in equity
and attnbuted to the owners of the Company

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is catculated as the difference between () the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest (net of disposal costs), and (i} the pravious carmang amount of the net assets
of the subsiciary (Including attnbutable goodwill) and any non-controlling interests Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relaticn to the subsidlary are reclassified to the income statement or transferred directly to retained earmings as appropriate The fair value of any
interest retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control1s lost s regarded as the cost on initral recognition of an investment in a joint

venture or associtate
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Principal accounting policies {continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
i Jownt ventures and associates

A joini venture 15 a type of joini arrangement whereby the parties that have jomnt control of the arrangement have nghts to the net assets of the joint
venture. Jont contro! 1s the contractually agreed shanng of control of an amangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
vequire unarumous consent of the parbies sharing control An associate is an entity over which the Group has significart influence Significant
mfluence 1s the power to partraipate in the financlai and operating palicy decislons of the investee, but i3 not contro! or joint contro! over those policies

The results and assets and latbilities of joint ventures and associates are incorporated into these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the Investmeni is classified as held for sale, in which case it Is accounted for in accordance wath IFRS 5 Non-curment Assels
Held for Saie and Discontinued Operations

Under the equily method, investments in associates are carrred in the consolidated balance sheet at cost, adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of the net assets of the joint venture or assoclate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments

Where the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the joint venture or associate, the canying amount Is reduced to nil and
recagnihon of further losses 1s discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the |oint veniure or associate

Where a group entity fransacts with a joint venture or assocate of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the relevant joint venture or associate

The Group accounts for Its share of the results and net assets of is joint ventures and associates using mformation as of 31 March with the exception
of Chlidren's Character Bocks Limited, Woodlands Books Limited, Educational Publishers LLP and JV Programmes LLC which have baen included
using information from unaudited accounts drawn up to 31 Decamber The impact of these non-coterminous year ends 18 not considered matenal

(d} Adoption of new and revised standards

At the beginring of the current period, the Group adopted the following accounting pronouncements, none of which had a significant impact on its
results or financial position

* IFRS 10 (2011) Consolidated financial statements

= IFRS 11 (2011) Jolnt arrangaments

* IFRS 12 (2011) Disclosure of interests in Gther Entities

= |AS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statemenils (Revised)

* |AS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Jomt Ventures (Revised)

*  Amendment to IAS 32 (2011} Financial instruments Presentation

*  Amendment to IAS 36 (2013) /mpairment of Assels

= Amendment to IAS 39 (2013) Financial instruments Recognition and Measurement
+ {FRIC 21 {May 2013) Levies

Al the date of authorisatlon of these financial statements, the foltowing Standards and Interpretations which have not been apphed in these financial
statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

* Amendments resulling from Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle (2013) (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 July 2014)

* Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle (2013) {effective for periods commencing on or after 1 July 2014)

* Amendments to IAS 18 (2013) Employee Benefits (effective for penods commencing an or after 1 July 2014)

*  Amendments to IFRS 7 (2011 and 2013} Financial instruments Disciosuras (effactive for periods commeneing on or after 4 January 2015)
* IFRS 14 (2014) Regulatory Deferral Accounts (effective for pencds commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

« Amendments to IFRS 10 (2014) Consolidated Financial Statements (effective for penods commenaing on or after 1 January 2018)

* Amendmenis to IFRS 11 (2014) Jomnt Amangsmants (eflective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 206)

* Amendments to IFRS 12 (2014) Disclosures of Interests in Other Entibes (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

* Amendments to |AS 1 (2014) Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for penccis commencing on or afler 1 January 2016)

+ Amendments o |IAS 18 (2014) Property, Flant end Equipment (effactive for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

* Amendments to [AS 19 (2014) Employee Benefits (effective for perfods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

* Amendments to IAS 27 (2014) Separate Financlal Statements { effective for panods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

* Amendments to IAS 28 (2014) Invesiments in AssoCiates and Joint Ventures (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)
* Amendments to IAS 38 {2014) Intangible Assets (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

* Amendments to IAS 41 (2014) Agricuiture (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

* Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2014 Cycle (2014) (effective for penads commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

* IFRS 15 (2014) Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2017)

* IFRS 9 (2014) Financial instruments Classification and Measurement {(effective for perlods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

+ |AS 39 (2013) Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement (effective from date of application of IFRS 9)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Pnncipal accounting policies (continued)

(d) Adoption of new and revised standards (continuad)

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group In
fulure periods, except as follows

+ IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement and disclosures of Financial instruments, and replaces the existing IAS 39 (2013) Financial

Instruments Recognition and Measurement,
= IFRS 15 will impact revenue recognition, in particular royalty based income

Beyond the information abowve, it s not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards untl a detailed review has been
completed

{e} Non-statutory financial performance measures

The Group believes that 'Headline sales’ and ‘Headline profil’ are additional non-statutory measures of financial performance that provide further
guidance to help understand the performance of the business on a comparable basis year on year

Headline sales includes the Group's share of the revenues of its joint ventures, which are closely monitored by the Directors Headline profit excludes
significant items affecting operating profit (termed "specific items”} which in the Directors’ judgement enable a more complete understanding of the
Group's financial performance Specific items are identified separately by wirtue of their size, nature or incidence

Specific tems are not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companles Items which have been
highlighted for consideration include the impairment of goodwill, the Group's share of the interest and tax of joint vantures and associatas, and other
non-routine items which help to faciitate a censistent view of the Group's results

The Group also discloses profit before tax excluding gains and losses on disposals This measure reflects the overall profitability of the group on a
statutory basis, before taking into account business disposals

{1 Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method The cost of each acqulsiticn is measured at the
aggregate of the far values (al the date of exchange) of assets given and habihties incurred or assumed in exchange for control of the acquiree
Acquisition related costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred

Where applicable, the consideraton for the acquisition includes contingent consideration, measured at its acquisition-date far value Subsequent
changes in the fair value of cantingent consideration are recorded in the income statement

where a business combination 1s achieved in stages (i @ where the Group acquires an entity which was previously a joint venture, associate or held-
for-sale investment) the Group remeasures its pre-existing interest in the entity to falr value at the acquisttion date {1 ¢ the date the Group attans
controf) The resulting gain or loss, if any, 15 recognised in the income statement Amounts previousiy racognised n other comprehengive income in
respect of the entity, pnor to the acquisition date, are also reclassified to the income statemant where required

The acquired enlity's identifiable assets, llabiities and contingent liabilities that meet the condiions for recognition under IFRS 3 (2008) Business
Combinations are recognised at their falr value at the acquisibion date, except that assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale are
measured in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

{@) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrylng amount will be recovered principally through sale rather than
continuing use, they are available for iImmediate sale n their present condition and a sale 3 highly probable Management must be committed to the
sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

When the Group 15 commutted to a sale plan invotving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liablliies of that subsidiary are classified as
held for sale when the critena described above are met, regardiess of whather the Group will retaln a nen-controlting Interest In its former subsidiary

after the sale

Once classified as held for sale, non-cumrent assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs {o
sell No amorbsation or depreciation 1s charged on non-current assets (including those in disposal groups) classified as held for sale
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(h) Goodwill

Goodwll ansing on acquisition {except prior to 1 April 2007) 1s recogmised as an asset al the date thal control 1s acquired (the "acquisition date’)
Goodwill is measured as the difference between (1) the consideration paid, the falr value of any Interest held In the acquiree prior to acquisition, and
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and (u) the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and hiabilies assumed at the acquisition date

Goodwill is hot amortised but 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generaling units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated
are lested for imparment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the urut may be impaired Testing for impairment nvolves a
companson of carrying amount of the cash-generating unit with its recoverable amount, being the higher of its value in use or fair value less costs 1o
sell

Where impairment testing indicates that the carrying amount of a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the unit is written down to the
recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carmying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit An imparrment loss recognised for goodwill Is not reversed in
a subsequent period

On disposal of a subsidiary, the atinbutable amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination of the profit or oss on dispasal
{) Revenue recognition

Revenue 13 measured at the fair value of the consideration recerved or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and serwices provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts, returns, VAT and other salas-refated taxes Revenue [s recognised when the significant transfer of
risks and rewards has occurred

The Group's main sources of revenue and its policies for the recognition of such revenue are summarised as follows

* Licence fees are earned by the Group from programme content and programme formats Once a contract has been signed, licence fees are
racognised on the later of the start of the licence penad or when the assoctated programme is avallable for delivery

* Subseription fees from the broadcast of the Group's channets on pay telewision platforms, and from subscrptions to print and online publications
and services, are recogrised as earned, pro rata over the subscription perlod

= Advertising revenue generated by the regional Channels operations and from websites are recognised on transmission or publication of the
advertisement

*+ Production fees and participation royalties earned by the Group are recogmised as eamed Production fees are recognised on delivery of the
programme or on a stage of completion basis. depending on the nature of the contract with the customer Royaities are recogrised on receipt or
on an accruals basis where sufficient reliable information is available

* Revenue generated from the sale of physical and digital products through regronal consumer products operations 1s recogrsed at the time of
delivery Revenue from the sale of goods 1s stated net of deductions for actual and expected returns based on management judgement and
histoncal experience

(J) Forelgn currencles

The indivwdual results and financial position of each group company are presented in the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the
company operates (ils functional currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financiat stalements, the results and financial position of each group
company are expressed In pounds stering, which Is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated
firancial statements

Transactions n foreign currencies are translated Into the apphcable functional currency of each entlty of the Group at & monthly average exchange
rate Monetary assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling on that date Foreign
exchange differences which anse on translation are recogrised in the income statement

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilies of the Group’s foreign operations are translated at exchange
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date (the ‘closing rate’) Income and expense items are translated at the weighted average rates for the year
Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of the opening net assets and income and expense for the year to the closing rate are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated 1n equity (attributed to non-coniralling mterests as appropnate)

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences m respect of that operation recogmsed in equity are reclassified to the
income statement and Included in the calculation of the gam or loss an sale

Goodwill and far value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and kabilies of the foreign entity and
transiated at the closing rate as described above

35




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Principal accounting policles {continued)

(k) Retirement banefit costs
Contributlons to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the income statement as they fall due

Employees of the Group also participate in defined benefit schemes operated by the Group's uitimate parent, the Bribsh Broadcasting Corporation
(the "BBC") The defined benefii schemes provide benefits based on pensionable pay The assets of the BBC's main pension scheme, the BBC
Pension Scheme, are heid separately from those of the BBC Group

The defined benefit schemes provide benefits based on pensionable pay The assets of the BBC s Pension Scheme, to which the majority of
empicyees belong, are held separately from those of the BBC Group The BBC Pension Scheme is a Group wide scheme and there is n¢ ¢ontractual
agreement or stated pohcy for charging the net defined benafit cost to scheme participants  The conltribution rates are set by the penslon scheme
trustees based on valuations which take a tonger-term view of the assets required to fund the scheme's habiibes Valuations of the scheme are
performed by Towers Watson, consulling actuanes, wih formal valuations undertaken at least every three years Therefore as required by IAS 19
Employse Benefits BBC Worldwide accounts for the contnibulions payable to the scheme for the year

(} Other employeo bonefits

The Group operates a number of incentive schemaes, including the former long term incentive scheme whereby senior executives received a
proportion of thelr remuneration in the form of a share of the Group's profits, which vested over a number of years Where settlement of such
amounts i3 contingent on continued service to the Group, the cost of the arrangement 1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the sennce period
Whare no service conditions exist, the cost of the acheme 13 incurred over the period in which it is earned

(m) Taxation

The Group’s liability for current tax 1s based on taxable profit for the year, and Is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacled al the batance sheet date Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statament because it excludes items of iIncome or
expenditure which are not taxable or deductible or which are taxable or deductible in other years

Deferred tax Is the tax expected to be payable or recoverabie in future pericds and s recognised using the balance sheet hability method This
method provides for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabliities in the baiance sheet and the corresponding tax
bases used i the computation of taxable profit Temporary differences ansing from goodwill and the inibal recognition of assets or iabiities that affect
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit are not provided for

Deterred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference wll not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The carrying value of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced ta the exten! that it 13 no longer probabie that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

The amount of geferred 1ax provided is based on the manner in which fax 13 expected to anise and using tax rates that have bsen enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income stalement, excapt where 1t retates to items
recorded within other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax 18 also recorded within other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to such offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authonty and the Group Intends to settle on a net basis

{n) Distributlon rights

Distribution rights represent rights to programmes and associated intellectual property acquared wath the pnmary intention of exploiting the nghls
commercially as part of the Group’s long-term operations
Distnbution nghts acquired by the Group are either purchased, generated internally or hicensed followang the payment of an advance on royalties

Where the Group controls the respective assets and the risks and rewards attached to them, nights are initially recognised at acquisition cost or
praduction cost The carrying amount Is staled at cost less accumulated amortisation and provision for impalrment

Amortisation of distribution rights is charged to the income statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over lts estimated
average markelable hfe The expected ives of distribution nghts range from one to ten years In the case of royalty advances, amortisation is charged
as the advances are recouped

Where the camying value of any individual set of nghts exceeds management's best estimate of future exploitation revenues, a provision for
Impairment i1s recorded in the income statement immediately

For self-produced contert, gistnbution rights exclude co-production costs borne by third parhes These costs are deferred within current assets and
expensed upon recogmtion of the associated preduction ncome Production income is recognised in accordance with the Group's revenue
recognition poticies
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{o) Other intangible assets
{ Acquired intangibles

Intangible assels acquired as part of a business acquisilion are capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisiion The fair value of such Intangible
assets is valued by reference to external market values or income-based methods Income-based methods estimate the future econonuc benefits to
be denved from ownership of the asset by identifying, quantifying and separating cash flows attributable to the asset and capitalising their present
value Purchased intangible assets acquired separately are capitahised at cost After imtial recognition, all intangible fixed assets are measured at cast
less accumulated amortlsation and any accumulated mmpairment losses

i intemally-generated intangible assets development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the Group's devetopment, including software and website development, Is recognised when the
asset s technically and commerclally feasible, sufficlent resources exist to complete the development and it is probable that the asset will generate
future economic benefits Any expenditure on research or development achvities that does not meet the aforementioned critena is recognised as an
expense in the pened in which it is Incured

. Amortisation

Intangible assets with fiite lives are amortised over their useful lives using the strarghl-ine method Amortisation expense is recorded within total
aperating costs in the income statement The useful lives used for intangible assels are as follows

= Carner agreements Unexpired term of agreement
+ Software (including internally-generated software) 1-5 years
+ Other 3-8 years

Useful lives are raviewed every year and adjustments are made, where applicable, on a prospective basis

(p} Property, plant and equipment {("PPE")

Owned PPE 18 stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, other than those items that are classified as
heid for sale

Freehold land 13 not depreciated Depreciatron is charged on other PPE so as to wnte off the cost of assets to their residual value, over their expected
useful lives, using the straight-ine method When an item of PPE comprises major components having different usefut economic lives, the
components are accounted for as separate items of PPE Depreciation commences from the date when the asset 1s available for use

The useful hvas for depreciation purposes for the principal categories of assats are

« Short leasehofd buildings Unexpired lease term
*  Plant and machinery 3 to B years
*  Fixtures and fittings 3to 7 years

Assets held under finances leases are treated as PPE and depraciated over the shorter of the lease term or therr useful economic fife
The Group capialises borrowing costs with respect to amounts incurred during the construction of qualifylng property, plant and equipment
{q) Impalrment of tangible and Intangible assets excluding goodwill

Al each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounis of its tangible and inlangible assets (ncluding distribution nghts) to determine
whether there (s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment less If such indication exsts, an impairment loss 1 recogrised in the
income statement for the amount by which an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount Where an asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent of other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 15 calculated as the higher of an asset’s value in use and Its falr value less cosis to sell Value in use is based on estimated
future cash flows discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money
and the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

Imparwment losses recogrised in respect of cash generating uruts are allocated first to reduce the canrying amount of goodwill allocated to those units,
and any balance to reduce the carrying amouni of other assels in the unit on a pro-rata basis An imparment loss 1s reversed if there has been a

change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount An impalrment loss is reversed only to the exient that an asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisatron, had no impairment loss been recognised
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{r) Programme rights and other inventories

Programme nghts in this context refers to programme rights acquired for the pnmary purpase of broadcasting through the regicnal channels

operations The carrying amount Is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and prowision for imparment The Group's esbmate of the benefits

recewed from these nights Is determined to be most appropnalely aligned with a straight-iine amortisation profile for the majonty of the programme

inventory held The costis recagrised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the licence, which Is usually three years .

Programmes [n the course of production represent the costs incurred by the Group on the creation of new content where such costs will be recovered
from third parties Costs are ordinarily recovered through co-production agreements or through contracts for the provision of production services
Costs borne by the Group with a view to exploiting the resulting content through kcensing agreements are presented within Distnbution rights

Other inventories, compnsing CDs, DVDs, raw maitenals and work in progress, are stated at the lower of cost (determined on a first-in-first-out basls)
and net realisable value

(s} Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial llabliities are recognised In the Consolidated balance shaet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Financial assets and tabilHies are initially measured at fair value less any directly attnbutable transaction costs, except for those financial assets
classifled as at fair value through profit or foss, which are intalty measured at fair value

Financial assels are derecognised from the balance shest when the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows exptre or the Group transfers
substantially &ll the risks and rewards of the financial asset Financial liabilties are derecognised from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation
spectfied in the contract 1s discharged, cancelied or expires

! Classification and Measurement
Feinancial assets and liabilities are classified into the following categories specified by IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recogrition and Measurement

+ Loans and recewvables - trade receivables, loans and other receivables with fixed or determinable payments that are not queted In an active
market These are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment Interest mcome is recogrused by |
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recegnition of interest would be immatertal

= Avallable for sale flnanclal assets - isted and unlisted shares stated at fair value that are either traded in an active market or for which a fair
value can otherwise be rehiably measured Gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
with the exception of imparment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method and foreign exchange gains and iosses on
monetary assels, which are recognised directly in the income statement

* Held to maturity investments - the Group does not currently carry any financial instruments classified as held 1o matunty Such instruments might
include bills of exchange and debentures wath fixed or determinable payments and fixed malurity dates and would be measured at amortsed
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment

« Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") - assets and hiabiibes which are held for trading An asset or hability is
classified as held for trading if (i} it has been acquired pnncipally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or (1) on initial
recognition it 1s a part of a portfohio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking, or () it is a denvative that |s not designated and effective as a hedging instrument Financial assets and liabrities at FVTPL
are stated at far value, with any gains and losses ansing on remeasurement recognised in the income statement

* QOther financial liabihties - financial liabilities, including trade payables and borrowings, which are not classified as financial liabilies at FVTPL
are measured at amortised cost using the effectsve interest method, with inferest expense recognised on an effective yield basis

ii  Effective interest method

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt Instrument or financial llability and of allocating interest income
or expense over the relevant period The effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows over the expected life of
the instrument to the net carrying amount on iniial recognition

fii  Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held at FVTPL, are assessed for ndicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are
impalred where there is objectve evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initlal recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected

For certaln categones of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
asseased for impawrment on a collective basis Objective evidence of impairment of a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments or an increase in the number of delayed payments

The camrying amount of a financial asset is reduced directly by any Impalmment loss, for all financial assets except trade recelvables where the
carrying amount 18 reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade receivable is considered uncoltectible, it 1s wntten off agalnst the
allowance account Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recogmised in the Consoldated income statement
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(s} Financlal instruments (continued)
iv  Derivative financal instruments

Tha Group enters into a vanety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to inferest rate and foreign exchange ns, including foreign
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps

Derivatives are Inifially recogrused at fair value at the date a denvative contract 1s entered into, and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
each subsequent balanca sheet date Changes in fair value are recogmised immediately in the Consolidated income statement except where a
denvative 1s designated in an effective hedging relationship, as described below

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a denvative with a negative fair value 15 recognised as a financial
liabilty Derivatives are presented as non-currenl assets or liabilitles if the date of maturity of the instrument Is mora than twelva months after the
balance sheet date Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current fiabilities

v  Embedded Denvatives

Derivatives which are embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are trealed as separate derivatives when their risks and
charactenstics are not closely related to those of the host contracts, and the host contracts are not carmed at fair value Embedded derivatives are
carried In the Consolidated balance sheet at fair value from inception of the host contract Unrealised changes in farr value are recognised as gamns or
losses within the Consolidated income statement during the penod in which they arise

vi  Hedge sccounting

The Group designates certain denvatives as cash flow hedges by documenting the relationship between the hedging Instrument and the hedged itemn
along with the risk managemem objectives and its strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions Whera the hadge is deemed to have been
effective, the effactive portion of any changes in the fair value of the derivatives that are designated in the hedge are recognised in other
comprehensive Income Any ineffectrve portion is recognised smmediately in the Conscolidated income statement

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Consolidated income statement in
the periods in which the hedged items are recognised in the Consohdated income statement, in the same line of the Consolidated income statemnent
as the recognised hedged item However when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged resulls in the recogrtion of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial llability, the gains and icsses previously aceumulated in equity are transfarred from equity and included In the initial measurement of the cost
of the non-financial asset or non-financtal lability

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group de-designates the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or when the relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accountmg Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income upon discentinuation of hedge accounting 1s either recognised in the Consolldated income statement at the same time as the forecast
transaction affects profit or loss, or Is recognised in the Consolidated income statement immediately if the forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur

(t) Provislons

A prowsion is recogrused in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising from past events and it Is
prababile that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obiigation Provisions, other than those for deferred tax, that are payable
over a number of years are discounted to net present value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropriate to the particular provision
concamed

(u) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease are such that the lessee assumes substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitahised and depreciation is charged accordingly Such assets are inltially recognised al their fair value or, If
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease The corresponding llability to the lessor Is recorded as a finance
fease cbligation Lease payments are apportioned between financa charges and reductions of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaning balance of the hability

Lease income or expense arising from operating leases is recorded in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, with
any assoclated lease incentives being recorded on a straight-kne basis over the lease term as a reduchon i the rental income or expense
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1. Principal accounting policies (contihued)

(v} Critical accounting estimates and key Judgements

The praparaticn of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain cntical accounting assumptions, and requires management
to exercise ils judgement and to make estimates in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies The areas invalving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumplions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below

I} Basis of consolidation

Judgement s required in determining whether certain entities in which the Group has an economic interest should be considered to be subsidianes,
associates or jont ventures In such crrcumstances, the Group has assessed its abtity to control or influence those entities The Group controls an
investee if, and only If, the Group has power over the investea (i e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activibies of the
nvestee), exposure, ar rights, to vanable returns from s involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its
returns Where such policies are reserved such that an economic partner has the power to velo key strategic financial and operating decisions, the
entity 1s considered to be a joint venture or associated undertaking

i Carrying value of goodw/ll

The determination of whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value In use of the cash-generattng units to which goodwill has been
dllocated The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimata the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate that reflects currernt market assessments of the risks specific to the asset and the time value of money, in order to calcutate
present value Further information about assumptions used In determining the carrying value of goodwill can be found in note 12

ut  Revenue recognition

The timing of revenue recognifion requires judgement, as does the amount 1o be recognised This may invoive estimating the farr value of
consideration before it 1s received In making these judgements, the Group considers the detalled criteria for the recognition of revenue set out in
IAS 18 Revenue and, in particular, whether the Group has transferred the significant nsks and rewaros of the goods or services to the customer,

v Drstnbution nghts and programme rights

The assessment of the appropniate profile over which to recognise the amortisation of distribution nghts and programme rights involves a certan
degree of judgement Amortisation is charged to the iIncome statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its

estimaled average marketable life

v Fawr velue of financial instruments

Ceriain financial instruments are carried on the balance sheet at fair value, with changes mn fair value reflected 1n the Income statement Farr values
are estimated by reference in part to published pnce quotations and in part by using valuat:on techriques Further information about far value
measurements is provided in note 33

vt Accounting treatment and valuation of NVCA as an associate

As described In note 27, in October 2014 the Group sold a 49 9% interest in its former subsidiary NVCA to AMCN Despite the BBC Worldwide
residual 50 1% shareholding in NVCA, AMCN obtained control over the key decision-making activities of NVCA NVCA has therefore been
deconsolidated from the date of disposal and, due to the significant influence retained by the Group, NVCA has been equity accounted as an
associate from that same date The carrying value inttially ascnbed to NVCA as an associate was based on the Board's assessment of the fair value
of NVCA at the date of disposal, taking into account the praceeds received for the sale of the controling interest, the significant influence retained hy
the Group, and the retained nght to vanable returns from the investment in NVCA As disclosed in note 27, the mitlal fair value recognised for NVCA
as an associate generated an £89 2m uplift over the book value of the net assets retained, which has been recognised as part of the gain on disposal
The carrying value of NVCA at 31 March 2015, including the Group's share of equity earnings arising since N\VCA's reclassification as an associate,
is a key judgement area for the Board, to ensure that there are no indicators of imparment in the value of NVCA that might require a wnte-down of
the Group's investment
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2. Segment information

Whilst not required by IFRS 8 Operating Segments to present segmental mformation, such mformation has been provided below as it 1s considered
meaningful to the users of the accounts

An operating segment 1s a ccmponent of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expanses The results
of all operating segments are reviewed regularly by the BBC Worldwide Board {the '‘Board’) which has been identified as the Group's chief operating
decision maker in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments

With effect from 1 March 2013, the Group changed from divisional to geographical reporbing lines across seven regions, balanced by strong global
functions for content and brands Each geographical region 13 responsible for business development and delivering sales and profit growth across all

activities in the area

Managemant has determined the reportable segments based upon reports reviewed by the Board All segments reported meet the quantitative
thresholds required by IFRS 8 The reportable segments are

*  Umied Kingdom

*  North Amenca

*  Ausiralia and New Zealand
+  Westermn Europe

*  Rest of World

Segment information as presented i consistent with the Group's miternal reporting fo the Board

The Board assesses the performance of reportable segments based on Headiine sales and Headhne profit, as defined in note 1 Inter-segment sales are
conducted on an arm'’s length basis Specific items, non-trading gams and losses, and net financing costs are not allocated to segments

Information regardmg the assets and liabilities of reportable segments 18 not reported to the Board

Australia and Wesism

United Kingdom North America MNww Zeatand Europe Rust of Workd Elmlnatons Todsl

2018 £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Headline sales 3818 2909 819 1601 1162 {18 1} 10018
_Share of revenue of jont ventures {148 9) (0 8) {0 8) - - - {150 5)
Revenue 2129 2001 811 160 1 116 2 {18.1) 85113
Head!Ine profit 527 329 163 21.0 52 45 13848
Spacific items {22 3)
Operating profit 11623
Gains on disposals 1158
Other gains and losses 57
Finance income 08

Finance expense {3 5)
Profit before tax 2238

Australiy snd Wastam

United Kingdom North Americs New Zesland Europe Rust of Warks Eliminations Total

2014 £m £m Em £m _Fkm £m _tm
Headling sales 3622 3425 76.0 156 2 1229 {17 §) 1,0423

Share of revenus af joint ventures {146 1) £330 {12) - - - {150 3)
Revenue 216 1 3385 748 156 2 1229 {17 5) 892 0
Heoadline profit/{loss) * 66 2 441 133 343 88 (03) 167 4

Spectic items (21 8)
Oporating profit 1356
Gains on disposals 41

Other gamns and losses © 3
Finance income 04

Finance expanse (46)
126 2

Profit beforg tax

* The reglonal analysis of headline profit for 2014 has been restated 1o reflect the revised basis of allocation of content charge with effect
from 2015, for management reporting to the Board

The allocation of revenue to geographic segments is based upon the business reglon in which the sales are generated
Inter-regional ravenues are gliminated upon consolidation and are reflected in the *Eiiminations’ column above
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2, Segment information {continued)

whilst, as noted above, the Board now manages the group by reglon rather than by business classificatlon, the additional data set out below presents
the headline sales by business classification, in order to provide an understanding of the size of each of the major business types

Ssbas and Production & Consumer
Channela Dlstributhon Farmats Producis Qther Eftminations. Totst
2018 £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
Headline sales 3569 3453 161 6 124 4 873 (53 7) 1,001.8
Share of revenue of jont ventures {143 9) {07) - (0 1) (5 B) - (150 5)
Revenus 2130 34 € 161 8 1243 615 (837 8513
Salss snd Preduchon & Consurmer
Channets Ciatribubon Formats Products Other Elirmnalons Total
2014 Em £m Em £m £m £m £m
Headling sales 399 3 46 1659 1461 588 (53 4) 1,0423
Share of revenue of jaint ventures (130 2) {2 7) - {0 3) (81) - (150 3)
Reovenue 260 1 N9 1659 1458 517 (53 4} 8320

Inter-segment revenues are eliminated upon conschdation and are reflected in the ‘Eliminations’ column above

The Group's geographical reportable segments reflect management reporting lines and do not solely correspond to the country or region after which they

are named The Group's revenue by country of deslination was as follows

Huidline Sham of JV Hasdlns Share of JV

waicy L1 ) Ravanus salus venuy Ravenue

018 018 018 014 w14 014

£m Em £ £m Em £m

Urited Kingdom 3382 (145 1} 1941 3837 (141 7) 2220
United States of Amesnica 2785 (c8) 2777 3157 30) 3127
Australia 724 ©8) 718 66 6 {2 1) 645
Rest of World 17 (4 0) 307 7 296 3 {3 5) 2928
10018 {150 &) 8511 1,042 {150 3) 8920

The Group's non-current assets, other than financial Instruments and deferred tax assets, located in the UK are £298 8m (2014 £241 6m) and located

outside of the UK are £155 8m (2014 £21 8m}

Further analysis of the Group's revenues by product or service line is not provided as this information 1s not routinely reported to the Board
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3.  Total operating costs
Operating costs from continuing operations compnise the following categones of expense
Gngaing Ongoing
businessas BBC Amerian Total businezses BBC Amenca Total
2015 2018 218 014 w04 2014
im Em £m Em tm &m
Cost of sales 4980 290 5280 4327 420 524 7
Distnbution costs 789 46 835 792 69 86 1
Administration costs 150 6 87 159 3 1578 137 1715
Total operating costs 7285 423 7708 7197 82.8 7823

4, Specific items

Share of interest and tax of joint venturas and assoclates

The Group views [ts investments as being a fundamental part of its ongoing operations IFRS requires that the Group reports Its share of the results of
Joint ventures and associates on an after-tax, after-interest basis The Interest and tax charges borne by joint ventures and associates have been added
back wittin Headline profit as a specific item, in order to present an operating profit measure wihich more appropriately represents the way in winch the

business 1s reviewed and assessed internally

Peonsion deficit reduction paymeant

Aas described in note 31, the Group accounts for contributions to the BBC Pension Scheme as «f #f were a defined contribution scheme In March 2015,
the Group made an additional tax-deduchble cash payment of £8 1m (June 2013 £2 3m) to the BBC in connection with the BBC's deficit reduction plan
As this payment 1s not reflective of the ongoing service cost of active scheme participants, managernent belleves It is appropriate to present this cost as
a specific tem Further payments are expected {0 be made in future years as descnbed in note 31

Other specific items

Ongoing Ongaing

buiirasses and buninessas and

o hotal

201% 24

Em £m

Reorganisation costs 28 T
Amounts written off interests in joint ventures and associates (20) (22}
Transaction fees (02) (0 6)
(48) (98)

Reorganisation costs in both years are tax-deduchble and settiad in cash, and include redundancy and similar costs arlsing as a result of changes to the
Group's organisahion structure, and costs asscciated with the relocation of the Group's head office

Amounts wntten off interests in joint ventures and associates in the year ended 31 March 2015 were denved from a companson of therr respective book
values with discounted cash flow forecasts The charge in the prior year related to the associate AudioGO, which was written down to £nii due to that
company bewng in administration Such wnte-offs are non-cash and non-deductible for tax purposes
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5. Profit for the year

Profit for the year 15 stated after charging/{crediting)

Ongoing Ongving
businwzses BBC America Total businesses BBC America Tolal
Fial ] wme 05 014 e 2014
&m Em om &m Emn £m
Rentals on operating leases and simllar arrangements 137 D4 141 109 08 117
Sut-lease rentals recerved on operating leases {0 2) - (0 2) (0 6) - {0 6)
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses (0 5) - (0 5) 61 - 61
Government grants receivable (0 1) - 01 (10) - (10}
Cepraciation on property, plant and equipment (note 15) 78 02 80 76 01 T7
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 15) . 09 09 - - -
Amorhsation of intangible assets
Distnbution nghts (note 13) 1130 - 1130 1034 - 1034
nternally generated software assets 34 - 34 30 - 30
Other intangible assets 10 - 10 17 - 17
Programsme nghls and other inventories
Cost recognised as an expense
- programmes in the course of production 830 08 835 803 14 817
- broadcast rights and other inventories 488 146 834 492 223 715
Write-downs recognised as an expense 38 06 44 41 12 53
Employee costs (note 7) 142 8 61 1489 1331 114 144 5
Impairment 10ss recogmsed on loan receivables 01 - a1 06 - 06
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables (note 19) 10 a1 11 33 - 33
Reversal of imparment losses recognised on trade receivables (note 19) {2 8) - (2 8) (09) - (0 9)

Amortisation of distribution nghts is recorded within cost of sales Amortisation of other intangible assets, including internally generated software assets,
1s recorded withun adminstration costs

6. Auditor's remuneration

Ongoing Ongoing
businesses BdC Amenca Towd businesaes BBC America Total
201 20 013 2014 Foall M1
I tm &m m £im Im
Fees payable to the Company’'s auditors for the audit of the Company's
annual accounts 04 01 05 03 . 03
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and thelr associates for other
sorvices to the Group
The audit of tha Compary's subsidlarles pursuant to legistation 02 - 02 02 - 02
Total audit fees 086 01 0.7 08 - 08
Tax services 02 - 02 01 - o1
Other services 01 - 01 - - -
Total non-audit fous 03 - 03 01 - 0t
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7. Employee costs
The average number of empioyees during the year was as follows
Ongoing Cngoing
businesses BAC Amarice Tots} businassas BBC Americe Totat
WAs e w01é 014 201¢ 2014
Numbaer Nurmber Nuthber Nurrtbes Number Number
United Kingdom 438 - 438 453 - 453
North America 380 86 445 363 151 514
Australia and New Zealand 197 . 197 179 - 179
Western Europe 324 - 324 288 - 288
Rest of World 424 - 424 380 . 390
Total number of employeos 1,743 86 1,029 1,673 151 1,024

Within the averages above, 93 {2014 98) part-tma employses have been included at therr full-time equivalent of 86 (2014 64), including casual staff

The aggregate remuneration reccgnised in the Consolidated income statement in respect of these employees, including casual staff, comprised

Ongalng Ongoing

busnszsen BHC Amarica Totsl businesses BBC Ametics Total

2018 0t 2011 2014 mae MW

im Im Em Em £m &m

Salarles and wages 114 4 56 1200 1109 105 1214
Soclal secunty costs 104 03 107 100 06 106
Other pension costs 180 02 18 2 122 03 125
142 B 61 1489 1331 1.4 144.5

In addition to the above, redundancy costs and compensation for loss of office payrnents totaling £1 3m (2014 £5 1m) were incurred in the year

The remuneration of the Directors dunng the year was as follows

Cngoing Ongoing
Busihestws and businassas apd
total otsd
w01a 014
000 £000
Emoluments 1,040 o971
Long-term incentive schemes 29 7
1,069 978
The number of Directors to whom retrement benefils have accrued throughoult the yaar under the following schemes s as follows
Ongoing OUngoing
businesses and  buskhesses and
o) totel
018 044
Numbaer of Numkrer of
Directors Dirmctors
Defined benefit schemes 1 2
1 1

Money purchase schemes

Further detads of Cirectors' remunerabon are provided in the Report on Directors’ remuneration on pages 21to 25

compensation eamed by key management can be found in note 34

The Group contributed £23 000 (2014 £3,000) to money purchase schemes for its Directors in the year

The rernuneration of the highest paid Director during the year was £603,000 (2014 £633,000)
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8 Other gains and losses
Ongeing Ongoing
businessas and businessas and
totl totsl
2018 w4
om Em
Change i fair vatue of dervative financial instruments (4 0} 81
Change m far value of available-for-sale financial assets - 1
Recognition of share of net habilities of joint ventures (note 16) . {16 5)
Increase in eam-out payments due in respact of prior acquisitions (13) -
Reduction in eam-oul procesds receivable on pnor disposals 4 -
(5.7) {93)
9. Net financing costs
Ongalvg Ongoing
busthesses and businesses and
tota) tota)
o w014
(L] Em
Interest recenvable 08 04
Finance Income 08 04
Interest payable on loan from parent undertaking 18 17
Interest payable on derivative finan¢ial instruments 12 23
Other interest payable Q5 06
3.8 48

Finance expense
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10. Taxation

Tax charge for the year

Ongoing Ongoing
businesses BBC Amaerica Yotal businessas 88C Amarica Tats)
ams 201 2018 014 209 w014
tm m &Em om m Lm
Current tax
UK corporation tax - 57 57 42 - 42
Foreign tax 135 33 168 64 138 202
Adjustments in respect of prior years (34 - {34 ()] - 04
101 990 191 10 2 138 240
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of iming differences 09 176 185 26 - 26
Reduction in rate of UK corporation tax 01 . 01 04 - 04
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 06 - 06 11 - 11
16 17.6 19 2 414 - 41
Tax on profit on ordinary actlvities M7 266 383 14 3 138 281

The UK corporation tax charge 1s net of & credit of £7 8m (2014 £5 1m) in respect of High-end telewision tax relief
A tax credit of £2 2m (2014 £2 2m}) 13 included in the Consolidated income staterent in respect of specific items (note 4)

In addition to the amount charged to the Consolidated income statement, a tax credit of £2 3m (2014 charge aof £3 7m) has been recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of financial instruments treated as cash flow hedges

Reconclliation of tax expense

The total tax charge for the year Is lower (2044 {ower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21% (2014 23%) The tax charge can be
recongiled to (he profit per the Consolidated income statemen as follows

Ongolng Ongaing

businastas BBC Ammrica Total businassaz BOC Amanca Totat

2018 2018 s 014 Eea 014

im £m £m £m Em £m

Profit before tax 96 5 1273 2238 910 352 126 2
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 21% (2014 23%) 203 267 470 209 81 200

Effects of

17 15 32 23 - 23

Disallowed expenditure
Non-taxable income

113} {11 3) - - -

High-end telewision tax retief (78) - (78) 51) - 51
Tax-exempt disposals of businesses - - - (12 - (12
Tax differential on wholly-owned overseas eamings 63 97 160 (16} 57 41
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures and associates {6 1) . 81) {z1) - 21)
Reduction in rate of UK corporation tax 01 - c1 04 - 04
Adjustments In respect of previous years 28) - (28) 07 - o7

Tax charge for the year "7 266 383 143 138 281
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10. Taxation {continued)

The amount of tax paid in the year is different from the tax charge, due mainly to the timings of payments UK corporation tax 18 payable i four
mnstalments two of which are made after the end of the year in wiuch the tax arises, i e some of the tax included in the 2013/14 tax charge was paid
In 2014/15 The payments are based on the best estimate of the tax charge at the time the payment 15 made The fina! tax hability is determined when
the tax return for the year is prepared and submitted to HMRC some time after the year end In addition, the tax charge in the accounts is a best
estimate at the time the accounts are prepared The charge 1s then adiusted in later years to reflect the actua! tax llability ansing from the submitted

tax returns

Factors affacting future tax expense

The UK Government has announced a phased reduction in the main rate of corporation tax in the UK CGn 1 April 2014, the rale was reduced from
23% to 21% A further annual reduction 18 expected to follow In the next year, reducing the corporation tax rate to 20% from 1 Apn! 2015 Deferred tax
has been calculated applying the tax rates that have been enacted at the balance sheet date with no materal effect on the group

Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabiihes and assets recogrised by the Group, and the movement thereon, during the current and prior year

Fixed aszat

temporary Financial
i, n Otver Towd
km m im Em £m
At1 April 2013 38 34 31 {(14) 89
Charged to the income statement (0 6) (05) (13) (17) 41
Charged to other comprehensive Income B - {37) - an
Forelgn exchanga translation gains and losses 04 12 - {14) 02
At 31 March 2014 kY 41 {19 (4 5} 13
(Charged)/credited to the income statement 03) 15 a8 (212) {(192)
Credited to other comprehensive income - - 23 - 23
Forergn exchange translation gains and logses - 11 - (0 5) 06_
At 31 March 2018 33 67 12 {26 2) {15.0)

Other deferred tax balances predominantly relate to deferred tax on deferred capital gains and fair value interast in joint venture intangibles

Defarred tax 1s recorded in the balance sheet as follows

06 014

&m Im

Deferred tax assets 42 35
Deferred tax liabilitias (19 2) (2 2)
Net doforred tax (liabillty)/asset (15 0) 13

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried forward are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets ansing on capital losses totaling £170 0m (2044 £170 Om) These
assets have not been recogrised on the basis that there 1s insufficient certainty that capital gains will arlse against which the Group can utilise these
iosses There s no lime kmit for the uttisation of those losses

Al the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differances associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred
tax liabliities have not been recognised was £0 3m (2014 £0 1m) No hablity has been recognised In respect of these differences because the Group
is In a position to control the tirming of the reversal of the temperary differences and those differences are not expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future

Temporary differences ansing in connection with the Group’s interests in the undistnbuted retained earnings of associates and joint ventures are not
considered to be matensal in either year
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11. Dividends
|
0% 014 '
&m tm |
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders In the poriod
Interim dividends for the prior year of £mi per share (2014 £120 24 per share) - 301
Interim dividends for the current year of £445 36 per share {2014 £232 80 per share) 111 3 58 2
1113 B8 3
12. Goodwill
2018 iMe
im Em
Cost and net book value
At beglnning of the year M1 31
Foreign exchange transtation losses {on (2 0)
Carrylng amount 34 41
Goodwill, allocated by cash generating urut ("CGU"), is analysed as follows
01 014
Em £m
Consumer distribution 254 254
Australian Channels 80 87
334 g1

The Group tests goodwll for impairment in the accounting penod in which a business combination takes place, thereafier annually, or mere frequently
if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired

The recoverable amounts of the CGU's are determined from vatue in use calculations The key assumphions used for these calculations are those
regarding discount rates and growth rates Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assesaments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to each CGU

No goodwill impairment has been recogrused to date

Consumer distribution business

The goodwll in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisttion of 2 entertain on 8 August 2008 The cash flow projections used In determining value in
use are based on the current business plan approved by management, which covers a five year penod after which cash flows have been extrapolated
using an expected long term growth rate of -6% (2014 -6%).

A discount rate of 11 7% (2014 14 4%) has been applied to the cash flows

Management 1s of the view that any reasonably possible change in key assumphons would not cause the carrying amount to exceed s recoverable
amount

Australian Channels business

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of UK TV on 1 July 2008 Cash flow projections used in the recoverable amount
calculation are based on financial budgets approved by management covenng a period of five years (2014 five years) and a discount rate of 11 9%
(2014 14 9%) Cash flows beyond the forecast penod have been extrapolated using an expected growth rate of 1 0% (2014 1 0%) The terminal
growth rate assumes contractual rates remaming in place and a modest growth of subscribars as per external sources Cash flow projeclions are
consistent wilh the business acquisition plans and those used In the previous year

The main assumption on which the forecast cash flows are based 1s license fee rates In forming its assumptions about license fee rates, the Group
has used a combination of long term trends and recently contracted terms

Management believes that any reasonably possible change m the key assumptions on which the value in use of UK TV is based would not resuit in
any impairment
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13. Distnbution rights

2018 014
&m m
Cost
At 1 April 4746 3269
Additions 1459 1422
Foreign exchange transiation gains 17 55
Fully amortised nghts wriiten off 02) -
At 31 March 6220 474,68
Amortisation
Al 1 April 3045 1953
Charge for the year 1130 1034
Foreign exchange transiation losses 19 58
Fully amortised rights written off (02) -
At 31 March 419.2 304.5
Not book value 2028 1701

Included within distribution rights 15 self-funded content In the course of production totalling £5 3m (2014 £8 8m)
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14 Other intangible assets

Sarrier

Agresments Soltwary Other Totsl
2018 im &m £m Em
Cost
At 1 Apnl 92 461 07 56 0
Additions - 117 - 117
Disposals - (137 - (137)
Forelgn exchange translation losses 07 - - 07
At 31 March 85 441 07 533
Amortisation
At 1 Aprit a1 313 ) 350
Charge for the year ce 3a - 44
Disposals - (137 - (137)
Foreign exchange transtation gains ©02) . [())] (0 3)
At 31 March 35 214 0s 254
Nat book valus 50 227 02 279

Carner

Agresmants Boftware Othvar Total
2014 Em m itm Em
Cost
At 1 Apnl 113 88 ag 520
Additions - 77 17
Disposals - (16} - {15)
Foreign exchanga translation (losses)/gains {21) Q1 {0 2) (22)
At 31 March 92 461 [} 560
Amortisation
AL Apni 31 287 ot 325
Charge for the year o7 40 - 47
Disposals - {15) - (1 5)
Forelgn exchange transtation (gains)losses 07 01 01 {07)
At 31 March 31 M3 086 350
Nat book value 81 148 01 210

Other assets comprise adverllsing retationships and non-compete agreemants

Of total software additions recogrised during the year £10 6m (2014 £7 5m) related to internaily developed software
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15 Property, plant and equipment

Freehohd  Bhornt asehold Plant and Fixturea Ansaits under

L snd fitings construction Totsl
1018 m om tm m £m tm
Cost
At 1 April 02 1227 304 115 14 56 2
Additions - 122 68 13 - 203
Disposal of subsidianes - (02) . - - {0 2)
Other disposals - (0 4) 20) {0 4) - {28)
Transfers - - 14 - {14) -
Foreign exchange (ranslation gains - 02 04 01 - Q7
At 31 March 02 245 e 126 - T42
Dapraciation
At Y April - 9¢ 2009 94 - 93
Depreciation charge for the year - 30 KR} 12 - 80
impalrment charge for the year - 09 - - - 09
Disposal of subsidlaries - {01) - - - {0 1)
Other disposals - (0 4) 20) {04 - (28)
Foreign exchange translation losses - - 02 01 - 03
At 31 March - 124 229 103 - 456
Net book value a2 121 141 22 - 286

Freshotd  Shorl keasehald Plant and Fixturas Ansata under
and fittings construction Totad

014 Em Em fm Em m m
Cost
At 1 April 02 136 331 119 22 610
Additions - - 15 04 . 19
Disposals - (01 41) (0 4) - “46)
Transfers - - 08 - {08 -
Foreign exchange translation iosses - (0 8) 09) (0 4) - (2 1)
At 31 March 02 127 30.4 11.5 14 562
Depreclation
At 1 April - 68 219 a8 - ars
Charge for the year - 27 38 12 - 77
Disposals - 01) 4 1) (04 - (46
Foreign exchange transiation gains - (0 4) (07} (0 2) - (13)
At 31 March - 90 209 94 - 393
Net book value 02 37 95 21 14 169

At 31 March 2015 the Group had contractual commitmenis for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment totaling £1 3m (2014 £7 9m)
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16. Interests in joint ventures and associates

A Jist of the Group's significant interests in jotnt ventures and associates including the name, country of incorporation and proportion of ownerstip
interest, 13 given in note f to the Company financial statements

The movements in joint ventures and associates dunng the year were as follows

Joint ventures Asgociyten Totst Jeinl ventures Asnoclales Tolwl
018 018 201 2014 1014 04
£m £m tm Em im £m
At 1 Apnl 07 121 128 193 180 353
Additions 06 1229 123 & 04 - 04
Disposals - - - {9 8) (14) (113)
Recognition of share of net liablhties - - . (16 5) - (16 5)
Reclassification from other investments - 038 08 - - -
Share of results 276 82 358 254 05 258
Adjustment to prowison for unreallsed profits 11 (0 5) D& {0 1) 01 -
Dividends receivable (29 6) {24) (32 0} (17 9) 03) {182)
Forewgn exchange translation gains/(losses) oz 121 123 - {0 6) 08)
Amounts written off - (2 0) (2 0) - {22) (22)
At 31 March (L] 1512 151.8 0.7 121 128
Jomt ventures and associates are recorded In the balance sheet as follows
Joint yentures Associsies Totst Jolnt venturas Ansociatas Total
1% 01E 1018 2014 w14 2014
fm (1] tm £m &m Em
Interests in jomnt ventures and associates 06 1482 1488 07 121 128
Non-current assets held for sale {(note 21) - 30 30 . - -
[+ X} 1512 1518 07 121 128

Interests in joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures in the current and previpus years included the followang material oparations

UKTV

BBC Worldwide has a major partnership deal with Scripps Networks Interactive ("Scripps™) for the production, marketing and supply on a wholesale
basis of free-to-ar and subscnption channels n the UK The partnership operates through the joint venture company UKTV Media Holdings Limilted

("UKTV™)
UKTV 18 financed by Scripps, and has both trade with and debt In a number of substdiary operating companies These companies previously formed a
number of discrete legal groups wath ownersiip of each held directly by the joint venture partners in accordance with |IAS 28 Joint Ventures and

Associates , BBC Worldwide equity accounted only for those joint ventures which were cumulatively profitable Accordingly, the Group did not account
for two companies within the UKTV group which had net llabliities and where BBC Worldwide had no obligation to provide further funding

Duning the prior year, UKTV management agreed in pnnciple to a reorganisation of the unified UKTV Group, which ivolved collapsing the disparate
trading subsidianes into a single trading entity As a result of tus change, which became effective on 30 November 2014, BBC Worldwide recogmised
a 50% share of those net liabilities not previously recogmised, recording a charge of £16 5m in the Consohidated income statement for the year to 31
March 2014 As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 the consohdated UKTV group was in an overail net asset position

UKTV was the only matenal joint venture undertaking held by the Group in both the current and the pnor year

Ragdoll Worldwide Limited

n April 2006, BBC Worldwade enterad into an agreement with Ragdoll Worldwide Limited to form a jont venture The purpose of the joint venture was
to exploit and manage existing Children's intellectual properties and to invest in the development of new mtellectual property rights

In May 2011, the Board resolved to dispose of the Group's interest in the joint venture and the joint venture was classified as heid for sale The joint
venture was disposed of in the year ended 31 March 2014 (see note 27)
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16. Interests in joint ventures and associates (continued)
The followng represents the Group®s aggregate share of joint ventures during the year

UKTVY Other Vs Total UKTY Othar JV's Totad

nun 018 18 E AL 2014 2014

Em m Em £m £m &m

Non-current assets 58 03 59 28 142 170
Current assets (including UKTV cash and cash
equivatents £13 5Sm (2014 £24 6m)) 1865 47 1912 1891 93 196.4
Current habilities (including UKTV financial labiihes
£125 2m {2014 £76 4m)) (127 8) (4 9) (132 7) (83 1) (9 5) (92 6)
Non-current ltabilities {(including UKTV financial habiities
£53 5m (2014 £94 4m)) {53 8) {11) (54 6) {94 4) (14 8) (109 2)
Net assats of joint ventures 108 (1 0) 98 14 4 {0 B) 136
Group's share of not assets of joint ventures 53 03 56 72 {0.4) 68
Prowsion for unreahsed profit {50) - {5 0) G 1) - [GR))
Interasts in foint ventures at 31 March 03 03 06 11 {0 4) 07
Revenue 2880 120 oo o 276 4 226 amo
Expense (UKTV including depreciation £2 1m (2014 E1 3m)) (218 4) {11 1) {227 5) {210 1) (227) (232 9)
Interest payable @an - @3N (37 . @n
Taxation (14 1) {0 1) (14 2) (14 8) {03) (15 1)
Profit after taxation 538 o8 548 49 8 04) 494
Results not recognised - - - - 07 07
Profit from JoInt ventures (all from continuing operations) 538 08 548 498 03 60.1
Profit from joint ventures attributable to other parties (26 9) 04 (27 3) (24 9) 02 (25 1)
Cther adjustments - 03 03 - 04 04
Group's share of profit from joint ventures
recognised in Consolidated Income statement 269 07 276 249 05 254
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Intarosts in associates

Interests in assoctates in the current and previous years included the following matenal operation.

NVCA

As set out in Note 27, on 23 October 2014, the Group sold a 49 9% stake in NVCA, formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of BBC Worldwide Amencas
Inc, and retained an mvestment of 50 1% In NVCA Whilst the Group retams significant influence over NVCA, and has the right to vanable returns, it
no longer has control and hence the Group has deconsolidated NVCA from the date of the sale and accounts for its refained interest since that date

as an assoclate

The following represents the Group's share of associates held during the year

NVCA Other Total Totat
2018 018 n1s 014
tm tm tm T

Aggregation of 100% of sach assoclate

Non-current assets 2519 €61 2580 300
Current assets 64 2 341 98 3 473
Current liabilities (26 5) {17 9) (44 4) (233)
Non-current labilitieg (7 3) {8 1) (15 4) {44 6)
Not assets 2823 14 2 2885 94
Group's sharg ¢f not assots 141.4 40 145 4 3s
Goodwill on acquisition - 105 105 82
Provision for unrealised profit (35) - (A5 -
Other (12) - 12 04
Interests In associates at 31 March 1387 145 1512 121
Revenue 428 59 827 533
Result for the year 150 42 152 46
Group's share of results of agsociates (ali from continuing eporations) 75 o7 82 LX)

The Group has board representation and participates in policy-making decisions affecting Educabional Publishers LLP and Woodlands Books Limited
The Group has concluded that it exerts significant influence over these businesses despite holding less than 20% of the voting power Accordingly,
the Group has classified its interests in these entities as associates
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17. Investments

2016 W4
B m
Avallable-for-gsale investments carrled at fair value
Unquoted equities 44 4 4
Loans recelvable carried at emortised cost
Loans to joint ventures and associates {(note 34} 05 D4
Loans to other entihes 82 37
87 41
Total investments 131 85
18. Programme rights and other inventories
08 014
Em tm
Programme rights for broadcast 314 725
Programmes in the course of production 178 132
Raw materals and consumables 17 27
Work in progress 14 21
Finished goods and goods for resale 150 121
87 3 102.6
19 Trade and other receivables
18 21
Em Em
Current
Trade recelvables 218 1 1820
Prepayments 133 275
Royalty advances 103 112
Accrued income 656 556
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates (note 34) 248 194
Other receivables 353 87
367 2 3154

included wathin Trade and other receivables 1s £27 1m (2014 £14 0m) due after more than one year

The net carrying amounts of irade and other receivables approximates to their fair vaiue
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19. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Included in the Group's trade and other receivables at 31 March 2015 are batances of £21 7m (2014 £29 1m) which are past due at the reporiing date
but are not imparred because the Group expects to recover these balances i full, and has histonical analysis to support the recovery profile The aged

analysis of these batances is as follows

Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2015

8 014

[ ] Em

Up to 3 months 167 235
3 to & months 29 35
Over 6 months 21 21
217 201

In determining the: recoverabiity of a trade recelvable, the Group consrders any change in the credit quality of the trade recevable from the date credit
was milially granted up to the reporting date Trade recelvables are provided against based on estimated Irrecoverable amounts, determined by
reference 10 pasl default experience of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty's financial satuation  The concentration of credlt risk ts
imited due to the customer base being large and unrelated (see note 33)

Amounts charged to the impairment provision are wntlen off when there is no expectation of recovery Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the Income Statement The impairment provision stands at £1 2m at 31 March 2015 (2014 E3 6m)
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19. Trade and other receivables (continued)
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is set out below
ms e
[} Em
Balance at the beginning of the year 36 93
Impairment losses recognised 11 33
Amounts writien off 07N (81
Imparment losses reversed (2 8) {0 9)
12 36
20. Trade and other payables
w18 014
m m
Curront
Trade payables 44 1 330
Rights creditors 106 0 968
Accruals 602 578
Deferred ncome 580 520
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking 47 6 438
Amounts owed ta fellow subsidiary undertakings 160 91
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates (note 34) 34 04
Other payables including other tax and saclal secunty 689 9 M7
4052 3278
Non-current
Trade and other payables 08 -
Accruals - 08
08 08
406 0 3284

Rights creditors compnse royalty payments owing to producers of and contributors to television programmes, DVDs and other media Qther payables
mclude £0 8m relaling to contingent consideration (2014 £0 5m) (see note 33)

The carying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to their fair value

21. Assets held for sale

The asset classified as held for sale in the current year refates to the Group's investment in the Temple Street associate (see note 16), which on
31 March 2015 was approved by the Board for disposal There were no assets classified as held for sale at 31 March 2014

018 2014
Em tm
Investments In joint ventures and associates 30 -
Total assats classifiod as held for sale 0 -
30 -

Nst assets of disposal groups
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22 Provisions

Onerous
Proparty milated eantracts Other Tolsl
€m £m tm m
At 1 Aprll 2014 156 21 16 52
Additional prowision in the year 21 13 12 48
Utilisation of prowision (01) 05 (t4) 20
Released to the Consolidated income statement (02) - 05 @7
Transfers 09 {0 9) - -
Foreign axchange translation gains and losses 01 - - 01
At 31 March 2015 43 2.0 [k 72

Property-related provisions include onerous ieases in respecl of properties held under nen-cancellable leases, when the expecled benefils to be
derlved by the Group from subletting those properties are lower than the unavoidable costs payable over the remaining term of the respective leases,
together with provistons for dilapidations in respect of leasehold properties

Prowvisicns for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Group from a contract are lower than the
unavaidable cost of meeting its obhgations under the contract

Other provislons primarily comprise restructunng provisions

Provisicns are analysed between current and non-curreny as follows

n1s w4

(] £m

Cusrent 53 47
Non-current 19 05
72 52
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23. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group's principal sources of funding and the currencies in which funding is denominated are summarised as follows

Barting ndan Rupee Totak Stariing Indien Rupes Tatsd
wis m1s 2018 w14 Wwte mnu
&m [ Em £m &m tm
Unsecured borrowings at amortised cost
Loans from related parties 1355 - 1355 987 - 987
Bank loans - 03 03 - 07 07
1355 03 1358 98 7 07 99 4
Total borrowings
Amount due for settlement within 12 months - 03 03 - 07 07
Amount due for settlement after more than 12 months 1355 . 1365 98 7 - 88 7
1355 0.3 1358 97 07 994

The Group's principal source of funding 1s 8 multi-currency loan facillty of £202 2m (2014 £202 2m) with BBC Commercia! Holdings Limited (BBCCH),
its intermediata parent undertaking, of which £30 Om (2014 £30 Om) iz avallable only on condition that an equivatent cash balance Is malntamned The
loan facility expires on 30 September 2016 and attracts interest based on BBCCH's borrowing cost plus a margin of 1 0%

The Group also has a working capital loan facllity in India of INR 120m (£1 3m (2014 £1 2m)), with an overdraft limit within this faciity of INR 40m
(E0 4m (2014 £0 4m)) The loan faciity has no expiration date but can be called upon for repayment at any time and therefore has been ¢lassed as
current The balance attracts interest of base rate plus a margin

In addition, the Group has a multi-currency collective net overdraft faciity with & imit of £2m and a base currency of GBP This attracts interest of 1%
above base rate if drawn down in GBP, and interest of the bank's currency overdraft rate plus a 1% margin if drawn down 1n other currencies As at 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the facility was unutihsed

There are no charges over cash at bank or other financial assels in respect of borrowings or other liabillties (2014 None)
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24. Derivative financial instruments

Non-current Current Non-curment
nsasts sszatn  Current llab|litien limbilitins Totsl
2018 m m tm im Em

Derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts 27 75 (86) @7 31)

Interest rate swaps - - - 086 06
27 HE ] (8 6) (5 3) (37

Derlvatives that are not in a formal hedge relationship

Forward foreign currency contracts 01 a9 (t1) 09 (10

Embedded derivatives 01 - (0 5) - (0 4)
02 09 {16) {08} (14}
28 84 {10 2) {82) {51)

Non-current Current Non-current

sasets xsuats  Current linblities Iatsiliths. Totsl

014 m Em m £m £m

Derivatives that ara designated as cash flow hedges

Forward foreign currency contracts 28 57 (0 5) (01 79

Interest rate swaps - - - on {©7)
28 57 {0 5) 8 72

Derivatives that are not in a formal hedge relationship

Forward foreign currency contracts 06 38 (0 5) (01) 38

Interest rate swaps - - 1) - (R}

Embedded denvalves - - - AR 1))
06 s {0 6) (1.2) 28
34 95 11) (20) 98

Fasr value movements on denvative financial instruments that are nol in a formal hedge relatronship are recorded in the Consolidated income statement
within other gains and losses

The total notional principal amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2015 was £356 6m (2014 £292 5m) The
hedged forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at various dates In the fulure

The Group applies cash flow hedge accounting for trades taken out in respect of its forecast foreign currency transactions Hedge accounting Is only
appiled where appropriate desrgnation and documentation, and trades with parties external to the Group, exist Net lcsses (before tax) recognised in the
hedging reserve on forward forelgn exchange contracts In cash flow hadge relationships at 31 March 2015 were £10 9m (2014 gains of £16 4m)
Future relevant amounts will be recognised in the income statement in the penod when the hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement at
vanous dates over the next 36 months

The notionat pnncipal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contrects at 31 March 2015 were £60 Om (2014 £100 Om) All outstanding interest
rate swaps mature by July 2016

The Group has reviewed cortracts for embedded denvatives that ere required to be separated from their host contracts Embedded derivatives are
recognised at therr fair value with subsequent changes to fair value recorded in the income statement
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25. Called up share capital

F-21 ) o4
tm Em
Authorised
1 000 000 ordinary shares of £1 each 10 10
lssued, alloted, called up and fully paid
250,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 02 02

The Company has one class of ordnary shares, which carry ng right to fixed ncome

26 Reserves

Hedging resarve

The hadging reserve is used to record the effective portion of cumutative net changes In the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments, related to
hedged transactions that have not yet occurred (net of tax) During the current year, gains of £6 2m were removed from the hedging reseves and
credited to revenue in the tncome statement (2014 gains of £3 1m)

Translation reserve

The translabon reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences arising since the transition to IFRS, from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of llabiities that hedge the Group's net invastment in foreign subsiharies Since 1 April 2008,

£4 7m of exchange losses on foreign currency borrowings have been offset in reserves against exchange gains on the related investment in overseas
subsidlaries

Retalned sarnings

At 31 March 2015, the cumulative goodwill written off to reserves on acquisitions prior to 1 April 1998 amounted to £14 2m This amount is unchanged
from the prior year, and remamed in equity upon transition to IFRS as permitied by IFRS 1
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27. Disposals
The following summarises the disposals of the Group for both the current and the prior year

BBC AMERICA

On 23 October 2014, BBC Worldwde sold a 49 9% stake n NVCA, formerly a wholiy-owned subsidiary of BBC Worldwide Americas Inc, to AMC
Networks Inc ("AMCN") In return for proceeds of $200m (£123 Om), with BECW retalning an investment of 50 1% n NVCA The $200m proceeds
compnsed $180m (£88 4m) In cash and $40m (£24 6m) deferred consideration in the form of a six-month promissory nete, due by 23rd Aprit 2015

The disposal was a stralegic move to take advaniage of the greater negohating power and sector knowledge of the larger US networks

While the Group retains a 50 1% sharehalding in NVCA, AMCN has control over the key decision-making actlvittes Therefore, whilst the Group
retains significant influence over NVCA, and has the right to vanable returns, it no longer has control, and hence the Group has deconsolidated NVCA
from the date of the sale and accounts for its retalned interest since that date as an associate

NVCA operates the US TV Channel BBC AMERICA, which represented a significant proportion of both the Group's channels business (37 8% of
channels stalutory revenue in the year to 31 March 2014) and also its North American cperations (28 8% of North Amerca statutory revenue in the
year to 31 March 2014y However whilst material to the Group's resulls, NVCA and the disposal of the BBC AMERICA channels business have not
been treated as discontinued operations under IFRS 5 ("Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”) as they do not represent the
disposal of either a separate major ine of business or a separate geographical area of operation

The net assets of NVCA at the date of disposal were

23 October 2014

Property, plant and aquipment 01
Programme rights and other inventories 548
Trade and other recetvables 220
Trade and other payables (157)
Cash and cash equivalents 01
813

Net gain on dispesal

Em
Consideration for disposal 1230
Net assets disposed of (306)
_Cumulative currency tranglation logses 681
Gain on disposal 862
Fair value of assoclate recognised 1199
Share of net assets reclassified to associates (30 7)
Gain on fair value uplift of assoclate 892
Fair value of retained liabilities, and transaction costs, In respect of business disposal (59 B)
Net gain 1159
Satisfled by
Cash and cash equlvalents 98 4
Deferred consideration 248
1230
Not cash inflow arising on disposal
Consideration received in cash 98 4
Less Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 01N
Less Setittement of retained habililies and transaction cosls in respect of business disposal (33 8)
64 5
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27. Disposais (continued)

In the prior year, the following disposals took place
Ragdoll

Qn 13 September 2013, the Group disposed of its interest in Ragdoll Worldwide Limited for cash consideration of £8 7m and a £3 5m dividend
immedately pnor to disposal, resulting in a gain on disposal of £2 3m Net assets at the date of disposal were £9 9m

Big Talk

On 26 July 2013, the Group dispesed of its interest in Big Talk Productions Limited for cash consideration of £3 1m and £1 3m Ioan setilement,
resulting in a gain on disposal of £1 7m Net assels at the date of disposal were £1 5m

Haymarket

On 12 August 2013, the Group disposed of its interest in BBC Haymarket Exhibitions Limited for cash consideration of £0 1m resuliing in a gain on
disposal of £0 1m Net assetls al the date of disposal were £nil

28. Notes to the cash flow statement

018 w14

Em Em
Profit before tax 2238 126 2
Less
Gaing and losses on disposals (115 9) (4 1)
Other galns and losses 57 93
Finance income (0 8) (0 4)
Finance expense 35 46
Operating profit 1183 13586
Adjustments for
Share of results of joint ventures and associates (excluding moverments in prowisions for unrealised profits) (35 4) (259)
Depreciation and imparment of property, plant and equipment 80 77
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 117 4 108 1
impairment of investments 21 28
Impairment loss recogrused on trade and other receivables 11 33
Reversal of impairment losses recegnised on trade and other receivables (2 8) (09)
Net foreign exchange (gamns)fiosses 05 61
Increase in provisions - 20
Cash flows before movements In working capHial 2062 2388
Increase in trade and other receivables {33 8) (197
Increase in programme nghts and other inventorles (16 5) (121)
Increasef(decrease) in trade and other payables 62 4 (18 8)
Cash generatad from operations 217 5 188 1
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29. Commitments and contingent liabilities

w018 wWd
£m Em
Capital commitmaents
Distribution nights 96 0 754
Property, plant and eguipment 13 79
Intangible assets 63 06
1036 839
Other financial commitments
Programme rights for breadcast 15 168
Cther comymitments 292 327
a7 495
134 3 1334

Total unrecognised commitments

In addion to the above, the Group's share of commitments for programme acquisitions and other commitments in respect of its UKTV joint venture
amount to £20 8m and £119 2m, respectively (2014 £19 1m and £72 6m, respectively)

The Group has a number of contingent habiiies arising from hitigation and from the rights of its customers and supptiers to undertake routine audits
These anse from tracing activities undertaken in the ordinary course of business BBC Worldwide makes specific provision for the best estimate of
any amounts wich might be awarded as a result of these Provision is only made to the extent that the Directors consider it probable that thera will be
an outflow of economic beneflis and the amount can be reliably estmated

The Graup has given guarantees in relation to the BBC Commercial Holdings Limited revolving credit facility agreement (see note 23) At 31 March
2015, total amounts drawn down under this facility were £135 5m {2014 £98 7m) In addition the Group has given guarantees in relation to a US
private placement in the name of BBC Commeraial Holdings Limiied At 31 March 2015, the total amount of this deb! was £175 2m (2014 £157 B)

The Group occasionally enters into contracts with other equlty shareholders of its Joint ventures and associates to purchase additional equity In some
cases, these contracts place an obligalion on the Group to acquire further shares al the option of the counterparty to the contract The Group has not
recorded a hability in respect of these contracts as the amounts payable in the event of exerclse are based on a proxy for the market value of those
shares Amounts payable under such contracts are not expected to be malerial to the Group as a whole

30 Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date, the Group had cutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operaling ieases,
which fall due as follows

ok 2014

Fm £m

Within one year a0 130
In the second to fifth years inclusive 202 241
After five years 590 607
97 2 97 8

The majority of operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its properties The rent payable under leases 1s subject
to renegotiation at the vanous intervals specified In the leases
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31. Retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of own defined contnbution pension schemes The assets of those schemes are held separatety from those of the
Group in independently administered funds Pension costs, representing contnbutions payable by the Group dunng the year, were £5 0 million (2014
£4 Tmiltion)

Many BBC Worldwide employees are members of the BBC Group's pension schemes These comprise the BBC Pension Scheme (a defined benefit
scheme which s now closed to new members), a small unfunded plan (the unfunded scheme, which is closed to new members) and defined
contribution schemes {LifePlan and the Group Persanal Pension Scheme)

The BBC Pension Scheme provides benefits on a defined benefit bas:s funded from assets held tn separate trustee-administiered funds There are
four sections lo the BBC Pension Scheme OQld Benefits and New Benefits, which both pravide benefits based on final salary {subject to differing
inflation caps), Career Average Benefits 2006 (CAB 2006) and Career Average Benefits 2011 (CAB 2011) All sections are now closed to new
entrants

BBC Worldwide, following the prowisions within IAS 19 Employee Benefits for accounting in respect of Group schemes, accounts for its parucipation
in the scheme as If it were a defined contribution scheme This is because there is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the nat
defined benefit cost to scheme participants The pension cost for s scheme therefore represents contnbutions payable by the Group to the scheme
and the costs amounted to £13 2 milhon in the year (2014 £7 8 milhon) No contributions were prepaid or accrued at 31 March 2015 (2014 £nil) The
coninbution amount payable by BEC Woridwide for a particular year is determined by the number of active members employed at the preceding
balance sheet date, calculated as a percantage of the total scheme

The BBC Pension Scheme was the main pension plan of the Group and aithough it cevers the majonty of the current employees 18 now closed to new
entrants This plan provides pensionable salary related benefits on a definad benefit basis funded from assets held In separate trustes-administered
funds

The following habibties in respect of retirement benefits have been recorded in the financal statements of the BBC

2018 2014

£m £m
BBC Pensiun Scheme 940 7 1,508 5
Unfunded Scheme 75 72
Total 948 2 1,5987

The actuaral valuation for the BBC Pension Scheme was updated for IAS 19 purposes to 31 March 2015 by Towers Watson, consulting actuaries
Additional disclosure about the scheme and it financial position under |1AS 1915 presented below

Scheme financial positicn

2018 2014

£Em £m
Scheme assets** 12,766 3 10,684 2
Scheme habilities (13.7070) (12,1927)
Deficit {8407) (1,508 5)

** excluding funds relating to additional voluntary contributions (AVCs)

66




BBC Warldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31. Retirement benefits (continued}

Changes In the present value of plan liabilities

The table below illustrates the movement on the plan habilities during the year The most significant vanables which affect this are the additional year
of pension benefits eamed, interest charged on existing liabihlies, any gans or losses relating to participants leaving the pension scheme, changes in
assumptions made and benefits paxt out dunng the year

2015 2014

£m fm,
At 1 Aprit 12,1927 11,8098
Current service cast 1810 167 2
Past service cost 11 24
Administration costs 84 81
Interest on pension plan liablities 5331 5231
Expenence gains ansing on pian liabliities (217 4) (62 3)
Changes in assumptions underfying plan abililies 1,489 4 114 1
Contnbutions by plan participants 08 11
Benefits paid (382 1) (371 0)
At 31 March 13,707 0 12,1927

Changas in the fair value of plan assets

The table below tllustrates the movement on the plan assets dunng the year The most significant vanables which affect this are the additional year of
contributtons made, changes in the value of the pension plan assets (including the nvestment return) and benefits paid duning the year

Employee contributions to the scheme are paid via a salary sacnfice arrangement and have therefore been treated as employer contributions

2018 2014

£m £m_
At 1 April 10,6842 10,2011
Expecied rate of return on plan assets 4736 4535
Actuarial gains on plan assets 16725 1770
Contributtons by employer 3274 2225
Contnbutions by plan participants 08 11
Benefits paid {392 2} {371 0}
At 31 March 12,7663 10,6842

The allocation of assets by the Trusteas 1s govemed by a need to manage risk against the desire for tugh returns and any llquidity needs A high
percentage of assets are held in equities which the Trustees expect will produce tugher returns In the long term For more information, including target
asset allocations, on the Scheme see http /iwww bbc ce uk/mypension

w16 01 F:al) Figl)

&m % Em k)
Equity and pooled vehicles 3,568 0 279 34904 26
Denivalives (817 8) {6 4) 203 D2
Fixed interest bonds - public sector 558 9 44 3827 36
Fixed interest bonds - other 10559 83 863 7 81
index-linked bonds - public seclor 43775 343 25315 237
Property — UK 743 1 58 6539 B1
Property — overseas 4305 34 374 6 3s
Alternatives* 2494 0 195 1,964 7 184
Cash and other current assets 356 2 28 402 4 38
At 31 March 12,766 3 1000 10,6842 1000

*Alternatives include private equity, debt and currency

The aclual return on scheme assets (being realised gamns from the receipt of investment income such as dividends and rent, transactions where
assels are sold and unreallsed fair value changes) in the year to 31 March 2015 was £2,102 0m (2014 £631 Om)
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31. Retirement benefits (continued)

Funding the Scheme

The 2013 actuanal valuation by Towers Watson of the pension scheme showed a funding shortfall of £2,054m Consequently a recovery plan was
agreed between tha BBC and the pension scheme Trustees which details the contribution amounts to be paid by the BBC over a 12 year penod

commencing 2014

As descnbed in note 4, additional contnbutions of £8 1m pald by the Group lo the BBC in 2015 (2014 £2 3m) have heen presented outside Headline
profit The Group payment for next year 1s expected to be £3 4m, reflecting the current recovery plan

The contributions to the scheme by members are mainly paid via a salary sacnfice arrangement These have been treated as employer contributions

The next formal actuanal valuation is expected to be performed as at 1 April 2018

Projected

e 2018 ne

% k. %

Emplayer 167 167 145
Employee (Old and New Benefits) 75 75 75
Employee (Career Average Benefits 2006} 40 40 40
G0 60 80

Empioyee (Career Average Benefits 2011)

On the basis of pension assumphions made, the BBC Group expects to make contnbutions to the scheme totalling £129 § mifllon in 2015/2016

Princlpal actuarial assumptions

The calculation of the scheme liabiities and pension charges, for IAS 19 purposes, requires a number of assumptions, both financial and
demographic, to be made

The principal financial assumptions used by the actuanes, at the balance sheet date were

018 2014
* k]
Rate of increase i salares 10 10
Rate of increase in pension payments
Old Benefits 29 34
New Benefits 27 3z
Career Average Benefits (2008) 24 24
Career Average Benefits (2011) 18 23
Inflation assumption (RP1) 29 34
Inflation assumption (CP1) 19 24
Discount rate 34 44
The sensitivities regarding the principal assumplions used to measure the scheme's liabilities are set out below
Impact on impact an
2013 Assumption used scheme Hablldies wcheme Habilllies
Movement % Em
Discount rate 34% Decrease 0 1% 22 (308)
Discount rate 34% Increase 0 1% 17 230
Retall prce inflation rate 29% Decrease 0 1% 18 245
Retail pnce mflation rate 29% Increase 0 1% 18 {251)
Mortality rates See below Decrease 0 1% 35 477
Mortality rates See below Increase 0 1% 36 (494)
impact on Impact on
014 Assumption usad schame lisbilltiss  scheme Dabiities
Movernanl % £m
Discount rate 4 4% Decrease 0 1% 21 (2589)
Discount rate 4 4% increase 0 1% 18 195
Retail price inflatlon rate 34% Decrease 0 1% 18 215
Retail pnce inflation rate 4% Increase 0 1% 18 (220)
Mortalily rates See below Decrease 0 1% 33 404
Mortahty rates See below Increase 0 1% 34 (418)
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31. Retirement benefits (continued)
The average life expectancy assumptlons, for members aftar reirement at 60 years of age, are as follows

Princlpal demographic assumptions

018 2014

Numbar of ysars  Numbes of years

Retiring today
Mate 275 274
Female 209 288
Retiring n 20 years
Male 294 293
Female 319 kiR

The mortality assumptions have been selected to reflect the characteristics and axpenence of the membership of the scheme and are based on those
used for the actuarlal investigation which was carnied out for funding purposes as at 1 April 2013 The standard 'S1' series of tables, published by the
CMI, reflect recent research into mertality experience in the UK A subset of these tables has been used for males and females, with a multiplier of
122% for males and 107% for femaies For the allowance for future improvements the CMI 2012 care peojecthion has been adopted with a long term
trend of 1 25% for both maies and females
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32 Capital management

Tha capltal siructure of the Group conststs of net debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 23 after deducting cash and cash equivatents,
and eguity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent, compnsing 1ssued capital, reserves and retained eamings as detatled in the Censolidated

statement of changes in equity

The actvities of the BBC are informed by an agreemaent with the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sporl, which also stipulates borrowing
iimits, both relative and absolute This agreement currently imits the consolidated net debt of the BBC s commercial subsidianes to £350m The
Group's share of this imit 18 in turn agreed with the Group's sharehatder and informs the level of borrowings avarable to the Group

The Group delivers long-term value to its ulbmate parent, the BBC, through cash returned i the form of dividends as a share of the Group’s profits,
acquisiton of BEC-commissionad content or intellectuai property, direct investment in BBC programming, production of original content and growth in
the capital value of the BBC's equity in the Group The dividend policy of the Group is agreed with the BBC so as to achieve the optimum balance
betwaen annual cash returns and investing for growth in programming, intellectual property or other assets to build value over the long term

The BBC Trust's principles require stnct compliance with the four Commercial Criteria fit wath the BBC's public purposes, brand reputation and brand
values, commercial efficiency, and fair trading policy The Group's policy in making investment decisions is governed by the BBC Trust's principles
ang commercial efficiency of the invesiment The commaercial efficiency of an investment i1s determined on a case-by-case basis, with respect to
financial metrics such as net present value, internal rate of return, payback period and profit margin

The Group's diversified portfalio of businesses means that generaiisation of benchmarks s neither desirable nor possible Therefore, the Group
operates a framework for calculating investment discount rates that are tallored to each investment This framework applies appropriate risk
premiums to the discount rate in order to ensure all nsks relating to the Investment are taken into account and that the required rate of retumn is
commensurate wath this level of nsk This in tum allows the BBC and BBC Worldwide to achleve the optimal allocatlon of capital and balance its short

term and long term return goals

33 Financial instruments and risk management

Financlal risk management cbjectives
In the normal course of its activibies, the Group is exposed to a variety of financal risks, including market nsk (mainly currency risk, interest rate risk

and price risk}, credit risk and liquidity sk BBC Worldwide takes a nsk averse approach to cash and treasury management activites and seeks to
minimise the Group's exposure {o volatility in the financtal markets The Group uses denvative financial instruments to hedge certain nsk exposures m

accordance wath its hedging policy

The Group's financial risk management operations and associated trade execution activittes are performed by BBC Group Treasury All treasury
activities are governed within parameters defined formally In the policies agreed by the BBC Executive Board and BBC Worldwide Board n additicn,
treasury activities are routinely reported and are subject to review by management

The Group's financial instruments other than those used for treasury nsk management purposes, pnncipatly comprise cash and cash equwalents, a
debt facility provided by its parent, external borrowings and vanous items such as trade receivables and payables that arise directty from its
operations The Group finances its operaticns from these financiat Instruments The Group does not undertake speculative treasury transactions

Currency risk

BBC Wortdwide s exposed to foreign exchange risk ansing from vanous currency exposures princlpatly in relation to the US dollar, the Euro and the
Australian doltar The Group generates a surplus in most curencies in which It operates The Group's share of income from continuing operations

generated outside the UK was 66 1% in 2015 versus 65 1% in 2014

Foreign exchange transachon risk anses from recogmsed assets and liabilities and forecast future commercial transactions that are denominated in a
currency that 13 not the transacting entity's functional currency Due to movements in exchange rates over time, the amount the Group expects to
recewve or pay when it enters into a transaction may differ from the amount that it actually receives or pays when it settles the transaction A small
proportion of related operating expenses will also be denominated in these foreign cumencies providing some level of offset to these revenue
exposures

The Group has implemented a hedging policy to mininuse volatility in its financial results The Group's policy Is to hedge the majority of its forecast
net foreign curency trading covenng a period of one year, and a proportion of forecast trading for a further year thereafler Forward currency contracts
allow the Group to settle transactions at known exchange rates, and therefora to reduce uncertainty ansing fram currency nisk
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Currency risk (continued)

The overall cost of a hedged transaction and the assoclated forward currency contract in the income statement 18 fixed However, where contracts
span financial years and hedge accounting 13 not applied, the falr value of the forward currency contract gives nse to gainsflosses in each financial
year due to the timing difference between the recognition of such gainsflosses and the recognilion of the associated hedged transaction The
gans/losses seen are therefore a result of market conditions as opposed to vanances in contract value

Some sales contracts also contain clauses whereby changes in currency rates outside of an agreeg range impact on the contract price, 1n the majonty
of cases the value of the individual conltracts and other features within the contract Imit the currency risk exposure to a level that 1s not significant to
the Group Such clauses have baen separated from the host contracts and recorded as embedded derivatives The movement in far values in these
derivatives is recorded through the Income statement Further details of the embedded denvalives are given in note 24

Forelgn exchange translatlon rgk arises from the translation of overseas subsidtanes’ income statements and baiance sheets Into sterling This
translation currency risk may be hedged by funding overseas mvestments with loans in the same functional currency as the overseas investment No
such net investment hedges were in place at 31 March 2015 or 31 March 2014

The majorily of the forward foreign currency contracts entered into by the Grougp are designated as hedging instruments in effective cash flow hedges
Corresponding far value movements have, accordingly, been recorded within other comprehensive income For forward foreign currency contracts
not designated as hedging Instruments, movements in farr value are recorded directly in the income statement within "other gains and losses'

The following table shows the profiV(loss) and equity impact on the Group's derivative financial instruments of a 10% weakening of Sterting compared
to other foreign currency rates

F- a1 ] w4

Em £m
Forward forelgn currency contracts (36 1} (25 2)
Embedded dernivatlves 05 (0 7)
Total Impact on derivatives {35 6} (25 9)
Impact on ncome statemant ©9) (105)
Impact on other comprehensive Income (287) (154)
Total impact on comprehensive income (35 8} (259)

The same movernen! in currency rates would result in an income statement gain of £4 7m (2014 £2 1m) in respect of the Group's interest-bearnng
loans and borrowings and Intragroup monetary assets and habidies not elimemated on cansolidation

Interest rate risk

The Group's main exposure to mterest rate fluctuations anses on external interest beanng liabllities and loans from its parent undertakings BBC
Worldwide borrows at floating rates of interest creating an exposure to cashflow interest rate risk BBC Worldwide then use interast rate swaps, caps
and collars to generate the desired interest profile and to manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations The Group uses mterest rate
swaps to fix interest rates so that greater certainty about the level of future interest payments can be achieved Interest rate swaps, caps and collars
are taken out based on projected borrowing requirements, therefore differences will occur between the notional amount of swaps, caps and collars
and the actual borrowing requirements

Ifinterest rates had been 1% higher and all cther vanables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 wouid have
increased by £0 9m (2014 £0 6m) The incremental mcrease in profit 1s pnmanly atinibutable to the effect that such a change in interest rates would
have on the falr value of interest rate swaps, which fix all of the Group's external loating rate nterest

Other price risk
Other price risk Is any price change other than those arising from changes in currency or interest rates
Credit risk

Credit nsk 13 the nsk of financial loss to the Group f a customer or counterparty o a financial instrument fails to meet sts contractual obligations
Cradit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, denvative financial instruments, available-for-sale financial assets and trade and other receivables
Group treasury policies require that cash and cash equivalents and denvative financial instruments are held primarily with banks of A+ rating or better

The Group’s credit nsk management paolicy In retation o trade recelvables involves regularly assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into
accouni several factors such as thelr financlat position and historical performance Despite the existence of some key customers in major
geographies there is no matenal concentraton of credit nsk with respect to trade recervables as the Group has a large number of customers,
geographically dispersed Credit terms, where given, are generally for a 30-day perned The carrying amount of financial assets included in the
financial statements represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to these assels

The Group's other classes of financial assets do not contain Impaired assets and are not past due
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity ngk 15 the risk that the Group will not be abie to meet its financlal obligations as they fall due BBC Worldwide 13 subject to ceilings imposed
on its borrowmngs by BBC Group, which in turn is subject to limits set by the Secretary of State as descnbed in note 32 At 31 March 2015, the net
debt imit imposed by BBC Group on BBC Worldwide was £172 2m (2014 £172 2m), with a gross debt imit of £202 2m (2014 £202 2m) subject to
an equivalent £30 0m (2014 £30 O0m) cash balance being held These limits are subject to review going forward

In order to comply with this ceiling together with the terms of any individual debt instruments, BBC Worldwxde manages its iquidity through a number
of measures, including regular cash flow reporting, forecasting, hedging against foreign exchange fluctuations and proactively managing working

capital
Maturity analysis of financial llabilitles

The tabte below analysas the Group's financial lilabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaiming penod to contractual matunty at the
balance sheet date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and will therefore not reconcile to the amounts
disclosed tn the balance sheet for borrowings, derlvative financlal instruments and trade and other payables

Cua In Dus sftsr
tews Bhan Duein Due in mom than

1 yoar 1tol years 2to3 ysars 3 ysars Towt
i Em [,] tm £m em
Financial liabilltles at falr value through profit and loss
Derivative financial instruments 101 55 05 - 161
Embedded derivatives 05 - - - 05
Other creditors 05 04 - - 0g
Financlai liabilitles measuraed at amortised cost
Bank loans a3 - - - 03
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 20 136 4 - - 1384
Trade and other payables 3472 og - - 3480

Dusn Dua sfter

lans than Cus n Duain mom (han

1 yaar 1ia 2 years 20 3 yasrs J years Total
me tm im £m im Em
Fmanclal liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Denvative financial instruments 05 04 - . 09
Embedded denvatives - 11 - - 11
Other creditors 03 - 01 01 05
Financlal llabilities measured at amortised cost
Bank loans 07 - - - 07
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 19 987 - - 1006
Trace and other payables 2756 08 . - 276 4
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Categorisation of financial assots and liabilitios

Loans snd  Derivatives used

for-aat ror Total Avaitsbin-for-sate recaivabiey for hedging Total
018 2048 o1 N8 2018 ma 014 014
Em m &m tm Em Em Em Em
Assets as per Balance Shaot
Dernivative financial instruments - - 112 112 - - 129 129
Embedded derivatives - - 01 01 - - - -
Available-for-sale nvestments ion - - a0 - - - -
Interests in joint ventures and associates - 148 8 - 1488 - 128 - 128
Unqguoted equities 44 - - 44 44 - - 44
Loans receivable - 87 - 87 - 41 - 41
Trade and other receivables - 3539 - 3530 - 2879 - 2879
Cash and cash eguivaients - 66 6 - 68 8 - 451 - 451
74 575.0 113 87 44 LY EE] 128 W72

Other finencial  Dartvatives used Othet Nnancisl  Derivatives uned

Slabilthey for hedging Total liablitiny for hedging Total

an 2018 s na 2014 2014

£m Em Em fm &m &m

Liabilities as per Balance Shest

Cervative financial instruments - 159 159 - 20 20
Embedded derivatives - 05 05 - 11 11
Bank loans 03 - 03 o7 - 07
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 1355 - 1358 987 - 987
Trade and other payables 348 0 - 348 0 276 4 - 276 4

4838 164 600 2 3768 34 —376.9

Non-derivative financial assets consist of cash at bank, shorl-term investments, available-for-sale investments, trade recevables, other receivables
and accrued income Non-denvative finangial hablities consist of borrowangs, trade payables, other payables and accrualg

The fair values of all non-derivative financial instruments approximate to the carrying value in the Balance Sheet The following methods and
asumptlions have been used to determme far values

The fair values of cash at bank and bank ipans approximate their camying values because of the short-term matunty of these instruments, and

The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables, accrued income and accrued costs approximate their carrying values (see notes 19
and 20, respectively)
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33. Financial instruments and risk management {(continued)

Fair vatue hierarchy and valuation techniques
The followtng table provides an analysis of financial ingtiruments that are measured subsequent to inthal recognition at far value, grouped tnto Levels
1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value Is observable

+ Level 1 farr value measurements are those derived from quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and fabilities,
Level 2 farr value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset

or habihty, either directty (i @ as prices) or Indirectly (| @ derived from prices), and
* Level 3 far value measurements are those denved from valuation techruques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unohservable inputs)

Lavel 1 Leval 2 Lovad 3 Tatsl Lavelt Level 2 [T 1) Totsl
o011 2018 06 s 014 2014 w0 0e

tm tm m im um &m £m m
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss '
Derivative financial ingtruments - 112 - 12 - 129 - 129
Embedded derivatives - 01 - a1 - - - -
Available-for-sale financial assats
Unquoted equities - - 44 44 - - 44 44

- 1123 44 167 - 129 44 173
Financlal llabilitiea at fair value through profit and loss .
Derwative financial instruments - (159) - (159 - 20 - (20)
Embedded denvatives - (0 5) - (0 5) - 11 . {11
Other payables - - 08 {0 8) - - (05) 0 5)

- {16 4) {08 {17.2) - {3.1) {0 5) 3 6)

There were no transfers between ievels dunng the year

For assets and liabllities that are recogrised In the financial statements on a recurring basls, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred

between levels in the merarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that i1 significant to the fair value measurement as a '
whole) at the end of each reporting penod

The fa|r values of derlvative financial instruments are calculated using quoted pnces Where such prices are nat available, a discounted cash flow

analysis 1s performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional denvatives, and option pricing models for

optional denvatives Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves denved from quoted

interest rates matching the maturities of the contracts Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and

discounted based on the applicable yield curves derlved from gquote interest rates

Leve! 3 financial habilities recorded at fair value and included within other payables relate ta contngent consideration and in the prior year related to
written put options 1ssued to non-controliing interests in the Group's subsidiaries The fair value of such Instruments is calculated based eon the strike
price of the options and management’s best esimate of the date at which the options will be exercised

Where the strike price of an option is based on the far value of the underlying business, this has been estimated based on forecasts of future cash
flows prepared by management

The change in far vatue of Lavel 3 financial instruments is reconcited as follows

Arsals Thabuites E Rawets Tubinms 20
m £m Em Em m Em
Opening balance 44 {0 &) 39 51 (0 4) 47
Change in farr vaiue recorded in other gains and losses . 02 (02) 11 - 11
Urwinding of discount recorded wathin finance expense - omn (0 1) - ©1) (01)
Seitlements - - - (18) - (18)
Clasing balance 44 {0 8) 38 44 {0.5) 3
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34. Related party transactions

Trading transactions

The related party transactions of the Group have been presented in accordance with IAS 24 Refated Parly Disclosures Related parties of BBC
Worldwide include its subsidiary, associated and jomt venture undertakings, its parent undertakings and fellow subsidiaries, and key management
personnel of the Group and their close family members Transactions between the BBC and BBC Wordwide Group pension schames are detailed in

note 31 \

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been ehminated on consciidation and are not disclosed in
this note Amounls owed by and to the BBC, the intermediate parent undertaking and fellow subsidiary undertakings within the B8C Group are

reported in notes 19 and 20 respectively

The following table illustrates transactions waith 8BC Group entities during the year

w1

Dndends pard (111 3) (88 3)
Interest cosls {18) (1N
Acquisiban of distnbution nghts (88 9) 52 1)
Royalties and other programme related fees {18 5) (237
Other expense (42 6) (22 4)
Pension top up [CRH (23)
Ad sales commission 171 192
Programme licence income 169 83
Other iIncome 79 42
{201 3) {157 8)
Other income and expense includes recharges of administrative and other similar costs meluding property recharges, and amounts payable in
accordance with gervice level agreements
The value of transactions conducted with joint veniures and associales was as follows
Oiyidands Diiwidends.
Incoms Expenss muelvable ncome Expenss reciivable
s 2018 2018 w14 w14 014
Neme of refated party Ralstionship £m Im tm £m Em m
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Jaint Venture 479 . 287 46 8 - 165
JV Programmes LLC Jont Venture - - 08 . (0 1) 14
Other joint ventures Jaint Venture Q7 ©8 - 08 (18) -
New Video Channe! Amenca LLC Associate 127 (36) 21 . - -
Other associates Associate 25 (14 7) 03 21 {12 9) 03
638 (19 1) 320 495 {14 B) 182
All transactions with related parties arise In the normal course of business on an arm'’s length basis Nane of the balances are secured
The following amounts were outstanding at the batance sheet date
Recalvables Payables Nst batsnca Racelvabins Frysbles Met balence
048 o1 ik o 204 f1al]
Name of related garty Ralationship £ Im m €m L] &m
UKTV Media Holings Limited Jont Venture 55 - 55 184 - 184
JV Programmes LLC Jomnt Venture - - - - - -
Other joint ventures Jomt Venture - - - - ()] 03
New Video Channel Amenca LLC Associate 174 (33) 141 - . -
Other associates Associate 22 (01 21 14 01) 13
251 {34 217 198 0 4) 194

At 31 March 2015 the Group also had an outstanding balance of £1 Om (2014 £1 0m} payable lo a joint venture of the Group's ultimate parent in

respect of group relief This balance is included wathin cther payables
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Remuneration of key management personnel

The Group considars key management personnel as defined under IAS 24 Relasted Party Disclosures to be Direttors of the Group, together with the
BBC Worldwide Executive Committee Total emoluments for key management personnel were

018 ma

m &m

Short-term employee benefits 56 57
Post-employment benefits 04 04
Other long-térm benefits 02 02
8.2 83

The above figures for emoluments include the remuneration of Directors (note 7}

35. Parent undertaking and controlling party
The Group's immediate parent 1s BBC Ventures Group Limited, which is in turn 100% owned by BBC Commercial Holdings Limited The ultimate

parent undertaking and controlling party Is the British Broadcasting Corporation, which 1s incorporated in the United Kingdom by Royal Charter The
largest grotip m which the results of BBC Worldwide are consolidated 1s that headed by the BBC The consolidated accounts of the BBC may be

oblained online at www bbe co ukfannuaireport

36. Events after the balance shest date

There were no other evenls subsequent io the balance sheet dale delails of which are required to be included in the financial statements
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2015 FIry
rastated
Nots £m £m
Fixed assets
Goodwil c 122 138
Dustribution nghts d 195 2 164 2
Tangible fixed assets e 472 267
Investments f 125 1 1216
we? 326 3
Current assets
Programme rights and other stocks q 437 23
Debtors
- amounts falling due within one year h 3725 3160
- amounts falling due after more than one year h 89 78
Cash at bank and in hand 163 0 53 5
588 1 409 6
Creditors amounts falling due within one year i (655 5) {4322)
Net current llabillties (67 4) (22 6)
Total assets less current liabilities 3123 3037
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year i (141 7) {101 8)
Prowisions for llabiities i {6 3) {77}
Net assets 164 3 194 6
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital t 02 o2
Profit and loss account m 164 1 194 3
Shargholder's funds 164 3 194 &

These financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directars and authonsed for 1ssue

on 9 Jung 2015, and ware sigred on its behalf by

* The balance sheet at 31 March 2014 has been
reflect bank offset arrangements

Andew Bott
Chief Financial Officer

77

ted to show bank balances of £53 5m, previously offset against Bank loans and overdratt, to




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34 Related party transactions (continued)

Remuneration of key management personnel

The Group considers key management personnel as defined under IAS 24 Relatad Party Disclosures to be Directors of the Group, together with the
BBC Worldwide Executive Committee Total emotuments for key management personnel were

o w4

Em Im

Short-term employee benefits 56 57
Post-employment benefils 04 04
Other long-lerm benefits 02 02
82 6.3

The above figures for emoluments include the remuneration of Direclors (note 7)

35 Parent undertaking and controiling party
The Group's immediate parent 1s BBC Ventures Group Limited, which ts in tum 100% owned by BBC Commerclal Holdings Limited The uilttmate

parent undertaking and controlling party 1s the British Broadcasting Corporatron, which Is incorperated in the United Kingdom by Royal Charter The
targest group in which the results of BBC Worldwide are consalidated 1s that headed by the BBC The consclidated accounts of the BBC may be

obtaned online at www bbc co uk/annuaireport

36 Events after the balance sheet date

There were no other events subsequent to the balance sheet date details of which are required to be ncluded in the financlal statements
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Wi oIy
restated *
PNote Em ﬂ_n_
Fixed assets
Goodwill [ 122 138
Distribution rights d 1852 164 2
Tangible fixed assets e 472 287
Investments f 1251 1216
3re7 3263
Current assets
Programme nights and other stocks ] 437 323
Debtors
- amounts falling due within one year h 3725 HE D0
- amounts falling due after more than one year h 89 78
Cash at bank and in hand 163 0 535
588 1 409 6
Creditors amounts falling due within one year i (855 5) {432 2)
Net current llabliitias (87 4) {22 6)
Total assets less current llabilities 3123 3037
Creditors amounts falling due after more than onsg year i (1417 (101 95)
Provisions for liabilities I (53) e
Not assets 164 3 194 §
Capital and resoerves
Called up share captal | 02 02
Profit and loss account m 164 1 1943
Shareholders funds 164 3 184 5

* The balance sheet at 31 March 2014 has been restated to show bank balances of £53 5m previously offset against Bank loans and overdrafl, {o

reflect bank offset arrangements

These financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limlted, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorlsed for issue

on 8 June 2015, and were signed oh its behalf by

—
-
A
pma "
Andew Bott

Chief Financial Officer
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a. Principal accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financtal statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 They have been prepared in accordance
with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAFP) They are principally prepared under the historical cost convention Areas where an
alternative basis of accounting has been applied are identified In the accounting policies below These policies have bean apphed consistently
throughout the year and the preceding year

The balance sheet at 31 March 2014 has been restated to show bank batances of £53 5m, previously offget against Bank loans and overdratt, to
reflect bank offset arrangements

Going concern

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis and under the histoncal cost accounting convention Further information about the
going concerm assumption 15 griven in note 1 to the consolidated financial staterments

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsichanes, joint ventures and associates are shown at cost less provision for impairment Investments are reviewed for
impairment if there are indicators that the carrying value may not be recoverable Only dividends received and receivable are credited to the
Company's profit and loss account

Foreign currency

The Company s presentational currency 1s sterling Transactions in foreign currencies are ranslated into sterling at a monthly average exchange I
rate

Monetary assets and habiities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into starling at the balance sheet date at the rate of exchange ruling
at that date Surpluses and deficits ansing from the transiation of maonetary assets and hablites at these rates of exchange, together with exchange
differences ansing from trading, are included In the profit and loss account

Distribution rights

Distrnibution rights rapresent nghts to programmes and associated inteflectual property acquired with the prmary intention of exploiting the rights
commercially es part of the Group’s long-term operations  Distnbution nghts are initially recognised at acquisition cost or production cost, when the
Group controls the respechive assets and the nsks and rewards attached to them The carrying amount (s stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and provision for impairment

Amortisation of distnbution rights s charged to the income statement to mateh the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its
estimated average marketable ife The expected fives of distribution nghts range from 1 to 10 years

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost after any provision for impairment, less accumulated depreciation

Expenditura on fixed assets 1s capitalised together with directly attnbutable costs incurred on capital projects Depreciation 1s charged 8o as to wnte
off the cost of assets to their residual value, over their expected useful Lives using the straight-line method Deprecation commences from the date
an asset 1s brought into service

The useful ives for depreciation purposes for the principal categories of assets are

* Short leasehold bulldings Unexpired lease term
= Plant and machinery 3 to 8 years
» Fixtures and fitings 3to 7 years

Loased assets
Operating lease rentais payable are recogrised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lgase The Company has no finance leases
Impairment of fixed assets

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its fixed assets mn accordance with FRS 11 !mpawment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss (s recogmsed in the profit and
less account for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
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a. Pnincipal accounting policies (continued)

Programme rights and stocks

Slocks, compnsing of merchandsing, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Programme nghts for broadcasting refer to the
programme nghts acquired for the future broadcast on one of the Company's telavision channels The carmying amount i1s stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation, and aRer wriing off the costs of programme nghts that are considered irrecoverable

Financral instruments

The Company has chosen to adopt FRS 26 Fmnancial instruments Recognition and Measurement Policies apphed hy the Company in respect of
financial mstruments are therefore congistent with those epplied by the Group Further details about the Group's financia! instrument policies and
their application 1s provided in the note 1 to the Group financial staternents

Provisions

A provision 1S recogrised In the balance sheet whan the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation ansing from past events and it 1s
probable that an outfiow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obhgation Provisions, other than deferred tax, that are payable over a
number of years are discounted t net present value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropnate to the particular provision

concemed
Where the Company enters into finanoial guarantea contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group, the Company

considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such tn this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a
contingent liabilty until such time as it becomes probabte that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

Pansion costs

For defined contnbution schemes, the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect of pension costs 1s the contnbutions payable in the
year Differences between contributions payabte in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the
balance sheet

The Company a!so participates n the BBC Pension Scheme, a multi-employer defined benefit scheme As there 15 no contraciual agreement or
stated pohicy for charging the net defined benefit cost to scheme participants, the Company has taken the exemption in FRS 17 Refirement benefils
to account for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contnbution scheme

Taxation
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 18 provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substanbvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recogrised in respect of all tming differences that have criginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date Timing differences
arise where transactions or events occurnng prior tc the balance sheet date result in an obhigation to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax, ina
future perad awing to differences between the Company’s taxable profits and its profit for the year as stated n ils financial statements

Except where otherwise required by accounting standards, full provision without discounting 1a made for all iring differences that have ansen but
net reversed at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that, on the basis of all avariable evidence, it 13 more iikely
than not that they will be recovered

Dividends on shares presented within shareholders’ funds

Oividends unpad at the balance sheet date are only recogrised as a liability at that date to the extent that they are appropriately authonsed and are
no longer at the discration of the Company Unpa:d dividends that do not meet these cnteria are disclosed 1n the notes to the Company financial

slatements
Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on the acquisiton of bus:ness trade and assets, representing any excess of the far value of the considerations given aver the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabiities acquired, 1s capitalised and wnitten off on a straight-line basts over s useful economic Iife, which 1s 10
years Provision s made for any wmpairment
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b. Profit for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year The Company
reported a profit for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 of £81 1m (2014 £62 7m} There have been no recognised gans or [osses in the current or
preceding year other than the profit for the year and accordingly, no statement of recognised gains and losses has been presented in these financial
statements

The auditor's remuneration for audit and other services is draclosed in note 6 of the consolidated financial statements

c. Goodwill
[
Cost
At 1 Apii) 2014 and 31 March 2015 163
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2014 25
Charge for the year 16
41
Net book value at 31 March 2015 122
Net book value at 31 March 2014 138
Goodwill arpse in the year endad 31 March 2013 following the hive-up of trade and assets from the Company’s subsidiary, Bedder 6 Limited
d Distnibution nghts
Emy
Cost
At 1 April 2014 4773
Addibons 1419
* The balance sheet at 31 March 2014 has been restated to show bank balances of £53 5m, previously offset against Bank loans and overdraft, {02)
accordance with bank offset arrangements 6181
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2014 3121
Charge for the year 100
Fully amortised nghts wrtten off {©2)
At 31 March 2015 4229
Net book vatue at 31 March 2015 195 2
Net bock vatuse at 31 March 2014 164 2
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e. Tangible fixed assets
Short Assats
leasehold Plant & Flxtures 8 under
bulldings Machinery Fithngs construction Total
Em £m, £m gon —Lm

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2G14 73 778 59 Q4 a12
Additions T4 212 04 - 200
Transfer to completed assets - 04 - (0 4) -
Disposals (0 8) (14 9) (02 - (157)
At 31 March 2015 141 843 61 - 1045
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2014 61 h29 §5 - 64 5
Charge for the year 22 58 05 - 85
Disposals {0 6) (14 9) (02 - (157
At 31 March 2015 77 438 58 - 573
Net book value at 31 March 2015 64 4035 03 - 47 2
Net book value at 31 March 2014 12 247 04 04 267

The Company does not hold any assets under finance leases (2014 £nil)
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f. Investments
2018 2004
£m £m
Subsidianes 1019 106 8
Asscclates 140 102
Qther investments 92 46
1251 1216

The Company has investments in the following subsidianes, joint ventures and associates which principally affected the profits or net assets of the Group
To avod a statemment of excessive length, detalls of investments which are nat significant have been amitted

All ownership interests relate to ordinary share capital with a corresponding interest in voting nights unless ctherwise stated

Tounlry of Incorporalion or Ownsnhlp
Note principsl business address Principal activity nterest
Subsidiary undertakings
BBC Waortdwide Amencas Inc + USA Holding company 100 0%
BBC Waoridwide Australia Pty Limited + Australia Programma distnbutor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Canada Lirmited + Canada Programme distnbutor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide France Sarl + France Programme distributor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Germany GmbH + Germany Programme distributor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Japan KK + Japan Programme distributor 100 0%
BBC Warldwide Productons LLC USA Content production 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Reality Productions LEC USA Content production 100 0%
BBC wWorldwide Channels Australasia Pty Limited Austraira TV channel aperator 100 0%
UK Programme Distribution Limited * + England & Wales Programme distributor 100 0%
Tonto Films & Television Limited + England & Wales Content production 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Australia Holdings Pty Limited + Australia Helding company 100 0%
2 entertain Limited + England & Wales Holding company 100 0%
2 entertain Video Limited England & Wates DvDAndeo publisher 100 0%
Demon Music Group Limited England & Wales CD/music publisher 100 0%
Woridwide Channel Investments Limited + England & Wales Halding company 100 0%
Joint ventures
UKTV Meda Holdings Limited + England & Wales TV channel operator 50 0%
JV Programmes LLC USA Cantent creation 50 0%
Park Publishing Partnership Australia Magazine producer 50 0%
Sub-Zero Events Limited + England & Wales Live stage-performance operator 50 0%

+ Held directly by BBC Woridwide Limited

*  BBC Worldwide holds 93% of the 1ssued share capital but the non-controling shareholders have no nght to distnbutions

On 22rd October 2014, the Group sold a 49 9% stake In New Videc Channel Amenca LLC, a former 100% subsidary, to AMC Networks Inc ("AMCN®)
While the Group retains a 50 1% shareholding in NVCA, AMCN has control over the key deasion-making activities of NVCA Therefore, whilst the Group
rataing significant influence over NVCA, and has the nght to vanable retums, it no langer has control, and hence the Group has deconsolicdated NVCA from
the date of the sale and accounts for its retained interest since that date as an associate Details of this transaction are given in note 27 to the consohdated

financial statements

The following subsidianes are exempt from the reguirements of the Companies Act 2008 relating to the audit of accounts under section 479A of the Act

—

BBC Earth Productions (Life) Limited
2entertain Management Limited

BBC Video Limited

BBC Worldwide Investments Lirmited
MCI Music Pubdishing Limited

Damon Music Group Limited

Worldwide Channel Investments Limited
Bedder 6 Limited
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f Investments (continued)
Country of Incorporation or 8
Name Nots principal business address Principal sctivity intaryst
Associates
Knowledge West Communications Corporation * Canada TV channel cperator 50 0%
Baby Cow Productions Linited + England & Wales Content creation 25 0%
Burrung Bnght Productions Limited + Engiand & Wales Content craation 25 0%
Clerkenwell Films Limited * England & Wales Content creation 25 0%
Shm Fiim & TV Lumited + England & Wales Content creation 25 0%
Sprout Pictures (TV) Limited + Engtand & Wales Content creation 25 0%
Temple Street Productions Inc. + Canada Content creation 25 0%
Tower Productions GmbH + Germany Content creation 49 0%
Children's Character Books Limited + England & Wales Children’s book publisher 25 0%
AudioGo Limited England & Wales Audiobook pubhsher 14 0%
Educational Publishers LLP + England & Wales Educational product icensor 15 0%
Woodlands Books Limited + England & Wales Book publisher 15 0%
New Video Channel Amenca LLC USA TV channel operator 50 1%
Lookout Point Limited + England & Wales Cantent creation 35 0%
Curva Madia Limited + England & Wales Caontent creation 25 0%
Other Investment
Left Bank Pictures Limited + England & Wales Content creation 12 2%
+  Held directly by BBC Woridwide Limited
*  The sharas held by the Group entitle it to 20% of voting rghts
OCthar

£m Im Em
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 2125 120 62
Additicns - 38 47
Disposals (2 4) - -
At 31 March 2015 2101 158 109
Provigions for impairment
At 1 Apnl 2014 105.7 18 16
Charge for the year 25 - 01
At 31 March 2015 108 2 18 17
Net book value at 31 March 2015 10189 140 92
Net book value at 31 March 2014 106 8 102 46
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g. Programme rights and other stock

2018 2014
L £m
Programme nghts for broadcasting 180 22
Programmes in the course of production 212 79
Work in progress - 03
Finished goods for resale 45 19
437 321
h. Debhtors
2018 2014
Rm Em
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtars 108 5 880
Prepayments and accrued income 44 3 419
Amounts owed by ultmata parent undertaking 01 03
Amounis owed by subsidiary undertakings 1829 1374
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings : 15
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 201 194
Denvative financial instruments 84 85
Corporation tax recoverable 24 93
Other debtors 58 87

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Denvative financial instruments 28 34
Deferred tax 61 44
[:F] 78
g1 4 3238
i Creditors
2014 2014
restated *
Em em
Amounts faling due within one year

Bank loans and overdraft 2407 1114
Trade creditors 369 227
Rights creditors 605 54 §
Accruals and deferred income 838 774
Amounts owed to ultmate parent undertaking 460 438
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 130 1 982
Amounts owed to feliow subsidiary undertakings 121 39
Amounts owed to joint vantures gnd associates 04 02
Denvative financial instruments 102 11
Other creditors including other taxes and social secunty 348 19 4
8555 4322

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Loan owed fo intermediate parent undertaking 1355 887
Accruals and deferred income - 08
Derivative financial instruments 62 20
1417 1015
Total creditors 797 2 533 7

Details of bank loans and loans owed to the Company's intermediate parent undertalung are given in note 23 to the consolidated financal statements

* The balance sheet at 31 March 2014 has been restated to show bank balances of £53 5m, previously offset agamnst Bank loans and overdratft, to
reflect bank offset arrangements
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J- Provisions for liabilities and contingent liabilities

Qnercus Other
Defurrird tax contracts  provisions Totsl
£m gm___ em [
At 1 Apnl 2014 27 21 29 77
Provided dunng the year - . 16 16
Released in the year 0 5) - oun (12}
Transfers - 05) 05 -
Utiised in the year - - {18} (8
At 31 March 2013 22 16 25 83

Provisions for onerous contracts are recogmised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Company from & contract are lower than the unavoidable
cost of meeting its obhigations under the contract.

Other provisions pnmanly relate to reorgamsation costs, property-related provisions including onerous non-cancellable leases where the expected benefits
to be derved by the Company from subletting those properties are iower than the unavoidable costs payable over the remaming term of the respective
leases, and provisions for dilapidations in respect of leasehold properties

Further deferred contingent consideration may be payable In connection with acquisitions made by the Company No provision has been made where the
hkehhood and magnitude of additiona!l payments cannot be assessed with reasonabie certainty

The Company and some of #s subsicdianes operate a cash pooling arrangement All the cash balancas within the pool belong to the legal entity to which
they relate, although the Company has access to al! funds and each cash pool participant 1s jontly and severally liable for any overdraf balance

The Company and some of ts fellow BBC Commercial Holdings subsidianes have given guarantees i refation to the BBC Commercial Holdings Limited
revoiving credit faclity agreement At 31 March 2015, total amounts drawn down by the BBC Commercial Holdings Group under this facihty were £135 5m

(2014 £98 Tm)

k. Deferred tax

Deferred tax 13 provided as follows

Fixed asset  Derivative

timing timing
diffsrences differcncey Tetal
£m Em £m
At 1 April 2014 37 (20) 17
Charged to profit and loss {09) 31 22
At 31 March 2015 28 11 39
Deferred tax 1 recorded in the balance sheet as foliows
2015 2014
£Em Em
Deferred tax assets 61 44
Deferred tax itatikties (22) (27)
Neot deforrod tax asset a9 17
I. Called up share capital
2018 014
Em £m
Issued and fully pald
250,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 0.2 02

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no nght to fixed income
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m Reconciliation of movements in shareholder's funds

Profit and
Shive capilal isas actount Total
£m Em Em
At 1 Apnl 2013 D2 2199 220 1
Profit for the year - 627 627
Dividends paid - {88 3) {88 3)
At 31 March 2014 0.2 1943 1845
Profit for the year - 811 811
Dividends paid - {111 3) (111 3)
At 31 March 2015 02 164 1 164 3
n. Financial commitments
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure nat provided are as follows
7098 FIr
£m £m
Tangible fixed assets 63 78
Distribution rights 960 754
Total 102 3 832
Future minimum rentat paymenis under non-cancellable operating leases, payable in the next year, ere as follows
2013 014
Land & Land &
buldings Othor Total bulidings Other Total
£m £m Em £m £m Em
Leases which axpire
Within cne year 01 06 07 54 06 60
Between two and five years 06 . 06 04 06 10
After more than five years 22 13 35 02 06 08
Total 29 18 48 6.0 18 78
The Company atso has the foilowing unprovided financial commitments
2015 2074
Em_____ Em
Programme rights for broadcast 15 85 |
Qther commitments 252 128
Total 267 1983

o. Related party transactions

The Group consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 contain related party disclosures Consequently, the Company has taken
advantage of the exemption In FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures, not to disclose transactions with other members of the BBC Group

The value of transactions conductad with non wholly-owned subsidiaries and with other related parties was as foliows

“Dividands Bividends
wms " 1015 2015 2014 C 004 2014
Name of retated party Refatiinship Em £m Em Em Em Em ‘

UK Programme Distribution Limited Subsidiary - - - 425 - -
- - - 425 - -
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 479 - 287 466 - 165
Other joint ventures Joint Venture - - - - 1) -
New Video Channel America LLC Asscoiate 112 - - - - -
Other associates Associate 08 14 2 01 19 {12 9) 03
599 142 288 485 {13 0) 168
598 14 2 288 910 {13 0) 168
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o. Related party transactions {continued)

The followming amounts were outstanding with related parties at the balance sheet date

Raceivables  Fryablss  Net bal Pay

2015 2018 015 014 2014 2014

Name of reisted party Retationship Em Em Em £m Em Em
Bedder 8 Limited Subsidiary . - - - {10} {10)
UK Programme Distribution Limited Subsidiary - - - 159 - 159
. - . 159 (10} 149
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 55 03) 52 184 - 184
Other joint ventures Joint Venture - - - . @1) {0 1)
New Video Channel Amenca LLC Associate 128 - 128 - - -
Other assocrates Associate 18 {0 1) 17 14 {0 1) 13
201 {0 4) 197 198 {0 2} 1986
201 {0 4} 197 357 (12) 45

At 31 March 2015, the Company also had an outstanding balance of £4 0m (2014 £1 Om) payable to a joint venture of the Company's ultmate psrent in

respect of group relief This balance 18 included within other payables

p Post balance sheet events

There ware no events subsequent to the balance sheet date details of which are required to be included in the financial statements
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EURQPE

LONDON

BAC Worldwide
Telewision Centre

101 Wood Lane

London

w12 7FA

UK

Tel +44 (0) 20 8433 2000

COLOGNE

B8C Worldwide Germany
Kaiser-Withelm-Ring 17-21
506572 Cologne

Germany

Tel +48 221 790 790

PARIS

BBC Worldwide France

4th Floor

18-20 Qual du Point du jour
92100 Boulogne-Billancourt
Parls

France

Tel +33 144958400

WARSAW

BBC Worldwide Poland
Pl Bankowy 1

00139 Warsaw

Poland

Tel +48 2274912 00

C,
NEW YORK
BBC Worldwide North Amenca
1120 Avenue of the Americas
5th Floor
New York
NY 10038-6700
usa
Tel +1212 705 9300

LOS ANGELES

BBC Woardwrde Productions, Adjacent
Productions and

BBC Worldwide North America

10351 Santa Monica Bivd

Suite 250

Los Angeles

CA 90025

USA

Tei +1 310 228 1001

C C ED
MIAMI|
BBC Worldwidde Chanpels, Latin Amenca &
US Hispanic
255 Athambra Circle
10" Floor, Coral Gables
Florida 33134
USA
Tel +1 305 461 69693

MEXICO CITY

BBC Wordwide Mexco

Paseo de la Reforma #115

Pisc 4 Colonia Lomas de Chaputtepec
1100

Mexice DF

Tel +52 55 8000 7201

TORONTO

B8C Worldwide Canada
408 King Street West
5th Floor

Toronto, Ontaric

M5V 1K1

Canada

Tel +1 416 204 0500

ABSIA PACIFIC

HONG KONG

BBC Worldwide Hong Kong
Rooms 2524-2538

25F Sun Hung Kay Centre
30 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

Tel +852 2827 2218

SINGAPORE

B88C Worldwide Asia
17-03 Spnngleaf Tower
3 Anson Read
Singapore 079509

Tel +65 6849 5511

BEIJING

Woridwide Knowledge,
Business Consutting Co

Unit 57-58, Level 14

China World Office 1

No 1 Jianguomenwal Avenue
Chaoyang District,

Beying 100004

China

Tel +86 1065350135

88

ASIA PACIFIC (CONTINUED)
TOKYO

B8BC Worldwide Japan

Tokyo Club Building, 10F

3-2-6 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku
Tokyo 100-0013
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Tel +81 3 5157 3580

MUNBAI

BBC Wornldwids India

4th & 5th floor, Constructon House A
24th road, Off Linking Road, Khar (Wast)
Mumbai 400 052

India

Tel +91 22 5193 4100

BANGALORE

BBC Worldwida india
415 Prestige Center Point
7 Edward Road,
Bangalore 560052

India

Tel +91 802235 1070

SYDNEY

88C Worldwide Austraha
Level 5, 6 Eden Park Dnve
Macquarie Park

Sydney

NSW 2113

Austratia

Tel +51 2 9744 4500

TAIPEI

BBC Worldwide Tarwan

27th Floor, No 9 Songgao Road
Xinyl District

Tapel

Tamwen

Tel +886 2 7743 7110

AERICA

SOUTH AFRICA

BBC Wortdwide Alrca

10 Meirose Boutevard, Ground Floor
Melrose Arch

Johannesburg 2136

South Afnca

Tel +27 10 020 2115
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